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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(DFOHE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR D%Q©F THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-12508

S&T BANCORP, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Pennsylvania 25-1434426
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation ofjanization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
800 Philadelphia Street, Indiana, PA 15701
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area codé800) 325-2265
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(bheRct:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registert
Common Stock, par value $2.50 per share The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
(NASDAQ Global Select Marke

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(the®ct:None
(Title of class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%edb#turities Act.
Yes O No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act.
Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seati® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports) and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulatiork§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained he
and will not be contained, to the best of regidtsaknowledge, in definitive proxy or informatiotasements incorporated by reference in Part
[l of this form 10-K or any amendment to this fod@-K. [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥ab site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRule 405 of Regulation S-T (8§ 232.405 of thisptkg) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files).

Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aaccelerated filer, or smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirmmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Act.
Large accelerated filei] Accelerated filer
Non-accelerated filer[d (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting company]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act)
Yes O No

The aggregate estimated fair value of the votirdyraan-voting common equity held by non-affiliatéghe registrant as of June 30, 2012:
Common Stock, $2.50 par valu— $520,833,29:

The number of shares outstanding of the issues'ssels of common stock as of January 31, 2013:
Common Stock, $2.50 par value — 29,728,005 shares

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the proxy statementhie filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisio the annual shareholders meeting to be helg 20k
2013 are incorporated by reference into Par
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PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS

General

S&T Bancorp, Inc., or S&T, (also referred to belas/“we”, “us” or “our”), including on a consolidatdasis with our subsidiaries where
appropriate, was incorporated on March 17, 198%utite laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania bank holding company and has
three wholly owned subsidiaries, S&T Bank, 9th 8tidoldings, Inc. and STBA Capital Trust |. We atson a one-half interest in
Commonwealth Trust Credit Life Insurance CompamyC®CLIC. We are registered as a financial holdioghpany with the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System, or thereReserve Board, under the Bank Holding Compeatyof 1956, as amended, or the
BHCA. As of December 31, 2012, we had approxima$diyp billion in assets, $3.4 billion in loans, &B8illion in deposits and $537.4 million
in shareholder’s equity.

S&T Bank is a full service bank with its Main Offiat 800 Philadelphia Street, Indiana, Pennsylyamaviding services to its customers
through offices located in Allegheny, ArmstrongaB) Butler, Cambria, Clarion, Clearfield, Indiad&fferson, Washington and Westmorelanc
counties of Pennsylvania. S&T Bank deposits arerat by the Federal Deposit Insurance CorporatioRDIC, to the maximum extent
provided by law.

S&T Bank has three wholly owned operating subsi€grS&T Insurance Group, LLC, S&T Bancholdings;.land Stewart Capital
Advisors, LLC. S&T Insurance Group, LLC, through subsidiaries, offers a variety of insurance potslUS&T Bancholdings, Inc. is an
investment company. Stewart Capital Advisors, LIS registered investment advisor that manageaterinvestment accounts for individt
and institutions and advises the Stewart Capital @&p Fund.

We operate three reportable operating segmenisdimgl Community Banking, Wealth Management andraisce. Our Community
Banking segment offers services which include aitegpime and demand deposits, originating comna¢aid consumer loans, and providing
letters of credit and credit card services. Wedwelithat we have a relatively stable deposit badena material amount of deposits is obtained
from a single depositor or group of depositorsi(iding federal, state and local governments). @ue deposit base remained stable in 2012.

The Wealth Management segment offers discount bagleeservices, services as executor and trustes wills and deeds, guardian and
custodian of employee benefits and other trusttanlerage services, as well as a registered inwdtadvisor that manages private investt
accounts for individuals and institutions. Total &tk Management assets under management and atatiors were approximately $1.7
billion at December 31, 2012.

The Insurance segment includes a full-service arste agency offering commercial property and cégirsdurance, group life and health
coverage, employee benefit solutions and persosalance lines.

Refer to the financial statements and Note 25isfEorm 10-K for further details pertaining to amperating segments.

Recent Developments

On March 9, 2012, we completed the acquisition@m/ersion of Mainline Bancorp, Inc., or Mainlirebank holding company based in
Ebensburg, Pennsylvania. Mainline had one subgidiainline National Bank, with eight branches &@i®9.5 million in loans and $206.0
million in deposits. The acquisition expanded oarket share and footprint throughout Cambria aradrBbunties of Western Pennsylvania.
The total acquisition cost of Mainline was $27.8liom.

On August 13, 2012, we completed the acquisitioBateway Bank of Pennsylvania, a bank with $99 lianiin loans and $105.4 millio
in deposits, headquartered in McMurray, Pennsybiahie total acquisition cost of Gateway Bank wEs.& million. As of December 31,
2012, Gateway was operating as a separate wholhedwubsidiary of S&T, with all transactions sitice acquisition
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Item 1. BUSINESS — continued

date consolidated in our financial statements. @orary 8, 2013, Gateway Bank was merged into S&ikBand their two branches are now
fully operational branches of S&T Bank.

In August 2012, we expanded our commercial lenftogprint into Northeastern Ohio through the opegnifi a loan production office in
Akron.

Employees
As of December 31, 2012, we had 1,027 full-timeiegjent employees.

Access to United States Securities and Exchange Com  mission Filings

All of our reports filed electronically with the litad States Securities and Exchange CommissiaheoB8EC, including this Annual Rep
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December2B12, or the Report, our prior annual reports om¥10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-
Q, current reports on Form 8-K and our annual pistayements, as well as any amendments to thosgsepe accessible at no cost on our
website at www.stbancorp.com under Financial Infion, SEC Filings. These filings are also accéssih the SEC’s website at
www.sec.gov. You may read and copy any materialilavith the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference iRad 100 F Street, NE, Washington,
D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the ofieraof the Public Reference Room by calling theCS# 1-800-SE@330. Our charters
the Audit Committee, the Compensation and Ben€fitmmittee, the Nominating and Corporate Govern&uwamittee, the Wealth
Management Oversight Committee, Complaints Reggréiotounting, Internal Accounting Controls or Audg Matters, or the Whistleblower
Policy, the Code of Conduct for the CEO and CF®,&eneral Code of Conduct, the Shareholder Commatinits Policy, and S&T Excessive
and Luxury Expenditure Policy are also availablematv.stbancorp.com under Corporate Governance.

Supervision and Regulation
General

S&T and S&T Bank are each extensively regulateceufederal and state law. The following describesain aspects of that regulation
and does not purport to be a complete descripfi@il oegulations that affect S&T and S&T Bank draspects of any regulation discussed
here.

To the extent statutory or regulatory provisions @escribed, the description is qualified in itfrety by reference to the particular
statutory or regulatory provisions. Proposals tange the laws and regulations governing the bankihgstry are frequently raised in
Congress, in state legislatures and before thewstank regulatory agencies. The likelihood amihiy of any changes and the impact such
changes might have on S&T or S&T Bank is impossibldetermine with any certainty.

Any change in applicable laws or regulations, athimway such laws or regulations are interpretecegulatory agencies or courts, may
have a material impact on our business, operatiodsarnings.

S&T

We are a bank holding company subject to regulatimater the BHCA and the examination and reportetgiirements of the Federal
Reserve Board. Under the BHCA, a bank holding campaay not directly or indirectly acquire ownersbipcontrol of more than five percent
of the voting shares or substantially all of theets of any additional bank, or merge or consdadidéth another bank holding company, with
the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board héies received approval from the Federal Resenaedimr a passive ownership position in
Allegheny Valley Bancorp, Inc. (14.4 percent).

As a bank holding company, we are expected undaststy and regulatory provisions to serve as acsoaf financial and managerial
strength to our subsidiary bank. A bank holding pany is also expected to commit resources, inctudapital and other funds, to support its
subsidiary bank.
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Item 1. BUSINESS — continued

We elected to become a financial holding compardeuthe BHCA in 2001 and thereby engage in a broaahge of financial and other
activities than are permissible for traditional kdwolding companies. In order to maintain our fats a financial holding company, we must
remain “well-capitalized” and “well-managed” ancttepository institutions controlled by us must aanfwell-capitalized,” “well-
managed” (as defined in federal law) and haveadtla “satisfactory” Community Reinvestment ActGiRA rating. Refer to Item 8, Note 23
Regulatory Matters, of this Report for informaticoncerning the current capital ratios of S&T andTSank. No prior regulatory approval is
required for a financial holding company with totahsolidated assets less than $50 billion to aequcompany, other than a bank or savings
association, engaged in activities that are firgrininature or incidental to activities that areficial in nature, as determined by the Federal
Reserve Board, unless the total consolidated agsbtsacquired exceed $10 billion. The BHCA idigedi several activities as “financial in
nature” including, among others, securities undeimg, dealing and market making; sponsoring mufuatls and investment companies;
insurance underwriting and sales agency; investaavisory activities; merchant banking activitiaed activities that the Federal Reserve
Board has determined to be closely related to lmagnéi a proper incident thereto. Banks may als@gegsubject to limitations on investment,
in activities that are financial in nature, othleart insurance underwriting, insurance company qlistinvestment, real estate development anc
real estate investment, through a financial subsydif the bank, if the bank is “well-capitalizedyWell-managed” and has at least a
“satisfactory” CRA rating.

If S&T or S&T Bank ceases to be “well-capitalizeat’“well-managed,” we will not be in compliance Wwithe requirements of the BHCA
regarding financial holding companies. If a finai¢iolding company is notified by the Federal Resdoard of such a change in the rating
any of its subsidiary banks, it must take certairrective actions within specified time frames. tharmore, if S&T Bank was to receive a CRA
rating of less than “satisfactory,” then we wouldgrohibited from engaging in new activities or @cgg companies engaged in certain
financial activities until the rating is raised“&atisfactory” or better.

We are presently engaged in nonbanking activitiesuigh the following five entities:

e Oth Street Holdings, Inc. was formed in June 1988did and manage a group of investments previcaushed by S&T Bank and to
give us additional latitude to purchase other itmests.

* S&T Bancholdings, Inc. was formed in August 2002é&td and manage a group of investments previcustyed by S&T Bank and
give us additional latitude to purchase other itmesnts.

« CTCLIC is a joint venture with another financiasiitution, acting as a reinsurer of credit lifecident and health insurance policies
sold by S&T Bank and the other institutic

e S&T Insurance Group, LLC distributes life insuraraeel long-term disability income insurance produlisring 2001, S&T Insurance
Group, LLC and Attorneys Abstract Company, Inceeed into an agreement to form S&T Settlement $esyiLLC or STSS, with
respective ownership interests of 55 percent ange4éent. STSS is a title insurance agency seryioimmercial customers. During
2002, S&T Insurance Group, LLC expanded into thapprty and casualty insurance business with thaisitign of S&T-Evergreen
Insurance LLC

» Stewart Capital Advisors, LLC was formed in AugRB605 and is a registered investment advisor thaiages private investment
accounts for individuals and institutions and adsithe Stewart Capital Mid Cap Fui

S&T Bank

As a state-chartered, commercial bank, the depokitdich are insured by the FDIC, S&T Bank is sdbjto the supervision and
regulation of the Pennsylvania Department of Baglend
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Item 1. BUSINESS — continued

Securities, or PADB and the FDIC. We are also suligevarious requirements and restrictions unddefal and state law, including
requirements to maintain reserves against deposgsijctions on the types, amount and terms anditions of loans that may be granted and
limits on the type of other activities in which S&8ank may engage and the investments it may make.

In addition, S&T Bank is subject to affiliate traasion rules in Sections 23A and 23B of the Fed@ealerve Act that limit the amount of
transactions between itself and S&T or S&T’s nobsubsidiaries. Under these provisions, transastimiween a bank and its parent
company or any single nonbank affiliate generaltylanited to 10 percent of the bank subsidiangdpital and surplus, and with respect to all
transactions with affiliates, are limited to 20 gt of the bank subsidiary’s capital and surglasns and extensions of credit from a bank to
an affiliate generally are required to be securngdllgible collateral in specified amounts. The Dderank Act Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act, or Dodd-Frank Act, expath@saffiliate transaction rules to broaden theniédn of affiliate and to apply to
securities lending, repurchase agreements andadiegg activities that we may have with an affdisais well as to strengthen collateral
requirements and limit Federal Reserve exemptitieasitly. Also, the definition of “extension of cr¢tfor transactions with executive office
directors and principal shareholders is being edpdrto include credit exposure arising from a deiae transaction, a repurchase or reverse
repurchase agreement and a securities lendingranvkiog transaction. These expansions became afedtily 21, 2012. These provisions
have not had a material effect on S&T or S&T Bank.

Insurance of Accounts; Depositor Preference

The deposits of S&T Bank are insured up to appleéimits per insured depositor by the FDIC. ThedOd-rank Act codified FDIC
deposit insurance coverage per separately insueaositor for all account types at $250,000. ThedBrank Act also maintained federal
deposit insurance coverage for noninterest-bedrarggaction accounts at an unlimited amount froreeD#er 31, 2010 until this part of the
Act expired on December 31, 2012. Deposits helbimnterest-bearing transaction accounts are ngreggted with any interest-bearing
deposits the owner may hold in the same ownersitggory, and the combined total insured up toat|§250,000.

As an FDIC-insured bank, S&T Bank is also subjedtDIC insurance assessments, which are imposed lg®n the risk the institution
poses to the Deposit Insurance Fund, or DIF. Utlderassessment system, risk is defined and mehsagieg an institution’s supervisory
ratings with other risk measures, including finahcatios. The current total base assessmentoatas annualized basis range from 2.5 basis
points for certain “well-capitalized,” “well-manad&banks, with the highest ratings, to 45 basisitsfor institutions posing the most risk to
the DIF. The FDIC may raise or lower these assessmaées on a quarterly basis based on variousr&att achieve a reserve ratio, which the
Dodd-Frank Act has mandated to be no less thandeB%ent of insured deposits.

In February 2011, the FDIC Board of Directors addp final rule, Deposit Insurance Assessment Bessessment Rate Adjustments,
Dividends, Assessment Rates and Large Bank PrMetpodology. This final rule redefined the depassiurance assessment base to equal
average consolidated total assets minus averagiblarequity as required by the Dodd-Frank Ackr@t assessment rates, implemented the
Dodd-Frank Act’s DIF dividend provisions and revgbe risk-based assessment system for all lasyeed depository institutions (those with
at least $10.0 billion in total assets). Many @& thanges were made as a result of provisionsedbdtud-Frank Act that were intended to shift
more of the cost of raising the reserve ratio finstitutions with less than $10.0 billion in assgtsch as S&T Bank) to the larger banks. Ex
for the future assessment rate schedules, all esangnt into effect April 1, 2011 which lowered &DIC expense in 2012 compared to 2011
and 2010. In addition to DIF assessments, the Fi3K&sses all insured deposits a special assessnfiemtl the repayment of debt obligations
of the Financing Corporation, or FICO. FICO is agmment-sponsored entity that was formed to bott@ymoney necessary to carry out
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Item 1. BUSINESS — continued

the closing and ultimate disposition of failed thimstitutions by the Resolution Trust Corporatiarthe 1990s. For the first quarter of 2013,
annualized rate established by the FDIC for theQrSsessment is 0.64 basis points.

Under federal law, deposits and certain claimsaftministrative expenses and employee compensa@ins insured depository
institutions are afforded a priority over other geal unsecured claims against such an instituiimh)ding federal funds and letters of credit, in
the liquidation or other resolution of such anitaion by a receiver. Such priority creditors wauhclude the FDIC.

Capital

The Federal Reserve Board and FDIC have issuedssttadly similar risk-based and leverage capitztiglines applicable to banking
organizations they supervise. Under current cagitalelines, S&T and S&T Bank are required to nmaimtertain capital standards based on
ratios of capital to assets and capital to riskglvEid assets. The guidelines define a bank’s gotalifying capital as having two components.
Tier 1 capital, which must be at least 50 percémbdt@l qualifying capital, is mainly comprised @dmmon equity, retained earnings and
qualifying preferred stock, less certain intangibl€ier 2 capital may include the allowance fomld@sses, or ALL, up to a maximum of 1.25
percent of risk weighted assets, qualifying subtatiid debt, qualifying preferred stock, hybrid taphstruments and up to 45 percent of net
unrealized gains on available-for-sale equity séiesr The guideline also defines the weights amsigo assets and off-balance sheet items to
determine the risk weighted asset component ofishkebased capital ratios.

The Federal Reserve Board and FDIC have establisivdchum and welkapitalized standards for banks and bank holdimgpamies. Th
minimum capital standards are defined as a Tiatid of at least 4.00 percent, a Total capitabrafiat least 8.00 percent and a Leverage ratic
of at least 3.00 percent. The Leverage ratio dd pdrcent is for those bank and bank holding conesahat meet certain specified criteria,
including having received the highest regulatotingaand are not experiencing significant growtlegpansion. All other banks and bank
holding companies generally are required to mainddieverage ratio of at least 4 percent. S&T a&dl Bank maintain capital levels to meet
the well-capitalized regulatory standards, whioh @&fined as a Tier 1 ratio of at least 6.00 percental capital ratio of at least 10.00 percent
and a Leverage ratio of at least 5.00 percent.éddinber 31, 2012 S&T’s Tier 1 capital, Total cdptad Leverage ratios were 11.98 percent,
15.39 percent and 9.31 percent, respectively. S&iik& Tier 1, Total capital and Leverage ratiosevEd.88 percent, 14.35 percent, and 8.45
percent, respectively.

Both the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC’sbissbed capital standards explicitly identify concatitns of credit risk and the risk
arising from non-traditional activities, as wellas institutions ability to manage these risks, as important fadmbe taken into account by
agency in assessing an institution’s overall chpid@quacy. The capital guidelines also providé dinainstitution’s exposure to a decline in the
economic value of its capital due to changes ierett rates be considered by the agency as a facwaluating a bank’capital adequacy. Tl
Federal Reserve Board has also issued additiopahtguidelines for certain bank holding comparttest engage in trading activities. We do
not believe that consideration of these additidaetiors will affect the regulators’ assessmenhef ¢apital position of S&T or S&T Bank. The
Dodd-Frank Act contains a number of provisionsndid to strengthen capital, including requiring imum leverage and risk-based capital
that are at least as stringent as those currengjféct. Also, the Dodd-Frank Act requires the ératiReserve Board to implement capital
regulations that are countercyclical so that thewm of capital required to be maintained by us ldncrease in times of economic expansion
and decrease in times of economic contraction,istamg with the safety and soundness of the comgargddition to the Dodd-Frank Act, the
international oversight body of the Basel CommitteeBanking Supervision, or Basel Ill, reached agrents in July, 2010 to introduce a
minimum
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Item 1. BUSINESS — continued

common equity tier 1 capital requirement of 4.5€cpat, along with a capital conservation buffed0 percent to bring total common equity
capital requirements to 7.00 percent. The fedeaakimg agencies issued proposed rules in June t8Gfr#hlement Basel Il and certain other
recent revisions to the Basel capital frameworkyal as the minimum leverage and risised capital requirements of the Dodd Frank At
they have yet to issue any final rules. Federalleggrs periodically propose amendments to theliissed capital guidelines and the related
regulatory framework and consider changes to tpé&alastandards that could significantly incredse amount of capital needed to meet
applicable standards. The timing of adoption, wudtienform and effect of any such proposed amendnoantsot be predicted.

Capital Purchase Program

On December 7, 2011, we redeemed all of the pexrfestock that we sold to the federal governmepiaisof the Capital Purchase
Program, or CPP. As a participant in the CPP, wepteted the $108.7 million capital raise on Jand#ry2009.

In connection with the issuance of the preferredisto the U.S. Treasury in 2009, we also issued tts. Treasury a warrant to purchase
517,012 shares of our common stock at an initinkpare exercise price of $31.53, with an estim&ed/alue of $4.0 million on the date of
issuance. The warrant remains outstanding as afateof the filing of this Annual Report on For@+K. The warrant provides for the
adjustment of the exercise price and the numbshafes of our common stock issuable upon exercisaignt to customary anti-dilution
provisions. The U.S. Treasury agreed not to exeniding power with respect to any shares of comstook issued upon exercise of the
warrant. We did not repurchase the warrant conotlyrevith the redemption of the preferred stockléss we repurchase the warrant, it will
remain outstanding and will expire 10 years fromigsuance date.

Payment of Dividends

S&T is a legal entity separate and distinct frosibiinking and other subsidiaries. A substantigiguoof our revenues consist of dividend
payments we receive from S&T Bank. S&T Bank, imius subject to state laws and regulations thait the amount of dividends it can pay to
S&T. In addition, both S&T and S&T Bank are subjextvarious general regulatory policies relatinghte payment of dividends, including
requirements to maintain adequate capital abovaaggy minimums. The Federal Reserve Board hasated that banking organizations
should generally pay dividends only if (i) the angaation’s net income available to common sharefialdver the past year has been sufficien
to fully fund the dividends and (ii) the prospeetirate of earnings retention appears consistehtthiét organization’s capital needs, asset
quality and overall financial condition. Thus, undertain circumstances based upon our financiadlitéon, our ability to declare and pay
quarterly dividends may require consultation wite Federal Reserve Board and may be prohibite¢pljcable Federal Reserve Board
regulations. If we were to pay a dividend in coménation of Federal Reserve regulations, the Fed®eakrve could raise supervisory concerns
During the year ended December 31, 2012, S&T Bait $17.4 million in cash dividends to us for disdls paid to common shareholders.

Other Safety and Soundness Regulations

There are a number of obligations and restrictioqmsed on bank holding companies such as us andepository institution subsidiary
by federal law and regulatory policy. These obiigas and restrictions are designed to reduce patdoss exposure to the FDIC’s deposit
insurance fund in the event an insured depositwtitution becomes in danger of default or is ifad#. Under current federal law for examg
the federal banking agencies possess broad powtaked prompt corrective

8



Table of Contents

Item 1. BUSINESS — continued

action to resolve problems of insured depositosyitations. The extent of these powers depends uiather the institution in question is
“well-capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undmpitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized” teritically undercapitalized,” as defined by
the law. Under regulations established by the fddsanking agencies, a “well-capitalized” institutimust have a Tier 1 capital ratio of at leas
6.00 percent, a Total capital ratio of at leasO@(ercent and a leverage ratio of at least 5.0€epéand must not be subject to a capital
directive or order. An “adequately capitalized tingion must have a Tier 1 capital ratio of atded.00 percent, a Total capital ratio of at least
8.00 percent and a leverage ratio of at least geBfent. The most highlgated financial institutions minimum requirement fioe leverage rati

is 3.00 percent. In the proposed rules to implerBasel |1l and the minimum leverage and risk-bassgpital requirements of the Dodd-Frank
Act, the federal banking agencies have also prapolanges to the definition of these categorieduding the introduction of a common
equity tier 1 capital ratio in each definition. ABDecember 31, 2012, S&T and S&T Bank were classiés “well-capitalized.” The
classification of depository institutions is prirtarfor the purpose of applying the federal bankaggnciesprompt corrective action provisio
and is not intended to be and should not be intéepras a representation of overall financial cibodlior prospects of any financial institution.

The federal banking agencies’ prompt correctivéoagbowers (which increase depending upon the @egrevhich an institution is
undercapitalized) can include, among other thingguiring an insured depository institution to adagapital restoration plan which cannot be
approved unless guaranteed by the institution’smtarompany; placing limits on asset growth anttim®ns on activities, including
restrictions on transactions with affiliates; reting the interest rates the institution may paydeposits; prohibiting the payment of principal
or interest on subordinated debt; prohibiting tbilimng company from making capital distributionghwaiut prior regulatory approval; and,
ultimately, appointing a receiver for the institurti For example, only a “well-capitalized” deposjtinstitution may accept brokered deposits
without prior regulatory approval.

The federal banking agencies have also adoptealingd prescribing safety and soundness standelatsng to internal controls and
information systems, internal audit systems, loacudnentation, credit underwriting, interest ratpa@sure, asset growth and compensation.
and benefits. In general, the guidelines requimr@riate systems and practices to identify andagarspecified risks and exposures. The
guidelines prohibit excessive compensation as aaferand unsound practice and characterize comjmmsa excessive when the amounts
paid are unreasonable or disproportionate to theces performed by an executive officer, employBesctor or principal shareholder. In
addition, the agencies have adopted regulationsatithorize, but do not require an agency to catleinstitution that has been given notice by
an agency that it is not in compliance with angwéh safety and soundness standards to submit@liaace plan. If, after being so notified,
institution fails to submit an acceptable complaptan, the agency must issue an order directitigrato correct the deficiency and may issue
an order directing other actions of the types tactvlan “undercapitalized” institution is subjectden the prompt corrective action provisions
described above.

Regulatory Enforcement Authority

The enforcement powers available to federal bankencies are substantial and include, among tilmeggs and in addition to other
powers described herein, the ability to assessmighey penalties, to issue cease-and-desist ayvahorders and to initiate injunctive actions
against banks and bank holding companies and tiisth affiliated parties,” as defined in the Fetlddeposit Insurance Act. In general, these
enforcement actions may be initiated for violatiofsaws and regulations, as well as engagememh$afe or unsound practices. Other action:
or inactions may provide the basis for enforcenaetibn, including misleading or untimely reporigdi with regulatory authorities.
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At the state level, the PADB also has broad enfosr@ powers over S&T Bank, including the powembpose fines and other civil and
criminal penalties and to appoint a conservataeoeiver.

Interstate Banking and Branching

The BHCA currently permits bank holding companiesif any state to acquire banks and bank holdingpemiies located in any other
state, subject to certain conditions, includingaiernationwide and state-imposed deposit conceémréimits. In addition, because of changes
to law made by the Dodd-Frank Act, S&T Bank may restablish de novo interstate branches in any gidtee same extent that a bank
chartered in that state could establish a branch.

Community Reinvestment and Consumer Protection Laws

In connection with its lending activities, S&T Baisksubject to a number of federal laws designgutatect borrowers and promote
lending to various sectors of the economy and mdjmr. These include, among other laws, the Equadli€Opportunity Act, the Truth-in-
Lending Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, the FattiCiReporting Act and the CRA. In
addition, rules developed by the federal bankingnages pursuant to federal law require disclos@ipgrivacy policies to consumers and in sc
circumstances, allow consumers to prevent thealiscé of certain personal information to nonaftdththird parties.

The CRA requires the appropriate federal bankirgnag, in connection with its examination of a batiokassess the bank’s record in
meeting the credit needs of the communities selyetthe bank, including low and moderate-income megghoods. Furthermore, such
assessment is required of any bank that has appleong other things, to merge or consolidate witacquire the assets or assume the
liabilities of an insured depository institutiom,to open or relocate a branch office. In the adsebank holding company (including a finan
holding company) applying for approval to acquiteaak or bank holding company, the Federal Redeoazd will assess the record of each
subsidiary bank of the applicant bank holding conypia considering the application. Under the CR#stitutions are assigned a rating of
“outstanding,” “satisfactory,” “needs to improvef tunsatisfactory.” S&T Bank was rated “satisfagfbin its most recent CRA evaluation.

Anti-Money Laundering Rules

S&T Bank is subject to the Bank Secrecy Act, itplementing regulations and other amidney laundering laws and regulations, incluc
the USA Patriot Act of 2001. Among other thingsgh laws and regulations require S&T Bank to tédessto prevent the bank from being
used to facilitate the flow of illegal or illicit aney, to report large currency transactions arfdesuspicious activity reports. S&T Bank is also
required to develop and implement a comprehensitiar@oney laundering compliance program. Banks ralsi have in place appropriate
“know your customer” policies and procedures. Mioias of these requirements can result in substiaeitiil and criminal sanctions. In
addition, provisions of the USA Patriot Act of 20@uire the federal financial institution regulgtagencies to consider the effectiveness of
financial institution’s anti-money laundering adties when reviewing bank mergers and bank holdimmpany acquisitions.

Government Actions and Legislation

The Dodd-Frank Act is significantly changing theremt bank regulatory structure and affecting #heding, deposit, investment, trading
and operating activities of financial institutioasd their holding companies, including S&T and SBank. The Dodd-Frank Act contains a
number of provisions intended to strengthen cagafer to Capital within Item 1 for additional amfnation. For example, the federal banking
agencies are directed to establish minimum leveaagerisk-based capital that are at least as stnings those currently in effect.
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The Dodd-Frank Act requires various federal agentieadopt a broad range of new rules and regakgtend to prepare numerous studies
and reports for Congress. The federal agenciegiaea significant discretion in drafting the implenting rules and regulations, and
consequently, many of the details and much ofriifgact of the Act may not be known for many yeare Dodd-Frank Act also contains
provisions that expand the insurance assessmemtbasincrease the scope of deposit insurance agwer

Among other provisions, the SEC has enacted ridgsiired by the Dodd-Frank Act, giving stockholdanson-binding vote on executive
compensation and so-called “golden parachute” paygn&he Dodd-Frank Act also authorizes the SEframulgate rules that would allow
stockholders to nominate their own candidates fectmn as directors using a company’s proxy materiThe legislation also directs the
federal financial institution regulatory agencieptomulgate rules prohibiting excessive compeasdieing paid to financial institution
executives.

The Dodd-Frank Act also created the Consumer FinbRecotection Bureau, or CFPB that took over rid&ing responsibility on July 21,
2011 for the principal federal consumer protectaws, such as the Truth in Lending Act, the Equad Opportunity Act, the Real Estate
Settlement Procedures Act and the Truth in Saviaig &mong others. Institutions that have asse$d 0f0 billion or less, such as S&T Bank,
will continue to be supervised in this area by tiséate and primary federal regulators (in the cds®&T Bank, the FDIC). The Act also gives
the CFPB expanded data collection powers for éiding purposes for both small business and moettgsms, as well as expanded authority
to prevent unfair, deceptive and abusive practiths.consumer complaint function also has beenatimiaded into the CFPB with respect to
the institutions it supervises. The CFPB estabtishre Office for Community Banks and Credit Uniowg#h a mission to ensure that the CFPB
incorporates the perspectives of small depositstitutions into the policy-making process, comnsate relevant policy initiatives to
community banks and credit unions and work with camity banks and credit unions to identify potdrdieas for regulatory simplification.
In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act required the FetiRBeserve Board to adopt a rule addressing integdnéees applicable to debit card
transactions. This rule, Regulation Il, effectivet@er 1, 2011, does not apply to banks with leaa $10.0 billion in assets.

There have been delays in the rulemaking procegsbs various federal agencies responsible foctamgthe provisions of the Dodd-
Frank Act. A substantial number of rules requireihtplement the Dodd-Frank Act have not been faeali and many have not even been
proposed. Not all of the Dodd-Frank Act provisisemaining to be finalized apply to banks the siz8&T Bank. As a result, we cannot
predict the ultimate impact of the Act on S&T or B&ank at this time, including the extent to whithould increase costs or limit our ability
to pursue business opportunities in an efficienhmea, or otherwise adversely affect our businésantial condition and results of operations.
Nor can we predict the impact or substance of diltere legislation or regulation. However, it igpected that they, at a minimum, w
increase our operating and compliance costs.

In 2012, Pennsylvania enacted three bills knowth@sBanking Law Modernization Packagd@he bills became effective on Decembel
2012. The overall goal of the Banking Law Modertizma Package was to modernize the banking lawsahBylvania and reduce regulatory
burden at the state level.

Federal and state regulatory agencies consistprajyose and adopt changes to their regulationkamge the manner in which existing
regulations are applied. We cannot predict thetamios or impact of pending or future legislatiorregulation, or the application thereof,
although enactment of the proposed legislationcdcatfiect how S&T and S&T Bank operate and coulaigigantly increase costs, impede the
efficiency of internal business processes, or lmnit ability to pursue business opportunities ireffitient manner, any of which could
materially and adversely affect our business, fimgrcondition and results of operations.

11



Table of Contents

Item 1. BUSINESS — continued

Competition

S&T Bank competes with other local, regional antlamal financial service providers, such as otliearicial holding companies,
commercial banks, savings associations, credinsifinance companies and brokerage and insuramneg fSome of our competitors are not
subject to the same level of regulation and ovétdigat is required of banks and bank holding camgs and are thus able to operate under
lower cost structures.

Changes in bank regulation, such as changes ipréicts and services banks can offer and involmmenonbanking activities by ban
holding companies, as well as bank mergers andsitiqns, can affect our ability to compete sucéds Legislation and regulations have
also expanded the activities in which depositosfiintions may engage. Our ability to compete sssftdly will depend upon how successfully
we can respond to the evolving competitive, reguattechnological and demographic developmentsctiffg our operations.

We face significant competition in both originatilogins and attracting deposits. The western Pevansid area has a high density of
financial institutions, some of which are signifitly larger institutions with greater financial cesces than us, and many of which are our
competitors to varying degrees. Our competitionldans comes principally from commercial banksjrsgs associations, mortgage banking
companies, credit unions and other financial sereempanies. Our most direct competition for dapdsis historically come from commerc
banks, savings banks and credit unions. We facii@aal competition for deposits from non-deposjteompetitors such as the mutual fund
industry, securities and brokerage firms and insteacompanies. Because larger competitors haventdyes in attracting business from largel
corporations, we do not generally compete for theiness. Instead, we concentrate our effortstoacting the business of individuals and
small and medium-size businesses. We generally etargn the basis of customer service and resporesgdo customer needs, the
convenience of banking offices and hours, and tadability and pricing of our products and sengcé/e emphasize personalized banking
the advantage of local decision-making in our baghkiusiness and this strategy appears to havevirdereceived in our market area.

The financial service industry is likely to becomere competitive as further technological advaresesble more companies to provide
financial services on a more efficient and conveniaasis. Technological innovations have loweraditional barriers of entry and enabled
many of these companies to compete in financiaices markets. Many customers now expect a chdibarking options for the delivery of
services, including traditional banking officedetghone, mail, internet, mobile banking, ATMs, ssdfvice branches, and/or in-store branches
These products are offered by traditional bankssavihgs associations, as well as credit uniorkdrage firms, asset management groups,
finance and insurance companies, internet-basegaoies, and mortgage banking firms. We believedbaturrent market area, consisting
primarily of western Pennsylvania, provides longvt@pportunity for growth in deposits and commdrtgading. Commercial and residential
real estate values in our market appear to habdiz&al. Nevertheless, the national and local eaues still remain fragile with high
unemployment rates while business conditions remsaitued, with uncertainty that seems to limit brthsumer and corporate spending in
our area.
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Investments in our common stock involve risk. Thkofving discussion highlights the risks that wdidaee are material to our company,
but does not necessarily include all risks thatweg face.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to a number of factors.

Our quarterly and annual operating results haviedaignificantly in the past and could vary siggahtly in the future, which makes it
difficult for us to predict our future operatingstéts. Our operating results may fluctuate due\aréety of factors, many of which are outside
of our control, including the changing and recerthatile U.S. economic environment and changdkéncommercial and residential real es
market, any of which may cause our stock pricductfiate. If our operating results fall below thgpectations of investors or securities
analysts, the price of our common stock could dectiubstantially. Our stock price can fluctuateificantly in response to a variety of factors
including, among other things:

« volatility of stock market prices and volumes imgeal;

« changes in market valuations of similar companies;

< changes in conditions in credit markets;

» changes in accounting policies or procedures asnetjby the Financial Accounting Standards Board;ASB, or other regulatory
agencies

. Ie%islative and regulatory actions (including thpact of the Dodd-Frank Act and related regulajiaubjecting us to additional
regulatory oversight which may result in increasethpliance costs and/or require us to change csiness mode

e government intervention in the U.S. financial systend the effects of and changes in trade and ragnend fiscal policies and laws,
including the interest rate policies of the Fed&aserve Boarc

< additions or departures of key members of managgmen

« fluctuations in our quarterly or annual operatieguits; and

< changes in analysts’ estimates of our financialguerance.

Risks Related to Credit

Our ability to assess the credit -worthiness of our customers may diminish, which may adversely affect our results of
operations.

We take credit risk by virtue of making loans amtkading loan commitments and letters of creditr &(posure to credit risk is managed
through the use of consistent underwriting starsléindt emphasize “in-market” lending while avoidhighly leveraged transactions as well as
excessive industry and other concentrations. Gadicadministration function employs risk managetiechniques to ensure that loans adher
to corporate policy and problem loans are promigiintified. There can be no assurance that sucsumeswill be effective in avoiding undue
credit risk. If the models and approaches we uselect, manage and underwrite our consumer andheooial customers become less
predictive of future charge-offs (due, for examperapid changes in the economy, including thempieyment rate), our credit losses may
increase.

The value of the collateral used to secure our loan s may not be sufficient to compensate for the amoun t of an unpaid loan
and we may be unsuccessful in recovering the remain ing balance from our customers.

Decreases in real estate values, particularly veispect to our commercial lending and mortgagerities, could adversely affect the value
of property used as collateral for our loans andomstomers’ ability to repay these loans, whickuim could impact our profitability.
Repayment of our commercial loans is often depetnaiethe cash flow of the borrower, which may beeom
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unpredictable in the current economy. If the valfithe assets, such as real estate, serving aderall for the loan portfolio were to decline
materially, a significant part of the loan portfoliould become under-collateralized. If the lodra aire secured by real estate become trouble
when real estate market conditions are decliningame declined, in the event of foreclosure, we maybe able to realize the amount of
collateral that was anticipated at the time ofioaging the loan. This could result in higher cleaagfs which could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results and financial coadi

Changes in the overall credit quality of our portfo lio can have a significant impact on our earnings.

Like other lenders, we face the risk that our corgtis will not repay their loans. We reserve foséssin our loan portfolio based on our
assessment of inherent credit losses. This proagssh is critical to our financial results and dition, requires complex judgments, including
our assessment of economic conditions, which dfiewt to predict. Through a periodic review oftfoan portfolio, management determines
the amount of the allowance for loan loss, or Abl,considering historical losses combined with gatie factors including general and
regional economic conditions, asset quality tretat policy and underwriting and changes in loancentrations and collateral values. The
amount of future losses is susceptible to changesdnomic, operating and other conditions, inclgdihanges in interest rates, which may be
beyond our control. We may underestimate our inftdosses and fail to hold an ALL sufficient to aaat for these losses. Incorrect
assumptions could lead to material underestimdteserent losses and inadequate ALL. As our assessof inherent losses changes, we
need to increase or decrease our ALL, which codietiesely impact our financial results and profilityi

Our loan portfolio is concentrated in western Penns ylvania, and our lack of geographic diversification increases our risk
profile.

The regional economic conditions in western Pervasyh affects the demand for our products and sesvas well as the ability of our
customers to repay their loans and the value ofttlateral securing these loans. We are lessthblea larger institution to spread the risks of
unfavorable local economic conditions across aglamgmber of diversified economies. A significantlde in the regional economy caused by
inflation, recession, unemployment or other factarsld adversely affect our customers, the qualitgur loan portfolio and the demand for
products and services. Any sustained period ofemed payment delinquencies, foreclosures or lessesed by adverse market or economic
conditions in our market area could adversely affee value of our assets, revenues, results aftipas and financial condition. Moreover,
cannot give any assurance we will benefit from arayket growth or favorable economic conditionsim primary market area.

A significant portion of our loan portfolio include s commercial real estate loans that have higherris ks, and we may
experience higher credit losses.

The majority of our loans are to commercial borrosv@he commercial real estate segment of our paatiolio has been more adversely
impacted by the continuing economic downturn. Comnumaéreal estate lending typically involves highean principal amounts, and the
repayment of these loans generally are dependelatige part, on sufficient income from the prog@srsecuring the loans to cover operating
expenses and debt service. Because payments andeanred by commercial real estate often depend e successful operating and
management of the properties, repayment of theseslmay be affected by factors outside the borreweentrol, including adverse conditions
in the real estate market or the economy. Additlgnave have a number of significant credit exp@suto commercial borrowers, and while the
majority of these borrowers have numerous projes
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make up the total aggregate exposure, if one oermbthese borrowers default or have financialiditfies, we could experience higher credit
losses, which could adversely impact our resulispafrations.

Risks Related to Our Operations
An interruption or breach in security of our inform ation systems may result in financial losses or in a loss of customers.

We depend upon data processing, communicationrdadnation exchange on a variety of computing platfs and networks, including
the internet. We have experienced cybersecuritgémts in the past, which we did not deem mateaiadl may experience them in the future.
We believe that we have implemented appropriatesarea to mitigate potential risks to our technolagy our operations from these
information technology disruptions. However, wematnbe certain that all of our systems are entifielg from vulnerability to attack, despite
safeguards we have instituted. The occurrenceyofalures, interruptions or security breaches af information systems could result in a
material adverse impact to our business, finamdatlition and results of operations through dantagrir reputation, loss of customer
business, additional regulatory scrutiny or expesarcivil litigation and possible financial lialjl. Losses arising from such a breach could
materially exceed the amount of insurance covenagbave, which could adversely affect our resultsperation.

We rely on third-party providers and other supplier s for a number of services that are important to ou r business. An
interruption or cessation of an important service b y any third party could have a material adverse eff  ect on our business.

We are dependent for the majority of our technolaggluding our core operating system, on thirctyparoviders. If these companies were
to discontinue providing services to us, we mayegignce significant disruption to our busines&ny of our third party service providers
experience financial, operational or technologditilculties, or if there is any other disruptiom dur relationships with them, we may be
required to locate alternative sources of suchicesv Assurance cannot be provided that we couddtrete terms with alternative service
sources that are as favorable or could obtain seswvith similar functionality as found in existingstems without the need to expend
substantial resources, if at all, thereby resuliing material adverse impact on our business esults of operations.

Risks Related to Interest Rates and Investments

Our net interest income could be negatively affecte  d by interest rate changes or by significant loan p repayments, which
may adversely affect our financial condition.

Our results of operations are largely dependemtetrinterest income, which is the difference betwie interest and fees earned on
interest-earning assets and the interest paidterest-bearing liabilities. There may be mismatdietsveen the maturity and repricing of our
assets and liabilities that could cause the netést rate spread to compress, depending on tekdau type of changes in the interest rate
environment. Interest rates are highly sensitivenémy factors that are beyond our control, inclgdieneral economic conditions and the
policies of various governmental agencies. In aoiditsome of our customers often have the abttitgrepay loans or redeem deposits with
either no penalties, or penalties that are insiefficto compensate us for the lost income. If austis continue to prepay loans at a higher rate
we may not be able to recover the lost revenueshahay affect our results of operations. A sigrafit reduction in our net interest income
will adversely affect our business and resultsgdrations. If we are unable to manage interestrisiteeffectively, our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be maligrharmed.
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Declines in the value of investment securities held by us could require write-downs, which would reduc € our earnings.

In order to diversify earnings and enhance ligyidite own both debt and equity instruments of goregnt agencies, municipalities and
other companies. We may be required to record impait charges on our investment securities if thefer a decline in value that is
considered other-than-temporary. Additionally, tiadue of these investments may fluctuate depenalintihe interest rate environment, genera
economic conditions and circumstances specifibédgsuer. Volatile market conditions may detriratiptaffect the value of these securities,
such as through reduced valuations due to the pigooeof heightened credit or liquidity risks. Cly@s in the value of these instruments may
result in a reduction to earnings and/or capitdélictv may adversely affect our results of operations

Risks Related to Liquidity
We rely on a stable core deposit base and high qual ity unpledged liquid assets as our primary sources of liquidity.

We are dependent for our funding on a stable bisere deposits and high quality unpledged assetading cash held on deposit at the
Federal Reserve. Our ability to maintain a stable ceposit base is a function of our financiafgenance, our reputation and the security
provided by FDIC insurance, which combined, givestomers confidence in us. If any of these iterasdamaged or come into question, the
stability of our core deposits could be harmeaulf high quality unpledged liquid assets lose valuean not be sold in an orderly fashion, it
could harm our ability to meet our obligations.

Our ability to meet contingency funding needs, in t he event of a crisis that causes a disruption to ou r core deposit base, is
dependent on access to wholesale markets, including funds provided by the FHLB of Pittsburgh.

We own common stock of the FHLB in order to quafify membership in the FHLB system, which enabkesouborrow on our line of
credit with the FHLB that is secured by a blanket lon a significant portion of our loan portfol@hanges or disruptions to the FHLB or the
FHLB system in general may materially impact outigtto meet short and long-term liquidity needsnoeet growth plans. Additionally, we
cannot be assured that the FHLB will be able twigefunding to us when needed, nor can we beiodhat the FHLB will provide funds
specifically to us, should our financial conditiand/or our regulators prevent access to our lirredit. The inability to access this source of
funds could have a materially adverse effect onatnility to meet our customer’s needs. Our finanftéibility could be severely constrained
if we were unable to maintain our access to funding adequate financing is not available at atalele interest rates.

Risks Related to Regulatory Compliance and Legal Ma  tters

Recent legislation enacted in response to market an  d economic conditions may significantly affect our operations,
financial condition and earnings.

Disruptions in the financial system during the paesteral years have resulted in significantly redugusiness activity throughout the
global and U.S. economies, which have the potetttisignificantly affect financial institutions. €Dodd-Frank Act was enacted as a major
reform in response to this financial crisis. ThedBd-rank Act increases regulation and oversighheffinancial services industry, and impose:
restrictions on the ability of institutions withihe industry to conduct business consistent wiskohical practices, including aspects such as
capital requirements, affiliate transactions, conga¢ion, consumer protection regulations and mgega
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regulation, among others. It is not clear what iotgghe DoddFrank Act and the numerous implementing regulatieitisultimately have on th
financial markets or on the U.S. banking and firangervices industries and the broader U.S. aodagleconomies. They may increase our
costs of regulatory compliance and of doing busirseasl otherwise affect our operations, and wiBlijkresult in additional costs and a
diversion of management’s time from other busirssvities, any of which may adversely impact asuits of operations, liquidity or
financial condition. They also may significantlyffeadt the markets in which we do business, the ntarfike and value of our investments and
our ongoing operations, costs and profitability.

Our deposit insurance premiums have decreased but m ay increase in the future, which could have a mater  ial adverse
impact on our future earnings and financial conditi on.

The FDIC insures deposits at FDIC-insured finanicisfitutions, including S&T Bank. The FDIC chardasured financial institutions
premiums to maintain the DIF at a specific levédle Bank’s FDIC insurance premiums recently decta$fer substantial increases beginning
in 2009, but we may pay significantly higher premgaiin the future. Current economic conditions hiaceeased bank failures and additional
failures are expected, all of which decrease the Dhe DoddFrank Act increased the minimum target DIF ratmnirl.15 percent of estimat
insured deposits to 1.35 percent of estimated @tsdeposits. The FDIC must seek to achieve thedeB&ent ratio by September 30, 2020.
Insured institutions with assets of $10 billionnoore are supposed to fund the increase. The FDdGskaed regulations to implement these
provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act. It has, in aduliti established a higher reserve ratio of 2 peragiat long-term goal beyond what is required
by statute. There is no implementation deadlingHer2 percent ratio. The FDIC may increase thesassent rates or impose additional specic
assessments in the future to keep the DIF at oreatt® statutory minimum target. Any increase infeDIC premiums could have an adverse
effect on the Bank’s profits and financial conditidkefer to Supervision and Regulation within Iterof this report for additional information.

Future governmental regulation and legislation coul d limit our growth.

We are subject to extensive state and federal aignl supervision and legislation that govern lyegvery aspect of our operations. The
regulations are primarily intended to protect dépes, customers and the banking system as a whoteshareholders. Failure to comply with
applicable regulations could lead to penalties @ardage to our reputation. Furthermore, as shovautjtr the Dodd-Frank Act, the regulatory
environment is constantly undergoing change andhipact of changes to laws, the rapid implementatibregulations, the interpretation of
such laws or regulations or other actions by existir new regulatory agencies could make regulatompliance more difficult or expensive,
and thus could affect our ability to deliver or erp services, or it could diminish the value of business. The ramifications and uncertaintie:
of the recent increase in government interventiothée U.S. financial system could also adversdigcaius. Refer to Supervision and Regule
within Item 1 of this report for additional inforrii@n.

Negative public opinion could damage our reputation and adversely impact our earnings and liquidity.

Reputational risk, or the risk to our businessnigs, liquidity and capital from negative publigimion, could result from our actual or
alleged conduct in a variety of areas, includirgaleand regulatory compliance, lending practicesparate governance, litigation, ethical iss
or inadequate protection of customer informatiore &pend significant resources to comply with ratprly requirements, and the failure to
comply with such regulations could result in repiotzal harm or significant legal or remedial cof2amage to our reputation could adversely
affect our ability to retain and attract new custosnand adversely impact our earnings and liquidity
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We may be a defendant from time to time in a variet vy of litigation and other actions, which could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of op erations.

From time to time, customers and others make clainastake legal action pertaining to the perforneamfoour responsibilities.
Additionally, the current economic downturn hasufesd in higher customer defaults and a resultaereiase in litigation. Whether customer
claims and legal action related to the performasfeaur responsibilities are founded or unfoundéduch claims and legal actions are not
resolved in a manner favorable to us, they mayltr@ssignificant expenses, attention from managetnamd financial liability. Any financial
liability or reputational damage could have a matexdverse effect on our business, which, in taould have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Our Business Strategy

Our strategy includes growth plans through organic growth and acquisitions. Our financial condition an d results of
operations could be negatively affected if we fail to grow or fail to manage our growth effectively.

We intend to continue pursuing a growth strategdyictv may include organic growth, expansion or asitjons. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to expand our market presence meaisting markets or successfully enter new markethat any such expansion will not
adversely affect our results of operations. Faitormanage our growth effectively could have a matadverse effect on our business, future
prospects, financial condition or results of opiers and could adversely affect our ability to sesfully implement our business strategy.

Our failure to find suitable acquisition candidatessuccessfully bid against other competitorsafmguisitions, could adversely affect our
ability to successfully implement our businesstsgy. If we are successful in acquiring other @gitthe process of integrating such entities
will divert significant management time and res@std/Ne may not be able to integrate successfulbperate profitably any entity we may
acquire. We may experience disruption and incuxpeeted expenses in integrating acquisitions. Theahees could adversely impact our
future prospects and results of operation.

We are subject to competition from both banks and n on-banking companies.

The financial services industry is highly compeétiand we encounter strong competition for depplsians and other financial services ir
our market area. Our principal competitors incladenmercial banks of all types, finance companiesjit unions, mortgage brokers, insura
agencies, trust companies and various sellersvebtiments and investment advice. Many of our naotklzampetitors are not subject to the
same degree of regulation as we are and have adyemobver us in providing certain services. Adddity, many of our competitors are
significantly larger than we are and have greateess to capital and other resources. Failurerpete effectively for deposit, loan and other
banking customers in our markets could cause los®market share, slow our growth rate and mag kavadverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

We may be required to raise capital in the future, but that capital may not be available or may not be on acceptable terms
when it is needed.

We are required by federal regulatory authorittemtintain adequate capital levels to support digers Our ability to raise additional
capital is dependent on capital market conditidrtbat time and on our financial performance antiook. Pending regulatory changes, such a
regulations to implement Basel Il and the Doddrkract, may require us to have more capital thas wa
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previously required. If we cannot raise additiocegbital when needed, we may not be able to mese tregjuirements, and our ability to further
expand our operations through organic growth arugh acquisitions may be adversely affected.

The Warrant we issued to the U.S. Treasury may be d ilutive to holders of our common stock.

The ownership interest of the existing holderswf @ommon stock may be diluted to the extent theamh we issued to the U.S. Treasury
in connection with the sale to the U.S. TreasurthefSeries A Preferred Stock is exercised. Altthowg redeemed all of the outstanding
preferred stock previously issued to the U.S. Tuggsve did not repurchase the outstanding wamadtit will remain outstanding until 2019
or until we repurchase it. The shares of commookstmderlying the warrant represent approximatel) bercent of the shares of our commo
stock outstanding as of January 31, 2013 (inclutliegshares issuable upon exercise of the wamanotal shares outstanding). Although the
U.S. Treasury has agreed not to vote any of theesta common stock it receives upon exercise @fathrrant, a purchaser of any portion of
the warrant or of any shares of common stock aeduipon exercise of the warrant is not bound ks réétriction.

Our ability to pay dividends on our common stock ma y be limited.

Holders of our common stock will be entitled toe®e only such dividends as our Board of Directoey declare out of funds legally
available for such payments. Although we have hisatly declared cash dividends on our common staekare not required to do so and our
Board of Directors could reduce, suspend or eliteimaur dividend at any time. Any decrease or elation to the dividends on our common
stock could adversely affect the market price af@mmmon stock.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

There are no unresolved SEC staff comments.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

We own a four-story building in Indiana, Pennsyhaatocated at 800 Philadelphia Street, which seasour headquarters, executive and
administrative offices. Our Community Banking an@aith Management segments are also located aeaudgharters. The executive office of
our Insurance segment is located in a leased hgilidi Ebensburg, Pennsylvania which is in Camboar@y. Additionally, we lease a building
in Indiana, Pennsylvania that serves as our dateegsing and technology center and we own a twg-btalding directly behind it that serves
as additional administrative offices. Community Biag has 63 locations, including 59 branches latateeleven counties in Pennsylvania, of
which 37 are owned and 22 are leased, as wellras Heparate drive up facilities and one loan ol office in Akron, Ohio. Community
Banking leases an office in Akron, Ohio, that &ffetd by three commercial lenders. Community Bagkifso leases two offices to Insurance.
Wealth Management leases two offices, one in AkeghCounty, Pennsylvania and one in WestmorelanthyoPennsylvania. Wealth
Management also has several staff located witlerCthmmunity Banking offices to provide their seegddo retail customers. Insurance leases
three offices located in three counties in Penrayilv. Insurance also has staff located within tben@unity Banking offices in Jefferson and
Blair counties. The operating and capital lease€fimmunity Banking, Wealth Management and Insugam@ire at various dates through the
year 2054 and generally include options to renew.déditional information regarding the lease cotmmints, refer to Note 10 Premises
Equipment in the Notes to Consolidated Financiate3hents, which is included in Item 8 of this Repor
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The nature of our business generates a certainraroblitigation involving matters arising in thedinary course of business. However, in
management’s opinion, there are no proceedingsipgmal which we are a party or to which our propéstsubject, which, if determined
adversely to us, would be material in relation o shareholders’ equity or financial condition addition, no material proceedings are pendin
nor are known to be threatened or contemplatedhagas by governmental authorities or other parties

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, REL ATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Stock Prices and Dividend Information

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ GlobaleéseMarket System or NASDAQ under the symbol STBAe range of sale prices
for the years 2012 and 2011 is set forth in théethblow and is based upon information obtainethfMASDAQ. As of the close of business
January 31, 2013, we had 3,277 shareholders ofdebividends paid by S&T are primarily providedfn S&T Banks dividends to S&T. Th
payment of dividends by S&T Bank to S&T is subjeecthe restrictions described in Item 8, Note &/i@nd and Loan Restrictions of this
Report. The cash dividends declared per sharehasersbelow.

Price Range of Cash

Common Stock Dividends
2012 Low High Declared
Fourth quarte $16.3:2 $18.5( $ 0.1t
Third quartel 15.6¢ 19.4( 0.1t
Second quarte 16.41 21.9¢ 0.1t
First quarte! 19.6¢ 23.3¢ 0.1t
2011
Fourth quarte $15.21 $20.67 $ 0.1t
Third quartel 15.21 19.4¢ 0.1t
Second quarte 16.6¢ 22.2: 0.1t
First quarte! 20.9( 23.8¢ 0.1t
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Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES — continued

Five-Year Cumulative Total Return
The following chart compares the cumulative totareholder return on our common stock with the dative total shareholder return of
the NASDAQ Composite Index and NASDAQ Bank Index ssuaming a $100 investment in each on December(®T,.2

Total Return Performance
£140
£120
2
C S100
-
E
E $80
$60
$40
2007 2008 2009 20140 2011 2012
s 5& T Bancorp, Inc. NASDAQ Composite — = NASDA() Bank
Period Ending
Index 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12
S&T Bancorp, Inc $100.0( $133.3% $66.3¢€ $ 90.7¢ $ 80.9¢ $ 77.2%
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 60.0z 87.2¢ 103.0¢ 102.2¢ 120.4:
NASDAQ Bank 100.0( 78.4¢ 65.67 74.97 67.1(C 79.6¢

@) The NASDAQ Bank Index contains securities of N¥@Dsted companies classified according to theustdy Classification Benchmark as Banks. These aoiep include banks
providing a broad range of financial services, imting retail banking, loans and money transmissi
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The tables below summarize selected consolidateadial data as of the dates or for the periodsateld and should be read in
conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Anialp$ Financial Condition and Results of Operationkem 7 and the Consolidated

Financial Statements and Notes in Item 8 of thi®re

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)
Total asset $4,526,70. $4,119,99: $4,114,33¢ $4,170,47' $4,438,36!
Securities availab-for-sale 453,09¢ 357,59¢ 288,02! 354,86( 452,71:
Goodwill 175,73: 165,27 165,27 165,16 163,54¢
Net loans and loans held for s, 3,322,63 3,083,76! 3,312,541 3,344,822 3,526,02'
Total deposit: 3,638,42i 3,335,85! 3,317,52 3,304,54. 3,228,411
Securities sold under repurchase agreements aathfddnds

purchase( 62,58: 30,37( 40,65 44,93¢ 113,41¢
Shor-term borrowings 75,00( 75,00( 51,30( 308,47!
Long-term borrowings 34,10: 31,874 29,36¢ 85,89« 180,33:
Junior subordinated debt securit 90,61¢ 90,61¢ 90,61¢ 90,61¢ 90,61¢
Preferred stock, series — — 106,13° 105,37( —
Total shareholde’ equity 537,42. 490,52t 578,66! 553,31¢ 448,69«
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NET INCOME
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands, except per share data)
Interest incom $156,25: $165,07¢ $180,41¢ $195,08 $216,11¢
Interest expens 21,02 27,73 34,57: 49,10t 72,17
Provision for loan losse 22,81t 15,60¢ 29,51: 72,35¢ 12,87¢
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 112,41. 121,73 116,33! 73,62¢ 131,06¢
Noninterest incom 51,91: 44,057 47,21( 38,58( 37,45:
Noninterest expens 122,86: 103,90¢ 105,63: 108,12t 83,80:
Net Income Before Taxe: 41,46: 61,88¢ 57,91: 4,08: 84,72(
Provision (benefit) for income tax 7,261 14,62: 14,43 (3,869 24,517
Net Income 34,20( 47,26¢ 43,48( 7,951 60,20:
Preferred stock dividends and discount amortize — 7,611 6,201 5,91:
Net Income Available to Common Shareholder $ 34,20( $ 39,65: $ 37,27¢ $ 2,03¢ $ 60,20
Per Share Data
Earnings per common sh—basic $ 1.1¢ $ 1.41 $ 1.34 $ 0.07 $ 2.3C
Earnings per common sh—diluted 1.1¢ 1.41 1.34 0.07 2.2¢
Dividends declared per common sh 0.6C 0.6C 0.6C 0.61 1.24
Common book valu 18.0¢ 17.4¢ 16.91 16.1¢ 16.2¢
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This section reviews our financial condition andulés of operations for each of the past threesygaertain reclassifications have been
made to prior periods to place them on a basis eoatyge with the current period presentation. Saabies may include additional time periods
to illustrate trends within our financial staten®nthe results of operations reported in the acemyipng Consolidated Financial Statements
not necessarily indicative of results to be expetatefuture periods.

Important Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Report on Form 10-K contains or incorporatatesnents that we believe are “forward-lookingestatnts” within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 19951€EBe statements generally relate to our finanoiadlition, results of operations, plans,
objectives, future performance or business. Themlliscan be identified by the use of forward-laukianguage such as “will likely result,”
“may,” “are expected to,” “is anticipated,” “estineg’ “forecast,” “projected,” “intends to” or otheimilar words. You should not place undue
reliance on these statements, as they are subjasks and uncertainties, including but not lirdite, those identified under Risk Factors in
Item 1A of this report, the documents incorpordigdeference or other important factors disclosethis report and from time to time in our
other filings with the Securities and Exchange Cassion, or SEC. When considering these forward{logktatements, you should keep in
mind these risks and uncertainties, as well ascanyionary statements we may make. Moreover, youldtreat these statements as speaking
only as of the date they are made and based ornlyffamation actually known to us at that time. Vedertake no obligation to update publ
any forward-looking statements, whether as a reguiew information, future events or otherwise.

These forward-looking statements are based onmuesg@ectations, estimates and projections abaubwsiness and beliefs and
assumptions made by management. These Future §aatemot guarantees of our future performanceramdve certain risks, uncertainties
and assumptions, which are difficult to predictefidfore, actual outcomes and results may diffeerraly from what is expressed or
forecasted in these forward-looking statements.

Future Factors include:

» changes in interest rates, spreads on interesingaansets and interest-bearing liabilities, thepghof the yield curve and interest rate
sensitivity;

e aprolonged period of low interest rates;

e credit losses;

* access to capital in the amounts, at the timeoartte terms required to support our future busiegs

« legislation affecting the financial services indysts a whole, and/or S&T Bancorp, Inc., or S&Tparticular, including the effects of
the Dod«Frank Act;
* regulatory supervision and oversight, includinguieed capital levels, and public policy changesluding environmental regulations;

e increasing price and product/service competitinoluding new entrants;

e rapid technological developments and changes;

» the ability to continue to introduce competitiveanproducts and services on a timely, cost-effedtiasis;
e deterioration of the housing market and reducedasehfor mortgages;

e containing costs and expenses;

e reliance on large customers;

« the outcome of pending and future litigation andegamental proceedings;

e managing our internal growth and acquisitions;

» the possibility that the anticipated benefits froor acquisitions cannot be fully realized in a tiyn@anner or at all, or that integrating
the acquired operations will be more difficult, rdigtive or costly than anticipate
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

< general economic or business conditions, eitheomaity or regionally in Western Pennsylvania, nigyless favorable than expected,
resulting in among other things, a reduced demandredit and other service
» adecline in market capitalization to common boakue, which could warrant further analysis of therging value of goodwill and
could result in an adjustment to its carrying valegulting in a nc-cash charge to net income; ¢
* a continuation of recent turbulence in significpattions of the global financial and real estatekats could impact our performance,
both directly, by affecting our revenues and thiei@af our assets and liabilities and indirectly affecting the economy general
These are representative of the Future Factorsthad affect the outcome of the forward-lookingtetnents. In addition, such statements
could be affected by general industry and marketitions and growth rates, general economic camiti including interest rate and currency
exchange rate fluctuations and other Future Factors

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordatbel.S. generally accepted accounting principtesGAAP. Application of these
principles requires management to make estimasesnations and judgments that affect the amouptated in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and accompanying notes. These estimagesnptions and judgments are based on informatiaitable as of the date of the
Consolidated Financial Statements; accordinglyh&sinformation changes, the Consolidated Findr&tiatements could reflect different
estimates, assumptions and judgments. Certainigolicherently are based to a greater extent amatsts, assumptions and judgments of
management and, as such, have a greater possibifitpducing results that could be materially eliéfint than originally reported.

Our most significant accounting policies are présein Note 1 Summary of Significant AccountingiBiels in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, which are included in Iteaf Bhis report. These policies, along with the ttisares presented in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, provide infoiomabn how significant assets and liabilities aaéred in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and how those values are determined.

We view critical accounting policies to be thosdakhare highly dependent on subjective or complirates, assumptions and judgm
and where changes in those estimates and assusiptiatd have a significant impact on the Consaodiddtinancial Statements. We currently
view the determination of the allowance for loassles, or ALL, income taxes, securities valuatioth@modwill and other intangible assets ti
critical accounting policies. During 2012, we diat significantly change the manner in which we &apbur critical accounting policies or
developed related assumptions or estimates. Werkeaie@ved these related critical accounting es&émaind related disclosures with the Audit
Committee.

Allowance for Loan Losses

Our loan portfolio is our largest category of asset our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Accordingdyhave designed a systematic ALL
methodology which is used to determine our provisar loan losses and ALL on a quarterly basis. Ahk represents managemesigstimat
of probable losses inherent in the loan portfotitha balance sheet date and is presented asragegminst loans in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The ALL is increased by a provision chatgezkpense and reduced by charge-offs, net of/egi@s. Determination of an adequate
ALL is inherently subjective, as it requires estifoas of the occurrence of future events, as wetha timing of such events. The ALL may be
subject to significant changes from period to perio
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

The methodology for determining the ALL has two medmponents: evaluation and impairment testsdifidual loans and evaluation
and impairment tests of certain groups of homogesdémans with similar risk characteristics.

We individually evaluate all substandard, doub#tl nonaccrual commercial loans greater than $0li&mfor impairment. A loan is
impaired when, based on current information anchesyét is probable that a creditor will be unatdecollect all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. For alitited debt restructurings, or TDRs, regardlessizef, as well as all other impaired loans, we
conduct further analysis to determine the probldde and assign a specific reserve to the loaedfreed appropriate. Specific reserves are
established based upon the following three impaitmeethods: 1) the present value of expected futasé flows discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate, 2) the loan’s observabigk®t price or 3) the estimated fair value of thlateral if the loan is collateral dependent.
These analyses involve a high degree of judgmeastimating the amount of loss associated withifipémpaired loans, including estimating
the amount and timing of future cash flows, curestimated fair value of the loan and collaterdligs. Our impairment evaluations consist
primarily of the fair value of collateral methodchee most loans are collateral dependent.

The ALL methodology for groups of homogeneous lo&nswn as the general reserve, is comprised ¢f dafuantitative and qualitative
analysis. We first apply historical loss rates ¢olg of loans with similar risk characteristics ssaates are calculated by historical charge-offs
that have occurred within each pool of loans okerlbss emergence period. Loss emergence refdrs tength of time between a loss event
and a charge-off of the loan. We estimate the émssrgence period to be two years for commercidlestate, or CRE, loans and one year for
all other loan classes. We use a one year look pac&d that results, when considering our lossrgerece periods, in capturing historic losses
for three years for CRE and two years for our offmtfolio segments. After consideration of theslgalculations, management applies
additional qualitative adjustments so that the At reflective of the inherent losses that exighim loan portfolio at the balance sheet date.
Qualitative adjustments are made based upon chamgesnomic conditions, loan portfolio and asaedliy data and credit process changes,
such as credit policies or underwriting standafde evaluation of the various components of the Aédjuires considerable judgment in order
to estimate inherent loss exposures.

We enhanced our ALL model in the fourth quarteP@10 to better align it with regulatory guidancéeTcalculation of the base historical
loss utilizing an average method over the prioe fjears was shortened to include a one to twolgearemergence period depending on the
loan category over a rolling four quarter averalyéh the volatility in the credit cycle at that tenthe shorter time horizon was more indicative
of the loss emergence periods we were experiengingr portfolio. We believe this shorter time hmm provides a better indication of inhel
losses in the loan portfolio given the recent ecoicadownturn. We also refined the qualitative fastbeginning in the fourth quarter of 201(
better align with regulatory guidance. Qualitatigetors became a basis point adjustment appli¢tkthistorical base loss. The combination of
the enhancements to the average method and thigatjualfactors did not materially change the AltiDeecember 31, 2010, resulting in an
increase in the ALL and provision of less than $@iBion. Since December 31, 2010, there have beefurther enhancements to the ALL
methodology.

Our ALL Committee meets quarterly to verify the mleadequacy of the ALL. Additionally, on an anhbasis, the Committee meets to
validate certain aspects of our ALL model. Thisdation includes reviewing the pools of loans tewe the segmentation results in relevant
homogeneous pools of loans. The Committee revibesistorical loss emergence period and look baciogds used to calculate the loss rates
Further, the Committee reviews the qualitativedesfor reasonableness. As a result of this ongwiagitoring process, we may make change
to our ALL methodology to be responsive to the @nit environment.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

At December 31, 2012, approximately 87 percenhefALL related to the commercial loan portfolio.r@mercial loans represent 72
percent of total portfolio loans. Commercial lodwase been more impacted by the economic slowdowmiiinmarkets. The ability of custome
to repay commercial loans is more dependent up@suhbcess of their businesses, continuing incordegyaneral economic conditions. The 1
of loss is higher on such loans compared to consloaas, which have incurred lower losses in ourkeia

There are many factors affecting the ALL; someaqurantitative, while others require qualitative jotgnt. Although we believe our
process for determining the ALL adequately considdlrof the factors that would likely result iredit losses, the process includes subjective
elements and may be susceptible to significantghafo the extent actual outcomes differ from managnt estimates, additional provisions
for loan losses could be required and could adixeestect our earnings or financial position indue periods.

Income Taxes

We estimate income tax expense based on amourgstexpto be owed to the tax jurisdictions wherecaeduct business. The laws are
complex and subject to different interpretationsubyand various taxing authorities. On a quartealsis, we assess the reasonableness of our
effective tax rate based upon our current estirobtle amount and components of pre-tax incomegitedits and the applicable statutory tax
rates expected for the full year.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arerdeted using the asset and liability method andeperted in other assets or other
liabilities, as appropriate, in the ConsolidatedaBae Sheets. Under this method, the net defeareddset or liability is based on the tax effect:
of the differences between the book and tax baisassets and liabilities and recognizes enactedgssin tax rate and laws. When deferre:
assets are recognized, they are subject to a i@ugtowance based on management’s judgmentabether realization is more likely than
not.

Accrued taxes represent the net estimated amoentodiaxing jurisdictions and are reported in othesets or other liabilities, as
appropriate, in the Consolidated Balance SheetseVdkiate and assess the relative risks and apat®pax treatment of transactions and fi
positions after considering statutes, regulatipudicial precedent and other information and maimtax accruals consistent with the evalua
of these relative risks and merits. Changes t@ghienate of accrued taxes occur periodically dughimges in tax rates, interpretations of tax
laws, the status of examinations being conductedxing authorities and changes to statutory, jatland regulatory guidance. These chan
when they occur, can affect deferred taxes anduaddiaxes, as well as the current period’s incarexpense and can be significant to our
operating results.

Tax positions are recognized as a benefit onlyif Tmore likely than not” that the tax positiorould be sustained in a tax examination,
with a tax examination being presumed to occur. ieunt recognized is the largest amount of taetiiethhat is greater than 50 percent lik
of being realized on examination. For tax positinnsmeeting the “more likely than not” test, n& benefit is recorded.

Securities Valuation

We determine the appropriate classification of g&es at the time of purchase. All securities liring both debt and equity securities, are
classified as available-for-sale. These securitiescarried at fair value with net unrealized gaind losses deemed to be temporary reported
separately as a component of other comprehensieenie, net of tax. Realized gains and losses osaleeof
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

available-for-sale securities and other-than-tempoimpairment, or OTTI, charges are recorded witioninterest income in the Consolidated
Statements of Net Income. Realized gains and lasséise sale of securities are determined usingpkeeific-identification method.

We perform a quarterly review of our securitiesdientify those that may indicate an OTTI. Our pplior OTTI within the marketable
equity securities portfolio generally requires anpairment charge when the security is in a losgipador 12 consecutive months, unless fact:
and circumstances would suggest the need for anl @ar to that time. Our policy for OTTI within ¢hdebt securities portfolio is based upon
a number of factors, including but not limited tioe length of time and extent to which the estimiditér value has been less than cost, the
financial condition of the underlying issuer, th#ligy of the issuer to meet contractual obligaspthe best estimate of impairment charge
representing credit losses, the likelihood of theusity’s ability to recover any decline in itsiesated fair value and whether we intend to sell
the investment security or if it is more likely thaot that we will be required to sell the secupitior to the security’s recovery. If the financial
markets experience deterioration, charges to inamnél occur in future periods.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As a result of acquisitions, we have recorded galbdwd identifiable intangible assets on our Cditded Balance Sheets. Goodwill
represents the excess of the purchase price awdaithvalue of net assets purchased.

Goodwill relates to value inherent in the Commuidgnking and Insurance reporting units and theevawdependent upon our ability to
provide quality, cost-effective services in thegad competition from other market participantsisTability relies upon continuing investments
in processing systems, the development of valuedddrvice features and the ease of use of oucsesnAs such, goodwill value is supported
ultimately by profitability that is driven by theolume of business transacted. A decline in earnéisgs result of a lack of growth or the inab
to deliver cost-effective services over sustainedaqals can lead to impairment of goodwill, whichultbadversely impact earnings in future
periods.

We have three reporting units including: Commuignking, Wealth Management and Insurance. The ic&ymalue of goodwill is tested
annually for impairment each October 1 or moredegly if it is determined that we should do so. fivet assess qualitatively whether it is
more likely than not that the fair value of a repay unit is less than its carrying amount. Ourlatve assessment considers such factors as
macroeconomic conditions, market conditions speslify related to the banking industry, our ovefimancial performance and various other
factors. If we determine that it is more likely thaot that the fair value is less than the carrgnpunt, we proceed to test for impairment. The
evaluation for impairment involves comparing therent estimated fair value of each reporting umit$ carrying value, including goodwill. If
the current estimated fair value of a reporting erteeds its carrying value, no additional testingequired and impairment loss is not
recorded. If the estimated fair value of a repartimit is less than the carrying value, furtheuagibn procedures are performed and could
result in impairment of goodwill being recordedrtfer valuation procedures would include allocatimg estimated fair value to all assets anc
liabilities of the reporting unit to determine anplied goodwill value. If the implied value of gasil of a reporting unit is less than the
carrying amount of that goodwill, an impairmentdds recognized in an amount equal to that exé¥sscompleted the annual goodwill
impairment assessment as required in 2012, 201 2@t the results indicated that the fair valueath reporting unit exceeded the carrying
value.

Based upon our qualitative assessment performeaufoannual impairment analysis, we concludedittiatmore likely than not that the
fair value of the reporting units exceeds the dagyalue. Both the national economy and the leesdtern Pennsylvania economy where our
business is concentrated showed signs of staliilizatrer the past year. General economic activity
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

and key indicators such as housing and unemploysf@wed modest improvement. While still challengiihg banking environment also
improved with fewer bank failures, better assetligguamproved earnings and generally better stpdkes. Activity in mergers and acquisition
demonstrated that there is premium value of bankengchises and a number of banks of our size baea able to access the capital markets
over the past year. While our stock price decliglgghtly over the course of the year after incregsn the first quarter, it has been fairly
consistent for the past three quarters. Additignallr overall performance has not significantlyedimrated and we did not identify any other
facts or circumstances that would cause us to adedhat it is more likely than not that the faétue of the reporting units would be less than
the carrying value.

We determine the amount of identifiable intangidsets based upon independent core deposit andnasiwucontract analyses at the time
of acquisition. Intangible assets with finite uddiwes, consisting primarily of core deposit angstomer list intangibles, are amortized using
straight-line or accelerated methods over theimeded weighted average useful lives, ranging fidhto 16 years. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are evaluated for impairment whenewents or changes in circumstances indicate teatt¢hrrying amount may not be
recoverable. No events or changes in circumstanoasred during the years ended December 31, Z@MNA, and 2010.

The financial services industry and securities ra&rkan be adversely affected by declining valdough the economic weakness of
recent years appears to be stabilizing, if econ@mwoiditions result in a prolonged period of ecormméakness in the future, our business
segments, including the Community Banking segnmeat; be adversely affected. In the event that werdehe that either our goodwill or
finite lived intangible assets are impaired, regtgn of an impairment charge could have a sigaificadverse impact on our financial position
or results of operations in the period in whichith@airment occurs.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Developments

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciBgcently Adopted Accounting Standards Updates atRRly Issued Accounting
Standards Updates in the Notes to the Consolidétethcial Statements, which is included in Itent & report, discusses new accounting
pronouncements that we adopted and the expecteattropaccounting pronouncements recently issugutaposed, but not yet required to be
adopted.

Executive Overview

We are a bank holding company headquartered imiadiPennsylvania with assets of $4.5 billion atebeber 31, 2012. We provide a full
range of financial services through offices locdtedllegheny, Armstrong, Blair, Butler, Cambriala@on, Clearfield, Indiana, Jefferson,
Washington and Westmoreland counties of Pennsydvaie provide full service retail and commerciatkiag products as well as cash
management services, insurance, estate planningdauhistration, employee benefit plan investmeahagement and administration,
corporate services and other fiduciary services.d@mmon stock trades on the Nasdaq Global Selack&t under the symbol “STBA.”

We earn revenue primarily from interest on loans securities and fees charged for financial sesvirevided to our customers. Offsett
these revenues are the cost of deposits and athdinfy sources, provision for loan losses and atperating costs such as: salaries and
employee benefits, occupancy, data processingaanexpense.

Our mission is to become the financial servicewvider of choice in Western Pennsylvania by delivgréxceptional service and value, «
customer at a time. Our strategic plan focusesrowtly through de novo expansion, acquisition omaig growth. Our strategic plan include
collaborative model that combines expertise frohofbur business segments and focuses on satisgdanh customer’s individual financial
objectives.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

During 2012, we grew primarily through acquisitiand successfully completed two mergers adding appadely $368 million in assets.
On March 9, 2012, we completed our acquisition @mversion of Mainline Bancorp, Inc., or Mainlirebank holding company located in
Ebensburg, Pennsylvania. Mainline had one bankidialng, Mainline National Bank, with eight branchesated throughout Cambria and B
counties in Western Pennsylvania, adding $129.6amiin loans and $206.0 million in deposits. Théat acquisition cost of Mainline was
$27.8 million. On August 13, 2012, we further exgrath our community banking network with the completof our acquisition of Gateway
Bank of Pennsylvania, a two branch bank with $98ilfion in loans and $105.4 million in deposits.€Ttotal acquisition cost of Gateway Bank
was $19.8 million. As of December 31, 2012, Gatewayg operating as a separate wholly-owned subgidfed8&T, with all transactions since
the acquisition date consolidated in our finanstatements. On February 8, 2013, Gateway Bank veaged into S&T Bank, and their two
branches are now fully operational branches of 8&nk.

As a result of these acquisitions, our earning®virepacted by one-time merger related expense6.6frillion.

Organic loan growth remained a challenge for a nitgjof 2012, however, we did experience positirentls in the later part of the year.
An important strategic initiative as we move ir2@l3 is loan growth. In August 2012, we expandedcommercial lending footprint into
Northeastern Ohio through the opening of a loadpcton office in Akron. We are retaining 10, 15&20 year residential real estate loan
our portfolio, rather than selling these loanshia secondary market. Additionally, we are hiringssmed lenders in both our commercial and
residential real estate areas to improve orgaic growth.

Asset quality remained a challenge for us throug6ad2, especially in the first half of the yeaheTprovision for loan losses increased
$7.2 million to $22.8 million for 2012 compared$d5.6 million in 2011. Net loan charge-offs incred$o $25.2 million compared to $18.2
million in 2011. During the first half of 2012, vexperienced increased charge-offs primarily inaammercial construction loan portfolio as
projects in this portfolio slowed due to the ecoimanvironment and as a result, appraised valuelindd. Asset quality stabilized in the
second half of the year resulting in a lower primridor loan losses. Our nonperforming assets tatleedr lowest level since 2008 at
$55.0 million at December 31, 2012. Additionallye Wave been actively managing our substandard esnfting in a decrease of $49.1
million, or 26.0 percent at December 31, 2012 camgao December 31, 2011.

Our capital ratios increased slightly from 2011 amahain significantly above the “well capitalizettitesholds of federal bank regulatory
agencies with a leverage ratio of 9.31 percent ltiesk-based capital ratio of 11.98 percent analtrisk based capital ratio of 15.39 percent.

In 2013, our performance will be influenced by asgality. If the economy improves, we should extgecsee progress in reducing net
charge-offs, nonperforming loans and provisionléan losses. However, a return of the economic dtawn, regionally or nationally, could
cause deterioration in our asset quality. We reizega greater dependence on commercial loans nggsesus to credit risk and that we may
have more volatility in nonperforming loans andriadarge-offs when problems do occur. We will naitegthis risk through our disciplined
credit risk management practices, the review ohdaans by our Criticized Asset Committee and cared sound underwriting practices.
Because the majority of our revenue comes fronintetest income, net loan and deposit growth, caedbiwith the relative pricing and mix of
that growth are major factors that affect our opjers and financial condition. Our net interest giamwill be a challenge as we move into
2013, especially if the low interest rate enviromingersists.
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Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2012

Net Income

Our net income available to common shareholdersedsed $5.5 million to $34.2 million or $1.18 pkare in 2012 compared to $39.7
million or $1.41 per share in the previous yeare HBecrease in net income was primarily a resuinahcrease of $19.0 million in noninterest
expense, which includes $6.0 million in oi@e merger related expenses. Additionally, ounjmion for loan losses increased $7.2 million.
also experienced a decline in our net interestrimeof $2.1 million compared to the prior year, duéack of organic loan growth and the low
interest rate environment. These decreases wetiallyaoffset by a $7.9 million increase in nonirget income primarily due to increased
mortgage banking and wealth management fees and gaisecurity sales, and a decrease of $7.4 miliprovision for income taxes.
Additionally, we did not have preferred dividend/peents due to the redemption of $108.7 million @&ferred stock from the U.S. Department
of Treasury’s Capital Purchase Program in Decerab2011.

Return on Equity and Assets
The table below presents our consolidated profitglzind common equity to assets ratio for eactheflast three years:

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010

Common return on average ass 0.7%% 0.97% 0.9(%
Common return on average eqt 6.62% 6.7&% 6.58%
Dividend payout ratic 50.7%  42.4%  44.7"%
Common equity to asset ra: 11.8% 11.91% 11.4&%

Net Interest Income

Our principal source of revenue is net interesbine. Net interest income represents the differéeteeen the interest and fees earned ol
interest-earning assets and the interest paidterest-bearing liabilities. Net interest incomaffected by changes in the average balance of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearingiligsiland changes in interest rates and spreadstaditdng consistent spreads between interest
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitiesgaificant to our financial performance becauseimerest income comprised 73 percent of
operating revenue (net interest income plus noreésténcome, excluding security gains/losses) ih228nd 76 percent of operating revenue in
2011. Refer to page 57 Explanation of Use of NonABA-inancial Measures for a discussion of operatavgnue as a non-GAAP financial
measure. The level and mix of interest-earningtasa®l interest-bearing liabilities are managedunyAsset and Liability Committee, or
ALCO, in order to mitigate interest rate and ligtyidisks of the balance sheet. A variety of ALC@ategies were implemented, within
prescribed ALCO risk parameters, to maintain areptable net yield on interest-earning assets (retdst margin) given the challenges of the
current interest rate environment.

The interest income on interest-earning assetshandet interest margin are presented on a fuklglike-equivalent basis. The fully taxable:
equivalent basis adjusts for the tax benefit obme on certain tax-exempt loans and investmentgjube federal statutory tax rate of 35
percent for each period. We believe this measubetihe preferred industry measurement of netésténcome that provides a relevant
comparison between taxable and non-taxable amounts.
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The following table reconciles interest income ther Consolidated Statements of Net Income to rietést income adjusted to a fully

taxable-equivalent basis:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Interest income per Consolidated Statements ofid@ime $ 156,25: $ 165,07 $ 180,41
Adjustment to fully taxabl-equivalent basi 4,471 4,15¢ 4,62
Interest income adjusted to fully taxs-equivalent basi 160,72: 169,23: 185,04¢
Interest expense per Consolidated Statements dihkieme 21,02« 27,73: 34,57:
Net Interest Income Adjusted to Fully Taxable-equivalent Basis (no-GAAP) $ 139,69¢ $ 141,50( $ 150,47:
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Average Balance Sheet and Net Interest Income Analy  sis

The following table provides information regardithg average balances, interest and yields earnedeyest-earning assets and the
average balances, interest and rates paid on stieearing liabilities:

2012 2011 2010
Yield/ Yield/ Yield/
Average Average Average
December 31 Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
(dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
Loans()® $3,213,011  $147,81¢ 45%  $3,216,85  $156,84! 4.8t%  $3,386,10:  $172,31! 5.09%
Taxable investment securiti 297,16¢ 7,351 2.47% 273,32( 8,47¢ 3.1(% 226,71 8,37 3.6%%
Tax-exempt investment securiti(2) 90,527 4,801 5.3(% 62,60' 3,611 5.71% 76,70: 4,35¢ 5.66%
Federal Home Loan Bank sto 17,11°¢ 33 0.1% 20,09: — —% 23,33¢ — —%
Interes-bearing balance with ban 289,94 71¢€ 0.25% 123,71 30z 0.24% 49 — 0.34%
Total Interest-earning Assets 3,907,77! 160,72. 4.1(% 3,696,58 169,23 4.58% 3,712,90! 185,04¢ 4.98%
Noninteres-earning asset:
Cash and due from ban 53,517 50,45¢ 90,46:
Premises and equipment, | 38,46( 38,42 39,14:
Other asset 361,98: 344,37t 340,23:
Less allowance for loan loss (49,196 (57,247 (59,29))
Total Assets $4,312,53i $4,072,60: $4,123,45!
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing demand and money mar $ 615,71 $ 674 0.11% $ 536,08! $ 73¢ 0.14% $ 518,38 $ 122 0.24%
Savings 902,88 2,35¢ 0.26% 761,27: 1,267 0.17% 749,32 2,127 0.26%
Certificates of depos 1,104,26. 13,76¢ 1.24% 1,181,82 20,94¢ 1.71% 1,300,80: 25,37( 1.95%
Securities sold under repurchase agreern 47,38¢ 82 0.17% 41,58¢ 58 0.1%% 46,49( 64 0.1%%
Shor-term borrowings 50,21: 122 0.24% 551 2 0.32% 32,47 14¢€ 0.45%
Long-term borrowings 33,84: 1,107 3.26% 31,65: 1,091 3.45% 42,92( 1,64: 3.82%
Junior subordinated debt securit 90,61¢ 2,91¢ 3.21% 90,61¢ 3,63t 4.01% 90,61¢ 4,00¢ 4.42%
Total Interest-bearing Liabilities 2,844,92. 21,02¢ 0.74% 2,643,58 27,73: 1.05% 2,781,01. 34,57: 1.24%
Noninteres-bearing liabilities
Noninteres-bearing deman 877,05t 792,91: 728,70¢
Other liabilities 73,74¢ 50,92: 47,06
Shareholde’ equity 516,81: 585,18t 566,67(
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $4,312,53! $4,072,60: $4,123,45!
Net Interest Income $139,69¢ $141,50( $150,47.
Net Yield on Interesi-earning Assets 3.57% 3.8% 4.05%

@) For the purpose of these computations, nonaccrlgiags are included in the daily average loan ameunitstanding
(@ Tax-exempt income is on a fully taxable-equivieh@sis, including the dividend-received deducfmmequity securities, using the statutory fede@iporate income tax rate of 35
percent for 2012, 2011 and 20:
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The following table presents a summary of the ckang interest earned and interest paid resultimmg thanges in average balances and
changes in rates:

2012 Compared to 2011 2011 Compared to 2010
Increase (Decrease) Due to (1) Increase (Decrease) Due to (1)
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
(in thousands)
Interest earned ol
Loans(® $ (187 $ (8839 $(9,020 $ (8619 $(6,86) $ (15479
Taxable investment securiti 73¢ (1,869) (1,129 1,722 (1,620 10z
Tax-exempt investment securiti(?) 1,612 (420 1,19: (800) 57 (74%)
Federal Home Loan Bank Sto — 33 33 — — —
Interes-bearing balance with bar 40¢€ 9 41F 41¢ (117) 30z
Total Interest-earning Assets 2,57(C (11,080 (8,510 (7,272) (8,54)) (15,81))
Interest paid or
Interes-bearing demand and money mar $ 11c $ @17 $ (65 % 42 $ (529 $ (48]
Savings 23¢ 852 1,08¢ 34 (899 (860)
Certificates of depos (1,379 (5,80€) (7,180 (2,32)) (2,109 (4,429
Securities sold under repurchase agreerr 7 22 29 @ 4) (12)
Shor-term borrowings 157 (36) 121 (143) (D) (144
Long-term borrowings 75 (59) 17 (43]) (123) (552)
Junior subordinated debt securit — (719) (719) — (36¢) (36¢%)
Total Interest-bearing Liabilities (789) (5,919 (6,708 (2,826 (4,019 (6,840
Change in Net Interest Income $ 3,35¢ $ (5,16) $ (1,809 $ (4446 $ (452) $ (8,97)

@) The change in interest due to both volume andhatebeen allocated to volume and rate changesdpgution to the relationship of the absolute dolamounts of the change in ea
(@ Tax-exempt income is on a fully taxable-equivatesis, including the dividend-received deducfmmequity securities, using the statutory fedemiporate income tax rate of 35
percent for 2012, 2011 and 20:

Net interest income and net interest margin deexkthy $1.8 million or 26 basis points compared@d12 The low interest rate
environment was a challenge to our net interestimein 2012, as earning assets rates reset fhateotir ability to offset those decreases on
the funding side.

Interest income decreased $8.5 million to $160/Haniin 2012 compared to $169.2 million in 2011atBs decreased on almost all earnin
asset categories due to the low interest rate @mvient. The decrease in net interest income wasapity driven by a 29 basis point decreas
average loan yields to 4.59 percent compared ® @eBcent in 2011. Average loan balances werevelgtunchanged with a decline of $3.8
million despite the addition of approximately $1@&illion of average loans related to the acquisitiof Mainline and Gateway. Loans from
acquisitions were offset by significant loan pagdfiroughout the past two years, primarily in cameercial loan portfolio. We retained more
residential mortgage loans in the portfolio durihg year, rather than selling them in the secondesket. Average investments increased
$51.8 million compared to the prior year; howewkre to declining yields interest income was esaéytinchanged. The interest-bearing
balance with banks is primarily funds held at tleeléral Reserve and increased $166.2 million, or4l@drcent, during 2012 due to a lack of
organic loan growth. Overall, the fully taxable-aglent yield on total interest-earning assets el@sed 48 basis points to 4.10 percent in 201.
as compared to 4.58 percent in 2011.

Interest expense decreased $6.7 million to $21libmfor 2012 compared to $27.7 million for 20Ihe primary driver of the decrease in
interest expense was the maturities of higheriegsEiDs. For 2012, average interbstring deposits increased by $143.7 million t® $#lion
as compared to $2.5 billion 2011. The increasev@rage interest-bearing deposits is attributed to a
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$141.6 million average balance increase in savileg®sits and a $79.6 million average balance isereainterest-bearing demand and mone
market accounts, partially offset by an averagarxz decrease of $77.6 million in CDs. The incréasieposits includes the addition of
$171.0 million in average deposits related to ttguasitions of Mainline and Gateway. The cost giakgts was 0.48 percent, a decrease of 22
basis points from 2011 primarily due to CDs matgitamd being replaced by demand and other loweresiteate deposits. The cost of long-
term borrowed funds decreased 64 basis points2®@ercent from 3.87 percent in 2011. However ctist of securities sold under repurchas
agreements, or REPOs, and other short-term borréuvet$ increased 8 basis points to 0.21 perceatrasult of increased utilization of more
expensive short-term borrowings compared to custeepms. Overall, the yield on interest-bearingiliies decreased 31 basis points to 0.74
percent for 2012 as compared to 2011.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is the amount todxed to the ALL after adjusting for charge-offs aadoveries to bring the ALL to a level
considered appropriate to absorb probable loséesent in the loan portfolio. The provision for tol@sses increased $7.2 million to $22.8
million for 2012 compared to $15.6 million for 201Met charge-offs were $25.2 million or 0.78 petagraverage loans in 2012, compared to
$18.2 million or 0.56 percent of average loans@a R During the first half of 2012, we experienetelvated charge-offs primarily in our
commercial construction loan portfolio as projdntthis portfolio slowed due to the economic enmireent and as a result, appraised values
declined. Refer to the Allowance for Loan Lossegisa of this Management’s Discussion and AnalggiEinancial Condition and Results of
Operations, or MD&A, for further details.

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 $ Change
(in thousands)
Security gains (losses), r $ 3,01¢ $ (129 $ 3,14(
Debit and credit card fet 11,13 10,88¢ 24k
Service charges on deposit accol 9,99: 9,97¢ 14
Wealth management fe 9,80¢ 8,18( 1,62¢
Insurance fee 8,44¢ 8,31« 134
Mortgage banking 2,87¢ 1,19¢ 1,67¢
Other Income

Interest rate swap fe 1,03¢ — 1,03¢

Other 5,60( 5,621 (22)
Total Other Noninterest Incon 6,63¢ 5,621 1,01¢
Total Noninterest Income $51,91: $44,057 $ 7,85¢
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Noninterest income increased $7.9 million in 20@&hpared to 2011, with increases in almost all nen@st income categories. The
primary drivers were gains on sales of securiigsyell as increased fees from wealth managememtgage banking and interest rate swap
fee income.

The $3.1 million increase in security gains relatethe sales of two equity positions during tharyas a result of increases in value after
merger announcements. Mortgage interest rates nechait very attractive levels throughout 2012 dgvétrong customer demand. As a result
we experienced an increase of $1.7 million in maggbanking fee activity in 2012 compared to therprear. During 2012, we sold $82.9
million of 1-4 family mortgage loans to Fannie Ma@mpared to $67.9 million in 2011 which increaseelsfby $0.5 million. Additionally, in
2011 we recorded an impairment charge related tbgage servicing rights of $0.4 million that refied a decline in the remaining value of the
mortgage servicing asset compared to no impairine2®12. The remaining increase in mortgage ban&gityity primarily related to a net
gain on our mortgage derivative due to a strongigagie pipeline at the end of 2012 compared to eedee in 2011. During the fourth quarter
of 2012, we began to retain 20 year mortgages mithe loan portfolio which were previously pricettlaunderwritten using secondary market
terms and guidelines. This retention of 20 yeartgages is in addition to the 10 and 15 year moggahich we have been retaining in the
portfolio since the second quarter of 2011.

Wealth management fees increased $1.6 million dimproved brokerage business of $0.8 million assalt of adding new producers ¢
our trust income increased $0.6 million due torameéase in assets under management of $201.0milimpared to the prior year.

Interest rate swap fees have increased $1.0 mitliompared to the prior year as our customers hptegldo lock in low interest rates for
longer terms.

Noninterest Expense

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 $ Change
(in thousands)
Salaries and employee bene® $ 57,92( $ 51,07¢ $ 6,84:
Data processin®) 7,32¢ 6,85 473
Net occupanc® 7,60 6,94: 66C
Professional services and le® 4,61( 5,43 (827)
Furniture and equipme 5,26% 4,941 321
Marketing® 3,20¢ 3,01¢ 187
Other taxe: 3,20( 3,381 (187)
FDIC assessmel 2,92¢ 3,57( (644
Merger related expen: 5,96¢ — 5,96¢
Other expense:
Joint venture amortizatic 4,19¢ 3,30z 897
Other real estate ownt 2,16¢ 1,51¢ 64¢
Unfunded loan commitmen 1,811 (1,479 3,28¢
Amortization of intangible: 1,70¢ 1,73 (28)
Other® 14,957 13,60 1,35¢
Total Other Noninterest Expen 24,84 18,68¢ 6,15¢
Total Noninterest Expense $122,86: $103,90¢ $18,95¢

W Excludes or-time merger related expenses for 2C
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We had an increase of $19.0 million in nonintesegtense in 2012, compared to 2011, with the laigestases in salaries and employee
benefits and one-time merger related expenses.

During the first quarter of 2012, we acquired MaialBancorp, Inc., an eight branch institution tepeadtered in Ebensburg, Pennsylvania
and during the third quarter of 2012, we acquirede@ay Bank, a two branch institution headquarteréddcMurray, Pennsylvania. In 2012,
we incurred one-time merger related expenses &fidilion of change in control, severance and o#traployee costs, $2.3 million in data
processing contract termination fees, $1.0 milfimmprofessional and legal fees and $0.4 milliomibfer expenses. We expect to incur
approximately $1.2 million of additional mergeratdd expenses related to the conversion of Gat®aal into S&T Bank on February 8,
2013.

Excluding one-time merger related expenses, salarid employee benefits increased by $6.8 miltbori,3.4 percent, compared to 2011.
Approximately $2.3 million of the increase relatecadditional employees added as a result of thaisitions. We added 53 former Mainline
employees to our staff in March 2012 and 19 for@ateway employees in August 2012. Further incrgasatary expenses in 2012 were
annual merit increases of approximately $1.7 nnlli@ur pension expense increased $2.0 million 22{ue to an increase in our pension
liability as a result of a significant decreasel60 basis points in our discount rate from therprear. Payroll incentives and commissions
increased $0.4 million due to increased produdticareas including wealth management and mortgagkibg.

Excluding one-time merger related expenses, datzepsing expenses increased by $0.5 million, piiyndwe to $0.3 million related to an
increased customer processing base due to thes#t@ns and an additional $0.2 million related mouggrade to our Wealth Management data
processing system. Net occupancy expenses incregskel 7 million due to the addition of 10 branchesn the acquisitions.

We invest in partnerships that provide federal medax benefits through tax credits. The partngsshre amortized over the life of the
expected tax credits. Joint venture amortizati@ndased by $0.9 million year over year due to tiag projects going into service during
2012. Further, we recorded impairment charges & #0llion during the year where the benefit of the credits had been fully utilized and no
future benefits were expected to be realized.

We did see decreases in several expense catedexidading one-time merger related expenses, legdlprofessional expense decreasec
by $0.8 million, due in part to one-time legal @awtounting fees incurred in early 2011. FDIC expatecreased by $0.6 million as we
benefited from a lower FDIC assessment based oretligions made by the FDIC that went into effeptiAl, 2011.

Within other noninterest expense, the reserve ifunded loan commitments increased $3.3 millioa assult of increased volume in our
construction commitments coupled with higher histdrloss rates. In the prior year we had a reverfsdl.5 million of unfunded loan
commitments. The reversal in 2011 was primarilyilaitable to the decline in commitments at thagtiadditionally, $0.8 million of the
reserve reversal in 2011 related to an expensgnersd in 2008 for a letter of credit that we weoatractually obligated to fulfill. During
2011, the letter of credit was drawn upon and fdmated a corresponding loan charge-off was recoMedalso had an increase of $0.6 million
in other real estate owned, or OREO, expense, piinthue to two properties that were sold durind.2@t values significantly below the
appraised values, as well as increases in selkpgreses pertaining to these properties.

Our efficiency ratio, which measures noninteregtagse as a percent of noninterest income plusiteeest income, on a fully taxable-
equivalent basis, excluding security gains/losses, 65 percent for 2012, including the one-timegaerelated expenses of $6.0 million, and
56 percent for 2011. Refer to page 57 Explanatfdidse of Non-GAAP Financial Measures for a discois®f this non-GAAP financial
measure.
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Federal Income Taxes

We recorded a federal income tax provision of $filion in 2012 compared to $14.6 million in 20The effective tax rate, which is the
provision for income taxes as a percentage of pietzome was 17.5 percent in 2012 compared to @&8réent in 2011. The effective tax rate
decreased due to tax-exempt income and tax creditaining relatively constant on a declining preitecome. We ordinarily generate an
annual effective tax rate that is less than theutstey rate of 35 percent due to benefits resulfingh tax-exempt interest, excludable dividend
income, tax-exempt interest on bank owned life iasae, or BOLI and tax benefits associated with lloeome Housing Tax Credits, or
LIHTC, and Federal Historic Tax Credit Projects.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Net Income

Net income available to common shareholders fol204s $39.7 million resulting in diluted earnings pommon share of $1.41
compared to $37.3 million or $1.34 diluted earnipgs common share in 2010. The increase in nehieomas primarily a result of a reduction
of $13.9 million in provision for loan losses, pallly offset with decreases of $8.5 million in rieterest income and $3.2 million in noninterest
income.

Return on Equity and Assets
The table below presents our consolidated profitgl@ind common equity to asset ratio for eachheflast three years:

Years Ended December 31 2011 2010 2009

Common return on average ass 0.97% 0.9(% 0.0%%
Common return on average eqt 6.7&% 6.58% 0.37%
Dividend payout ratic 42.40% 44.7%% 1247.6%
Common equity to asset ra: 11.9% 11.48% 10.78%

Net Interest Income

The interest income on interest-earning assetsrandet interest margin are presented on a fullglikee-equivalent basis. The fully taxable
equivalent basis adjusts for the tax benefit obine on certain tax-exempt loans and investmentgjubkie federal statutory tax rate of 35
percent for each period. We believe this measubetihe preferred industry measurement of netésténcome that provides a relevant
comparison between taxable and non-taxable amounts.

The following table reconciles interest income ther Consolidated Statements of Net Income to rietést income adjusted to a fully
taxable-equivalent basis:

Years Ended December 31 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

Interest income per Consolidated Statements ofieime $ 165,07¢ $ 180,41 $ 195,08
Adjustment to fully taxabl-equivalent basi 4,15¢ 4,62 5, 20z
Interest income adjusted to fully taxs-equivalent basi 169,23: 185,04t 200,28t
Interest expense per Consolidated Statements dihkieme 27,73: 34,57 49,10¢
Net Interest Income Adjusted to Fully Taxable-equivalent Basis (no-GAAP) $ 141,50( $ 150,47. $ 151,18«
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Average Balance Sheet and Net Interest Income Analy  sis

The following table provides information regardithg average balances, interest and yields earnedeyest-earning assets and the
average balances, interest and rates paid on stieearing liabilities:

2011 2010 2009
Yield/ Yield/ Yield/
Average Average Average

December 31 Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
(dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
Loans()® $3,216,85  $156,84! 48%%  $3,386,100  $172,31 5.09%  $3,473,16'  $182,76 5.26%
Taxable investment securiti 273,32( 8,47¢ 3.1(% 226,71« 8,37: 3.6% 286,29! 11,89° 4.16%
Tax-exempt investment securiti(2) 62,607 3,611 5.71% 76,70: 4,35¢ 5.66% 103,83: 5,62¢ 5.42%
Federal Home Loan Bank sto 20,09: — —% 23,33¢ — —% 23,54: — —%
Interes-bearing balance with ban 123,71« 302 0.24% 48 — 0.34% 54 — 0.17%
Federal funds sol — — —% — — —% 25¢ 1 0.25%
Total Interest-earning Assets 3,696,58i 169,23¢ 4.58% 3,712,90 185,04t 4.98% 3,887,15! 200,28¢ 5.15%
Noninteres-earning asset:

Cash and due from ban 50,45¢ 90,46: 67,40"

Premises and equipment, | 38,42 39,14: 41,91

Other asset 344,37t 340,23« 320,80:

Less allowance for loan loss (57,24) (59,29)) (57,98Y)
Total Assets $4,072,60: $4,123,45! $4,259,28:
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS '’ EQUITY
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing demand and money mar $ 536,08! $ 73¢ 0.14% $ 518,38 $ 1,22 0.24% $ 485,74 $ 1,61¢ 0.3%%
Savings 761,27: 1,267 0.17% 749,32! 2,125 0.2&% 758,21t 3,46t 0.4€%
Certificates of depos 1,181,82: 20,94¢ 1.71% 1,300,80: 25,37( 1.95% 1,367,37. 33,35¢ 2.4/%
Federal funds purchas — — —% — — —% 11t 1 0.7<%
Securities sold under repurchase agreern 41,58¢ 5] 0.1%% 46,49( 64 0.14% 86,61¢ 14C 0.1€%
Shor-term borrowings 551 2 0.32% 32,47 14€ 0.45% 104,21 544 0.52%
Long-term borrowings 31,65 1,091 3.45% 42,92( 1,64: 3.8% 127,04 5,56¢ 4.38%
Junior subordinated debt securit 90,61¢ 3,63t 4.01% 90,61¢ 4,00 4.42% 90,61¢ 4,41° 4.3¢%
Total Interest-bearing Liabilities 2,643,58 27,73: 1.05% 2,781,01. 34,57: 1.24% 3,019,94. 49,10¢ 1.62%
Noninteres-bearing liabilities
Noninteres-bearing deman 792,91: 728,70¢ 637,43:
Other liabilities 50,92« 47,06« 57,371
Shareholdel equity 585,18t 566,67( 544,53!
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $4,072,60: $4,123,45 $4,259,28!
Net Interest Income $141,50( $150,47: $151,18:
Net Yield on Interes-earning Assets 3.8%% 4.05% 3.8¢%

@) For the purpose of these computations, nonaccrlgags are included in the daily average loan ameunitstanding
() Tax-exempt income is on a fully taxable-equiviatesis, including the dividend-received deducfmmequity securities, using the statutory fedemiporate income tax rate of 35
percent for 2011, 2010 and 20(
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The following table presents a summary of the ckang interest earned and interest paid resultimyg thanges in average balance and
changes in rates:

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009
Increase (Decrease) Due to (1) Increase (Decrease) Due to (1)
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
(in thousands)
Interest earned ol
Loans(® $ (8619 $(686) $ (15479 $ (458) $ (5867 $ (10,449
Taxable investment securiti 1,722 (1,620 10z (2,47¢€) (1,04¢) (3,529
Tax-exempt investment securiti(?) (800) 57 (74%) (1,469 19¢ (1,270)
Interest bearing balance with bz 41¢ (117) 302 — — —
Other investment — — — — — —
Federal funds sol — — — [€0)] — [€))]
Total Interest-earning Assets (7,272) (8,54)) (15,81%) (8,527 (6,716) (15,247)
Interest paid or
Interes-bearing demand and money mar $ 42 $ (529 $ (@481 $ 10¢ $ (50%) $ (396
Savings deposil 34 (8949 (860) (41) (1,297) (1,339¢)
Certificates of depos (2,327 (2,10%) (4,42 (1,629 (6,369 (7,98%)
Federal funds purchas — — — (D) — 1)
Securities sold under repurchase agreerr (] 4) (11 (65) (12) (76)
Shor-term borrowings (14%) 2) (144 (379 (24) (39%)
Long-term borrowings (431) (121) (552) (3,687 (23¢) (3,925
Junior subordinated debt securit — (36€) (36€) — (410) (410)
Total Interest-bearing Liabilities (2,826 (4,019 (6,840 (5,687 (8,849 (14,537)
Change in Net Interest Income $ (4,446 $ (4,52%) $ (8,97) $ (2,849 $ 2,13 $  (71))

@) The change in interest due to both volume andhatebeen allocated to volume and rate changesapgtion to the relationship of the absolute dokamounts of the change in ea
(@ Tax-exempt income is on a fully taxable-equiviah@sis, including the dividend-received deducfmmequity securities, using the statutory fede@iporate income tax rate of 35
percent for 2011, 2010 and 20(

On a fully taxable-equivalent basis, net interasbme decreased by $9.0 million in 2011 comparetDi®. The decline in the net interest
margin from 4.05 percent in 2010 to 3.83 percerQhl is a result of loan repricing and replacenvehime at lower rates and an unfavorable
shift in asset mix, offset in part by lower ratesdoon deposits and a better funding mix betwe@osiés, including noninterestearing deman
deposits and borrowings.

The shift in asset mix during 2011 is primarilyleeted by the $169.2 million decrease in averagadand an increase in average interes
bearing balance with banks of $123.7 million. Theiest-bearing balance with banks is primarilydheld at the Federal Reserve and had
increased during 2011 as a result of loan pay damdswveak demand for new loans. The yield on aeel@@ns and taxable investment
securities decreased 21 basis points and 59 baisits prespectively. Overall, the fully taxable-aalent yield on total interest-earning assets
decreased 40 basis points to 4.58 percent in 20tbrapared to 4.98 percent in 2010.

For 2011, average interest-bearing deposits demildas$89.3 million to $2.5 billion as comparedsf6 billion in 2010. The decrease in
average interest-bearing deposits is attributed$19.0 million average balance decrease in Ciimaply in brokered CDs. The cost of
deposits totaled 0.93 percent, a decrease of 19 paisits from 2010 due to lower rates paid on d@poThe cost of securities sold under
repurchase agreements, or REPOs, and other shorb@rowed funds decreased 14 basis points tofki&nt as a result of lower short-term
rates as compared to 2010. Overall, the yield terést-bearing liabilities decreased 19 basis pdmiL.05 percent for 2011 as compared to
2010.
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Positively affecting net interest income was a $221illion increase in average net free funds du#011, as compared to 2010. Average
net free funds are the excess of noninterest-bgaemand deposits, other noninterest-bearing llidsiland shareholders’ equity over
noninterest-earning assets. The largest drivaiefricrease in net free funds was an increasernimtavest-bearing demand deposit average
balances, which is a result of limited investmeptians available to our customers in the low ratei®nment.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is the amount toded to the ALL after adjusting for charge-offs aadoveries to bring the ALL to a level
considered appropriate to absorb probable lossesent in our loan portfolio. The provision for fobbsses decreased to $15.6 million for 2
compared to $29.5 million for 2010. The substamt@trease in provision for loan losses was a reétifte overall improving economic
conditions from the prior year and a significant@@se in net charge-offs. Net charge-offs deccems$18.2 million, 0.56 percent of average
loans in 2011 from $37.7 million or 1.11 percentwérage loans in 2010 as overall asset qualityargd during 2011. Refer to the Allowance
for Loan Losses section of this MD&A for furthertds.

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31 2011 2010 $ Change
(in thousands)
Security gains (losses), r $ (129 $ 274 $ (399
Debit and credit card fet 10,88¢ 9,95¢ 93t
Service charges on deposit accol 9,97¢ 11,17¢ (1,200
Insurance fee 8,31« 8,312 2
Wealth management fe 8,18( 7,80¢ 372
Mortgage banking 1,19¢ 3,40: (2,204
Other income
Commercial rate swa (38 96 (139
Rabbi trus (42) 20C (24))
Derivative fee incom — 13¢€ (13€)
Other 5,70( 5,84¢ (149
Total Other Noninterest Incon 5,621 6,281 (660
Total Noninterest Income $44,05’ $47,21( $ (3,159

We experienced a decline of $3.2 million in our ingrest income in 2011 primarily as a result @fulatory changes and declining
volumes in our mortgage banking area.

Service charges on deposit accounts decreasedrilich primarily relating to the impacts of Regtitan E, which requires customers w
existing accounts to opt in for overdraft coverafeertain types of electronic banking activitiBegulation E caused service charge income t
decrease by $1.8 million in 2011, which we offsepart by the introduction of a new paper staterfemin August 2011. Paper statement fees
generated $0.5 million in revenue in 2011. We ekpastomers to continue to elect to receive eledtrbank statements; therefore it is
expected that paper statement fee income will decti future periods.

Mortgage banking includes fee income related tadcsold in the secondary market, mortgage servioiogme and fair value adjustments
associated with valuing mortgage derivatives. Aligio interest rates continue to be low, the voluflean sales in the secondary market have
decreased
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resulting in a $2.2 million decrease in mortgagekiag income. During 2011, we sold $67.9 millionlefl family mortgage loans to Fannie
Mae compared to $109.3 million in 2010 which restlin a fee reduction of $0.9 million. In the setquarter of 2011, we began to retain
within the loan portfolio 10 and 15 year mortgagdsch had previously been priced and underwritteingisecondary market terms and
guidelines. Additionally, we recorded higher impaént charges on our mortgage servicing asset ith 20fhpared to 2010. This impairment
charge reflects a decline in the value of the remgimortgage servicing rights due to increasepgyment speeds resulting from decreases i
interest rates.

We recognized $0.1 million in security losses in20elated to OTTI on two equity securities comparerealized gains of $0.3 million in
the prior year. In the prior year, OTTI was notsiigant and we experienced gains as we sold skeErr equity positions.

The decreases in noninterest income are partiff8gtby increases of $0.9 million in debit andditeard fees and $0.4 million in wealth
management fees. Debit and credit card fees haveased $0.9 million in 2011 as a result of incedamlume and successful marketing
campaigns around signature based debit card trémssithroughout 2011. Our wealth management feagased $0.4 million from the prior
year. We experienced increased fee income of $0lidmas our customers moved to fixed annuitiethis low interest rate environme
Additionally, wealth management fees were posijivelpacted by improving market conditions in 2011.

Noninterest Expense

Years Ended December 31 2011 2010 $ Change
(in thousands)
Salaries and employee bene $ 51,07¢ $ 48,71t $ 2,36:
Net Occupanc 6,94: 6,92¢ 15
Data processin 6,85: 6,14 70¢
Professional services and le 5,43 6,88¢ (1,452
Furniture and equipme 4,941 5,05¢ (119
FDIC assessmel 3,57( 5,42¢ (1,856
Other taxe: 3,381 3,43 (52)
Joint venture amortizatic 3,302 2,57¢ 72¢
Marketing 3,01¢ 2,79¢ 224
Other expense:
Amortization of intangible: 1,73 1,94: (20€)
Other real estate own 1,51¢ 1,921 (403)
Loan collection fee 624 1,77C (1,14¢)
Unfunded loan commitmen (1,479 (1,55 81
Other 12,97¢ 13,59; (61€)
Total Other Noninterest Expen 15,38¢ 17,67¢ (2,292)
Total Noninterest Expense $103,90¢ $105,63: $ (1,725

We had a slight decline in noninterest expenseldf fhillion during 2011. This was primarily a resod certain one-time expenses in 201C
and a significant decrease in our FDIC assessme2Qil.

The decrease in professional services and leg&nsepis due to $2.3 million of legal settlementsdsat occurred in the first and second
quarters of 2010. The decrease in the FDIC assessh$1.9 million is the result of the FDIC changithe methodology used to calculate the
assessment as of
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April 1, 2011 and the expiration of the FDIC'’s Tsaition Account Guarantee Program on December@1. ZAsset quality improved
throughout 2011 resulting in $1.1 million lessdah collection fees. While these expenses havéngelclrom the prior year, we expect to
continue to experience elevated costs in this asezur criticized and classified loans remain abiostric averages. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, $1.5 million of unfunded loampotments was reversed compared to $1.6 milliortHeryear ended December 31, 2010.
The reversal of the reserve is primarily attriblgai the decline in available commitments. Additily, $0.8 million of the reserve reversal in
2011 related to an expense recognized in 2008 listtex of credit that we were contractually obtaghto fulfill. During the third quarter of
2011, the letter of credit was drawn upon and fdrated a corresponding loan charge-off was recor@#ter noninterest expense decreased
$0.6 million primarily related to a $1.2 million ite-off of an uncollectible receivable in the thigdarter of 2010. The receivable related to
expenses for a mutual fund advised by an affiliate.

We had a $2.4 million increase in salaries and eygad benefits primarily due to the full year impatbur annual merit increase resulting
in additional salary expense of $1.0 million forl20 Additionally, restricted stock expense increia$@.7 million related to the 2010 incentive
plan and a newly implemented long-term incentivanplncentive plans were re-instituted in 2010 whinpacted the 2011 expense. Deferred
loan origination costs are down by $0.9 millionnfr@010, which increases salaries and employee iteiethe current period since we are
deferring less costs. These increases were offsatdecrease in the pension plan expense of $0li8mrdue to a change in the number of
participants in the plan. We do not expect to ssiendlar decrease in pension expense in 2012 asudt iof a significant increase in our pension
liability due to a decline in the discount ratel®0 basis points to 4.75%.

The $0.7 million in additional data processing sastate to one-time charges for the implementaifamobile banking and other system
conversion fees. The increase of $0.7 million intjeenture amortization reflects the additionwbtlow income housing projects that were
completed in 2011.

Our efficiency ratio, which measures noninteregtegse as a percent of noninterest income plusitegeist income, on a fully taxable-
equivalent basis, excluding security gains/losses, 56 percent for 2011 and 54 percent for 201€rRe page 57 Explanation of Use of Non-
GAAP Financial Measures for a discussion of this-@AAP financial measure.

Federal Income Taxes

We recorded a federal income tax provision of $Hil6on in 2011 compared to $14.4 million in 20Ihe effective tax rate, which is the
provision for income taxes as a percentage of gxéricome was 23.6 percent compared to 25.0 pemc@®10. We ordinarily generate an
annual effective tax rate that is less than theeistey rate of 35 percent due to benefits resulfingh tax-exempt interest, excludable dividend
income, tax-exempt interest on BOLI and tax besef@tsociated with LIHTC, and Federal Historic Tagdlt Projects, which are relatively
consistent regardless of the level of pretax income

Financial Condition
December 31, 2012

Our total assets of $4.5 billion have increase®496.7 million since December 31, 2011. The actjoisof Mainline and Gateway added
$368.5 million in assets. Total gross loans inad&k216.9 million to $3.3 billion at December 3012 compared to $3.1 billion at
December 31, 2011. Our commercial loan portfolis g@wn by $121.8 million to $2.4 billion or by S&rcent and our consumer loan
portfolio has increased by $95.1 million to $93fillion or by 11.3 percent, due primarily to theohacquisitions. We did begin to see organic
loan growth in the later part of
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2012. Our loan pay downs were significant througt&di 2, primarily in our commercial loan portfolidue to lack of loan growth, we
increased our securities by $95.5 million and exoash held at the Federal Reserve by $42.5 milam core deposit base remains strong
with total deposits of $3.6 billion at December 3@12, a $302.6 million, or 9.1 percent increaseesDecember 31, 2011. Our acquisitions
added $311.4 million of deposits. We did see arrawgment in our mix of deposits throughout 2012hvai decrease in CDs offset by
increases in demand, money market and savings aiscou

Securities Activity

December 31 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Obligations of U.S. government corporations anchages $ 212,06¢ $ 142,78t $ 125,67
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S. goveenircorporations and agenc 57,89¢ 65,39¢ 41,49:
Mortgagebacked securities of U.S. government corporatiownsagencie 60,78: 48,75: 43,99:
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 112,76° 88,80: 65,77:
Marketable equity securiti¢ 9,58¢ 11,85¢ 11,09¢
Total Securities Available-for-Sale $ 453,09t $ 357,59t $ 288,02!

We invest in various securities in order to provadgource of liquidity, to satisfy various pledgimgjuirements, increase net interest
income and as a tool of the ALCO to repositiontibkance sheet for interest rate risk purposes.rifiesiare subject to market risks that could
negatively affect the level of liquidity availaktie us. Risks associated with various securitiefglars are managed and monitored through
investment policies which are annually approveabyBoard of Directors and administered through &L.&nd our treasury function.

The securities portfolio increased $95.5 million26.7 percent, from December 31, 2011. The ineréadue to the redeployment of
deposits at banks which increased substantiallyrasult of our acquisitions and lack of organiovgh. Additionally, we sold $5.7 million of
equity securities since December 31, 2011 thaitesbin a $3.0 million gain.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, we did not record agwificant OTTI. The performance of the debt andiggsecurities markets could
generate impairment in future periods requirindized losses to be reported.

At December 31, 2012, net unrealized gains on #@siclassified as available-for-sale were apprately $16.0 million as compared to
$14.9 million at December 31, 2011. Net unrealigaths related to our debt securities portfolio lede$14.9 million at December 31, 2012 anc
$13.2 million at December 31, 2011. The increasairealized gains related to debt securities istduecreases in interest rates. The
marketable equity securities portfolio had net alized gains of $1.1 million at December 31, 20&thpared to net unrealized gains of $1.7
million at December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2@12had no securities that were in an unrealized pwsition for greater than 12 months.
We do not intend to sell and it is not likely thiag will be required to sell any of the securitiesh unrealized loss position before recovery of
its amortized cost.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we held Federal Hamae Bank, or FHLB, stock of $14.5 million and $&nillion, respectively. This
investment is carried at cost and evaluated forimpent based on the ultimate recoverability ofgihevalue. We hold FHLB stock because
we are a member of the FHLB of Pittsburgh. The FHE&uires members to purchase and hold a spedéfiedl of FHLB stock based upon on
the members asset value, level of borrowings antitjgation in other programs offered. Stock in #6LB is non-marketable and is
redeemable at the discretion of
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the FHLB. Members do not purchase stock in the FitiBhe same reasons that traditional equity itarssacquire stock in an investowned
enterprise. Rather, members purchase stock tonotaess to the low-cost products and serviceseaffiey the FHLB. Unlike equity securities
of traditional for-profit enterprises, the stocktbé FHLB does not provide its holders with an apyaity for capital appreciation because, by
regulation, FHLB stock can only be purchased, redgband transferred at par value.

On February 22, 2012, the FHLB of Pittsburgh anmedrthat it would pay a dividend on the averagétabgtock balance held during the
three month period ended December 31, 2011 atraumadired rate of 0.10% for the first time since12008. The FHLB noted future dividend
payments and capital stock repurchases will comttolbe reviewed on a quarterly basis. We had ®ilion of redemptions from the FHLB
throughout 2012. We reviewed and evaluated the FedyBtal stock for OTTI at December 31, 2012. Bagaain our review of the FHLB’s
current financial position, they reported improwadnings throughout 2012 compared to 2011 andruomtio exceed all capital ratios required
Additionally, we considered that the FHLB beganipgydividends and redeeming excess stock durin@.28écordingly, we believe sufficient
evidence exists to conclude that no OTTI exisBetember 31, 2012.

The following table sets forth the maturities of saties at December 31, 2012 and the weightedageeyields of such securities. Taxable-
equivalent adjustments (using a 35 percent fediecaime tax rate) for 2012 have been made in cédloglgields on obligations of state and
political subdivisions.

Maturing
After After No
Within One But Within Five But Within After Fixed
One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years Maturity
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount

(dollars in thousands)

Available-for-Sale
Obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agenci $30,56: 2.0(% $125,26¢ 1.62% $52,64¢ 147% $ 359 07% $ —
Collateralized mortgage obligations of

U.S. government corporations and

agencies — —% 5,04C 4.61% — —% 52,85¢  2.52% —
Mortgage-backed securities of U.S.

government corporations and agen — —% 14 4.1% 17,747 2.66% 42,888 3.41% —
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 8,40¢  5.3t% 8,92¢ 5.7(% 13,86 3.94% 81,57 4.5% —
Marketable equity securitie — —% — —% — —% — —% 9,58¢
Total $38,97( $139,38: $84,25¢ $180,90¢ $9,58¢
Weighted Average Rate 2.7%% 1.9%% 2.1%% 3.65%
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Lending Activity
The following table summarizes our loan distribotat the end of each of the last five years:

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
% of % of % of % of % of
December 31 Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
(dollars in
thousands)
Commercia
Commercial real esta $ 1,452,13. 433 $ 1,415,33  452% $ 1,494,20. 44.5% $ 1,428,32 42.0% $ 1,440,201 40.36Y%
Commercial and industrii 791,39t  23.6"% 685,75 21.91% 722,35¢  21.5%% 701,65(  20.6%% 822,54: 23.05Y%
Commercial constructio 168,14 5.02% 188,85. 6.04% 259,59¢ 7.74% 359,34. 10.5% 361,91( 10.14%
Total Commercial Loans 2,411,67. 72.0t% 2,289,931  73.1% 2,476,15°  73.7% 2,489,32 73.25% 2,624,65. 73.55%
Consume
Home equity 431,331  12.8%% 411,40 13.1% 441,09t  13.1%% 458,64 13.4% 438,38( 12.28%
Residential mortgag 427,30 12.7% 358,84t 11.4% 359,53t  10.71% 357,39:  10.52% 408,60: 11.45%
Installment and other consun 73,87¢ 2.21% 67,13: 2.1%% 74,78( 2.22% 81,14: 2.3% 84,06" 2.36%
Consumer constructic 2,437 0.07% 2,44( 0.06% 4,01¢ 0.12% 11,83¢ 0.35% 13,01 0.36%
Total Consumer Loans 934,95( 27.9% 839,82, 26.8% 879,43. 26.21% 909,01:  26.7:% 944,06. 26.45%
Total Portfolio Loans $ 3,346,62. 10C% $ 3,129,75' 10C% $ 3,355,59 10C% $ 3,398,33 10C% $ 3,568,71 100%

The loan portfolio represents the most significamirce of interest income for us. The risk thatdeers will be unable to pay such
obligations is inherent in the loan portfolio. Otlvenditions such as the overall economic climate significantly impact the borrowsrability
to pay.

At December 31, 2012 our total loans were $3.3dnijla $216.9 million increase compared to therpréar. The overall composition of -
loan portfolio did not change significantly frometprior year. The Mainline and Gateway acquisitiadded $228.6 million in loans during
2012, which was a mix of both consumer and comrakleans. Organic loan growth was challenging dythre year and we did experience
significant loan pay downs, primarily in our comriat loan portfolio. We did see positive trendour loan portfolio in the later part of 2012
with increased customer demand.

In August 2012, we expanded our commercial lenftogprint into Northeastern Ohio through the openifi a loan production office in
Akron. We are retaining 10, 15 and 20 year residkerdal estate loans in our portfolio, rather tisalling these loans in the secondary market.
Additionally, we are hiring seasoned lenders irhbmir commercial and residential real estate ameasprove organic loan growth.

Commercial loans, including commercial real estateCRE, commercial and industrial, or C&I, and enetcial construction, comprised
72 percent and 73 percent of total portfolio loahBecember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Ajhaommercial loans can have a relati
higher risk profile, management believes thesesrégke mitigated through active portfolio managememiservative underwriting standards
continuous portfolio review. The loan-to-value pglguidelines for CRE loans are generally8bpercent. At December 31, 2012, variable
commercial loans were 78 percent of the commelwial portfolio as compared to 79 percent at Decer@bg2011.
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Home equity and residential mortgage loans comg2&epercent of the loan portfolio in 2012 and 2%cpnt in 2011. Residential
mortgage lending continues to be a strategic ftltmigh a centralized mortgage origination depantynengoing product redesign, secondary
market activities and the utilization of commissmmpensated originators. Management believestminued adherence to our conservative
mortgage lending policies for portfolio loans Wik as important in a gradually growing economyt asas during the downturn in recent years.
The loan-to-value policy guideline is 80 percentriesidential first lien mortgages. Higher loanvelue loans may be approved with the
appropriate private mortgage insurance coveraggfoio loans permit a maximum term of 20 yearstiaditional mortgages. Balloon paym
mortgages are also offered in the portfolio. Thexiimam balloon term is 15 years with a maximum afaation term of 30 years. Balloon
mortgages with terms of 10 years or less may hawaxdmum amortization term for up to 40 years. Comiortgage loans consisting of our
residential first mortgage and home equity secondgage are also available to credit-worthy bornaw&econd lien positions are assumed
with home equity loans, but normally only to theesi that the combined credit exposure for bothfitlseand second liens does not exceed
percent of the fair value of the property.

We also originate and price loans for sale intosth@ondary market, primarily to Fannie Mae. Thionale for these sales is to mitigate
interest-rate risk associated with holding lowee réong-term residential mortgages in the loartfptio, generate fee revenue from sales and
servicing and maintain the primary customer retetfop. In 2011, we began to retain 10 and 15 yeatgages in our portfolio and just recel
we began retaining the 20 year mortgages that bad priced and underwritten using secondary maekets and guidelines. During 2012 and
2011, we sold $82.9 million and $67.9 million, respively, of 1-4 family mortgages to Fannie Mae andently service $329.2 million of
secondary market mortgage loans at December 32, @hpared to $332.6 million at December 31, 2Qbans sold to Fannie Mae increasec
from the prior year due to the low interest rateiemment and economic stabilization in our markgfe intend to continue to sell 30 year
loans to Fannie Mae in the future, especially dupariods of lower interest rates.

We offer a variety of unsecured and secured consloaa and credit card products. Loan-to-valueqyodjuidelines for direct loans are
90-100 percent of invoice for new automobiles ad€9® percent of National Automobile Dealer Assaoigtor NADA, value for used
automobiles.

We maintain a General Lending Policy to control diu@lity of our loan portfolio. The policy delegatine authority to extend loans under
specific guidelines and underwriting standards. Geaeral Lending Policy is formulated by managenagt reviewed and ratified annually
the Board of Directors. Any exception to the Gehkemding Policy must be approved by the Senioril.G@mmittee or the Regional Loan
Committee.

The following table presents the maturity of consugnd commercial loans outstanding as of Dece@he2012.

Maturing
Within One
After One But After Five

Year Within Five Years Years Total
(in thousands)
Fixed interest rate $ 121,61: $ 286,04: $ 122,42: $ 530,07:
Variable interest rate 497,81 618,20( 765,58¢ 1,881,59
Total Commercial Loans $ 619,42. $ 904,24 $ 888,00 $2,411,67.
Fixed interest rate 69,39( 253,68: 301,49: 624,56:
Variable interest rate 217,79 25,84 66,75( 310,38t
Total Consumer Loans $ 287,18 $ 279,52 $ 368,24: $ 934,95(
Total Portfolio Loans $ 906,60t $ 1,183,76! $1,256,25I $3,346,62.
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Credit Quality

We have a Criticized Asset Committee that meetstguyn and monitors all special mention loans geeétian $1.0 million and substand
loans greater than $0.5 million. Additional credsk management practices include periodic reviad @pdates to lending policies and
procedures regarding sound underwriting practioglspmrtfolio management expectations; a portfofid bpan stress testing initiative; and an
independent loan review program developed to reviederwriting decisions and adherence to policgppr risk rating methodology and a
review of all of our credit related business unfsere can be no assurance that we will be suadassfontrolling the risk with these loans and
consequently they could result in losses for us.

We determine loans to be impaired when based upoart information and events it is probable thatwill be unable to collect all
principal and interest payments due according étiiginal contractual terms of the loan agreem&h{TDRs are classified as impaired loans.
Impaired loans are continually monitored by our iged Assets Division.

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loabRdand OREO. The following represents nonperfognaissets for the periods
presented:

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)
Nonaccrual Loans
Commercial real esta $20,97: $20,777 $14,67¢ $52,38( $19,38¢
Commercial and industrii 5,49¢ 7,57( 2,567 7,48¢ 3,341
Commercial constructio 1,45¢ 3,60¢ 5,84¢ 21,67 13,84¢
Home equity 3,312 2,93¢ 1,43 2,25: 174
Residential mortgag 4,52¢ 2,85¢ 5,99¢ 5,58: 5,62¢
Installment and other consurr 40 4 65 2C 73
Consumer constructic 21¢ 181 52E — —
Total Nonaccrual Loans 36,01¢ 37,93 31,10¢ 89,39¢ 42 ,44¢
Nonaccrual Troubled Debt Restructurings
Commercial real esta 9,58¢ 10,87: 29,63¢ 1,40¢ —
Commercial and industrii 93¢ — 1,00( —
Commercial constructio 5,32¢ 2,94: 2,14: — —
Home Equity 341 — — — —
Residential mortgag 2,752 4,37( — — —
Total Nonaccrual Troubled Debt Restructurings 18,94( 18,18¢ 32,77¢ 1,40¢ —
Total Nonperforming Loans 54,95¢ 56,11¢ 63,88 90,80" 42,44¢
OREO 911 3,96 5,82( 4,60’ 851
Total Nonperforming Assets $55,86¢ $60,08: $69,70! $95,41¢ $43,29;
Nonperforming loans as a percent of total lo 1.65% 1.7% 1.9(% 2.61% 1.19%
Nonperforming assets as a percent of total loams PREC 1.6€% 1.92% 2.07% 2.8(% 1.21%

Nonperforming assets decreased 7.0 percent frompribeyear as a result of resolution of severatlds either through the foreclosure
process and subsequent sale of the property cd@ays or payoffs of the loans. Additionally, oumperforming loan formation was
significantly less than the
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prior year with encouraging trends in the secortidf®2012. Our CRE portfolio continues to represasignificant amount of our
nonperforming loans at 55% of our total nonperfargrioans. There are no loans 90 days or more pasand still accruing.

TDRs are loans where we, for economic or legalaesiselated to a borrowerfinancial difficulties, grant a concession to Huerower the
we would not otherwise consider. Modificationsdans classified as TDR generally include reductinreontractual interest rates, principal
deferment and extensions of maturity dates attadstaterest rate lower than the current market f@t a new loan with similar risk
characteristics. Generally these concessions aegeriod of at least six months. While unususdré may be instances of loan principal
forgiveness.

TDRs can be returned to accruing status if thev¥alhg criteria are met: 1) the ultimate collectébiof all contractual amounts due,
according to the restructured agreement, is ndoirbt and 2) there is a period of a minimum ofrsbnths of satisfactory payment performe
by the borrower either immediately before or after restructuring. We did not return any TDRs toraing status during 2012.

All TDRs are considered to be impaired loans antlheireported as impaired loans for their remajrlimes, unless the restructuring
agreement specifies an interest rate equal toeatgr than the rate that would be accepted atrtteedf the restructuring for a new loan with
comparable risk and we fully expected that the iemg principal and interest will be collected amting to the restructured agreement. All
impaired loans are reported as nonaccrual loaressithe loan is a TDR that has met the requirenmet¢sl above to be returned to accruing
status.

As an example consider a substandard commerciatremtion loan that is currently 90 days past dhens the loan is restructured to
extend the maturity date for a period longer thaule be considered an insignificant period of tifilee post-modification interest rate is not
increased to correspond with the current creditofsthe borrower, and all other terms remain @e according to the original loan
agreement. This loan will be considered a TDR adtirrower is experiencing financial difficulty aadoncession has been granted. The loa
will be reported as nonaccrual status and as aaifeghloan and a TDR. In addition, the loan cowdd:harged down to the fair value of the
collateral if a confirmed loss exists. If the laaubsequently performs, by means of making on-tinreejpal and interest payments according tc
the newly restructured terms for a period of sixiths, and it is expected that all remaining priatgnd interest will be collected according to
the terms of the restructured agreement, the lakubevreturned to accrual status and reportechaecaruing TDR. The loan will remain an
impaired loan for the remaining life of the loanc® the interest rate was not adjusted to be e¢qumlgreater than the rate that would be
accepted at the time of the restructuring for a lwam with the comparable risk of a longer term.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $60.4 million inREDof which $41.5 million were accruing and $18&&vin nonaccrual status. This
compared to $67.9 million at December 31, 2011 loittv $49.7 million were accruing and $18.2 milliere in nonaccrual status. During
2012, none of the TDRs met the above requirementsding placed back into accrual status. The @dserén total TDRs from prior year is due
to loan pay downs or pay offs and loan charge-tffs.did have $6.9 million of new TDRs related ta oansumer loan portfolio for borrowers
who had their debt discharged and not reaffirmeduthh Chapter 7 bankruptcy. These loans are bejpgrted as accruing TDRs as the
borrowers are current on their payments and havastory of delinquency.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we mald#f&=6 million of C&l loans, $3.6 million of CREdms and $1.2 million of
commercial construction loans for financially tréedb borrowers that were not considered to be TORese borrowers received modifications
that represented insignificant delays in the tinofigayments that were not considered to be comessr we concluded that the bank was
adequately compensated through loan pay downsditiatal collateral.
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OREO and other repossessed assets are compripeapefties acquired through foreclosure proceedimgeceptance of a deed in lieu of

a foreclosure. At December 31, 2012, OREO coneisi8 properties, none of which had a balance greaan $0.2 million. All OREO

properties have current appraisals. It is our gdlicobtain appraisals annually or sooner if intlmas of impairment exist. Foreclosures

decreased to 22 in 2012 compared to 41 in 2011.
The following represents delinquency for the pesipdesented:

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
% of % of % of % of % of
December 31 Amount  Loans Amount  Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans
(dollars in thousands)
90 days or more:
Commercial real esta $30,55¢ 2.1(% $31,64¢ 2.24% $44,31( 2.97% $53,78¢ 3.77% $19,38¢ 1.35%
Commercial and Industri 6,43t 0.81% 7,57C 1.1% 3,567 0.4%% 7,48¢ 1.0% 3,341 0.41%
Commercial constructio 6,77¢ 4.02% 6,547 3.4% 7,987 3.08% 21,674+ 6.0%% 13,84¢ 3.83%
Home equity 3,65¢ 0.8:% 2,93¢ 0.71% 1,43 0.32% 2,252 0.4% 174 0.04%
Residential mortgag 7,27¢  1.7(% 7,22¢ 2.01% 599 1.6"% 5,58: 1.56% 5,62¢ 1.38%
Installment and other consurnr 40 0.05% 4 0.01% 65 0.0%% 20 0.02% 73  0.09%
Consumer constructic 21¢ 8.9"% 181 7.42% 52 13.06% — —% — —%
Total Loans $54,95¢ 1.64% $56,11¢ 1.7% $63,88: 1.9(% $90,807 2.67% %$42,44¢ 1.19%
30 to 89 days
Commercial real esta $ 2,647 0.1¢% $ 9,108 0.64% $ 4,371 0.2% $22,92: 1.6(% $ 9,60 0.67%
Commercial and industri 4.64¢ 0.5¢% 5,282 0.71% 1,71¢ 0.2&% 1,241 0.1&% 3,68¢ 0.45%
Commercial constructio 10,54: 6.27% — —% 83t 0.32% 89¢ 0.25% 10,44¢ 2.89%
Home equity 3,197 0.7&% 2,89C 0.7(% 2,451  0.56% 2,10¢ 0.4€% 35¢ 0.08%
Residential mortgag 3,661 0.8¢% 2,40  0.67% 1,34¢ 0.3 5,151 1.4%% 5,09 1.25%
Installment and other consurnr 501 0.6&% 452z 0.67% 34z 0.4% 852 1.05% 44¢  0.53%
Consumer constructic — —% — —% — —% — —% — —%
Total Loans $25,19C 0.7%% $20,13¢ 0.64% $11,05¢ 0.32% $33,17: 0.98 $29,63¢ 0.83%

Closed-end installment loans, amortizing loans meEtby real estate and any other loans with paysreatteduled monthly are reported
past due when the borrower is in arrears two oremoonthly payments. Other multi-payment obligatiauith payments scheduled other than
monthly are reported past due when one schedulgdgra is due and unpaid for 30 days or more. Weitniodelinquency on a monthly basis,
including early stage delinquencies in the 30 tal8@¥s past due for early identification of potergigblem loans.

Allowance for Loan Losses

We maintain an ALL at a level determined to be adée to absorb estimated probable credit losseseénhwithin the loan portfolio as of
the balance sheet date. Determination of an adeduat is inherently subjective, as it requires etions of the occurrence of future events,
as well as the timing of such events, and it maguigect to significant changes from period to @eriThe methodology for determining the
ALL has two main components: evaluation and impaiitests of individual loans and impairment te$tsertain groups of homogeneous
loans with similar risk characteristics.

We enhanced our ALL model in the fourth quarteR@10 to better align it with regulatory guidancégTcalculation of the base historical
loss utilizing an average method over the prioe fpears was shortened to include a one to twolgearemergence period depending on the
loan category over a rolling four quarter averdgess emergence refers to the length of time betvadess event and a charge-off of the loan.
With the volatility in the credit cycle at that tanthe shorter

50



Table of Contents

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

time horizon was more responsive to the loss ememgperiods we were experiencing in our portfdlie believe this shorter time horizon
provides a better indication of inherent lossethaloan portfolio given the recent economic dowmtdVe also refined the qualitative factors
beginning in the fourth quarter of 2010 to betiegrawith regulatory guidance. Qualitative factéwscame a basis point adjustment applied to
the historical base loss. The combination of tHeaecements to the average method and the quadifativors did not materially change the
ALL at December 31, 2010, resulting in an increiashe ALL of less than $0.5 million. Since DecemBg, 2010, there have been no further
enhancements to the ALL methodology.

We develop and document a systematic ALL methodol@sed on the following portfolio segments: 1) CREC&I, 3) Commercial
Construction, 4) Consumer Real Estate and 5) GZbasumer. The following is the ALL for the pastéays by portfolio segment:

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
% of % of % of % of

% of

December 31 Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
(dollars in thousands)

Commercial real esta $25,24¢ 54% $29,80- 61% $30,42: 59% $27,32: 46% $18,78: 44%

Commercial and industri 7,75¢ 17% 11,27« 23% 9,77 19%  21,39: 36%  20,17( 47%

Commercial constructio 7,50( 16% 3,70¢ 8% 5,90¢ 11% 8,00¢ 13% 73 —%

Consumer real esta 5,05¢ 11% 3,16¢ 6% 3,96¢ 8% 2,14: 4% 2,75( 7%

Other consume 921 2% 894 2% 1,31¢ 3% 714 1% 91t 2%

Total $46,48¢ 100% $48,84: 10(% $51,38" 100% $59,58( 10(% $42,68¢ 100%

An inherent risk to the loan portfolio as a whaldhe condition of the local economy. In additieach loan segment carries with it risks
specific to the segment.

CRE loans are secured by commercial purpose resibeicluding both owner occupied properties iandstment properties for various
purposes such as hotels, strip malls and apartmedigidual project cash flows, as well as globash flows, are generally the sources of
repayment for these loans. Besides cash flow riSRE loans have collateral risk and risks basedh tipe business prospects of the lessee, if
the project is not owner occupied.

C&l loans are made to operating companies or matwfars for the purpose of production, operatingacity, accounts receivable,
inventory or equipment financing. Collateral foedle types of loans often do not have sufficientevéh a distressed or liquidation scenario to
satisfy the outstanding debt. Cash flow from therapions of the company is the primary source payenent for these loans and the cash flow
depends not only on the economy as a whole, bataighe health of the company’s industry.

Commercial construction loans are made to finaestruction of buildings or other structures, adl a®to finance the acquisition and
development of raw land for various purposes. Wihiterisk is generally confined to the constructp@niod, if there are problems, the project
may not be completed, and as such, may not prautficient cash flow on its own to service the debhave sufficient value in a liquidation
cover the outstanding principal. There are als@uarrisks depending on the type of project ancettperience and resources of the developel

Consumer real estate loans are secured by 1-4yfaesidences, including purchase money mortgagesahd second lien home equity
loans and home equity lines of credit. The primsoyrce of repayment for these loans is the incamleaasets of the borrower. The
unemployment rate, as well as the state of thd lomasing markets have a significant impact onrifle determination, since low demand
and/or declining home values can limit the abitifyporrowers to sell a property and satisfy thetdeb

Other consumer loans are made to individuals andbeaecured by assets other than 1-4 family resete or may be unsecured. This
class of loans includes auto loans, unsecured éindscredit cards. The primary source of repayrfmrthese loans is the income and assets o

the borrower so
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the local unemployment rate is an important indicaf risk. The value of the collateral, if thegeany, is less likely to be a source of repayr
due to less certain collateral values.

Significant to the ALL is a higher mix of commerci@ans. At December 31, 2012, approximately 8eet of the ALL related to the
commercial loan portfolio, while commercial loarsrprise 72 percent of our loan portfolio. Our comerad loans, and more specifically, our
CRE and construction loan portfolio, had been nioggacted by the economic slowdown in our markethiwithe past few years. The ability
of customers to repay commercial loans is more midgret upon the success of their business, congrintome and general economic
conditions. Accordingly, the risk of loss is higtar such loans compared to consumer loans, whie ingurred lower losses in our market.

The following table summarizes the ALL for eachluf last five years as indicated:

December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)

General reserve $44,25: $43,29¢ $47,75¢ $42 577 $35,57¢
Specific reserve 2,231 5,54¢ 3,631 17,00: 7,11
Total Allowance for Loan Losses $46,48¢ $48,84: $51,38" $59,58( $42,68¢

The balance in the ALL decreased to $46.5 milliod.88 percent of total loans at December 31, 2B1@ompared to $48.8 million or 1.
percent of total loans at December 31, 2011. Tleedse in the ALL is due to a decrease of $3.3anilh specific reserves associated with
loans individually evaluated for impairment offégtan increase of $1.0 million in the general resefhe December 31, 2012 ALL includes
$2.2 million that was specifically allocated forpaired loans of $82.6 million at December 31, 2@tMmpared to $5.5 million that was
allocated for impaired loans of $94.0 million atdeenber 31, 2011. The overall composition of themas has changed from 2011 with rese
decreasing in both the CRE and C&l portfolios amttéasing in the commercial construction portfdilde have experienced stress in our
commercial construction portfolio during the yeaith net charge-offs of $9.6 million compared td rexoveries of $0.7 million during 2011.
The losses are primarily related to land develograed construction projects that had slowed dutfiggeconomic downturn, resulting in
significant reductions in the appraised values. Wafithese loans have been extended resultingeitoim becoming a TDR, and consequently
an impaired loan. As a result of these lossesaberve allocated to commercial construction loassihcreased $3.8 million to $7.5 million at
December 31, 2012 compared to $3.7 million at Dde81, 2011. The allowances for both the CRE hadC&l portfolios have decreased as
loans evaluated individually for impairment and stalndard loans have declined. Further, we haveaeéealine in historic loss rates in both
the CRE and C&I portfolios. The CRE reserve de@da.6 million from $29.8 million at December 2011 to $25.2 million at
December 31, 2012, while the C&l reserve decre&8esi million, from $11.3 million at December 31,1A0to $7.8 million at December 31,
2012. Our acquired loans through the acquisitionainline and Gateway were recorded at fair valith wo carryover of the related ALL.

Consumer unsecured loans and secured loans thadtareal estate secured are evaluated for chaffgdter the loan becomes 90 days |
due. At that time, unsecured loans are fully chawgié and secured loans are chargéfito the estimated fair value of the collateesdd the co
to sell. Consumer loans secured by real estatevaleated for chargeff after the loan balance becomes 90 days pasaddeare charged do
to the estimated fair value of the collateral lesst to sell.

Our charge-off policy for commercial loans requitleat loans and other obligations that are noectibble be promptly charged-off when a
confirmed loss exists, regardless of the delinquetatus of the loan. We may elect to recognizartigd charge-off when management has
determined that the
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value of collateral is less than the remaining gtrreent in the loan. A loan or obligation does rextchto be charged-off, regardless of
delinquency status, if (i) management has detemiinere exists sufficient collateral to protect thmaining loan balance and (ii) there exists
strategy to liquidate the collateral. Managemeny alao consider a number of other factors to ddatexiwhen a charge-off is appropriate.
These factors may include, but are not limited to:

» The status of a bankruptcy proceeding;

e The value of collateral and probability of succaktfuidation; and/or

» The status of adverse proceedings or litigatioh iy result in collection.

The following summarizes our loan loss experiemceshich of the five years presented below:

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)
ALL Balance at Beginning of Year: $ 48,84 $ 51,381 $ 59,58( $ 42,68¢ $ 34,34t
Charge-offs:
Commercial real esta (9,627%) (8,829 (23,925 (8,79 (82¢)
Commercial and industrii (5,279 (8,977 (7,277 (29,35() (4,68])
Commercial constructio (10,52) (1,720 (6,359 (12,399 (1,869
Consumer real esta (2,509 (2,617 (2,210 (4,55¢) (3,217
Other consume (1,079 (1,019 (1,262 (1,7672) (1,579
Total (29,017 (23,145 (41,027 (56,86:) (12,170
Recoveries:
Commercial real esta 1,25¢ 78C 57¢€ 70 522
Commercial and industri; 1,15¢ 357 32¢ 532 1,03¢
Commercial constructio 891 2,46: 1,74¢ — —
Consumer real esta 197 1,03( 20z 27¢€ 157
Other consume 341 36C 46¢ 521 501
Total 3,841 4,99( 3,328 1,39¢ 2,21¢
Net Charge-offs (25,177 (18,15%) (37,709 (55,467) (9,959
Provision for loan losse 22,81t 15,60¢ 29,51: 72,35¢ 12,87¢
Acquired loan loss resen — — — — 5,42(
ALL Balance at End of Year: $ 46,48:¢ $ 48,84 $ 51,387 $ 59,58( $ 42,68¢

Net loan charge-offs increased $7.0 million to 22%illion or 0.78 percent of average loans for 2882Zompared to $18.2 million or 0.56
percent of average loans for 2011. The signifigarrease is primarily due to an increase of $10 det loan charge-offs in the commercial
construction portfolio. The commercial constructportfolio had $9.6 million of net loan charge-oiifis2012 compared to a net loan recovery
of $0.7 million in 2011. The losses are primar#yated to land development and construction prejiet had slowed during the economic
downturn, resulting in significant reductions irethppraised values. Many of these loans have baended resulting in the loan becoming a
TDR, and consequently an impaired loan.
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The following table summarizes net charge-offs per@entage of average loans and other ratios:

December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Commercial real esta 0.5% 0.55% 1.42% 3.42% 0.52%
Commercial and industrii 0.57% 1.24% 1.62% 0.62% 0.03%
Commercial constructio 5.9% (0.39)% 0.9€% 3.7% 0.43%
Consumer real esta 0.28% 0.2(% 0.24% 0.5(% 0.40%
Other consume 0.91% 0.94% 1.0%% 1.52% 1.35%

Ratio of net charc-offs to average loans outstand 0.7&% 0.5€% 1.11% 1.6(% 0.31%

Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of togals 1.3¢% 1.5€% 1.52% 1.7%% 1.20%

Allowance for loan losses to total nonperformingrie 85% 87% 80% 66% 101%

Provision for loan losses as a percentage of gt dharg-offs 91% 86% 78% 13(% 184%

Deposits

The following table presents the composition ofas at December 31:

December 31 2012 2011 $ Change

(in thousands)

Noninteres-bearing deman $ 960,98( $ 818,68t $ 142,29:
Interes-bearing deman 316,76( 283,61: 33,14¢
Money marke 361,23: 278,09: 83,14:
Savings 965,57 802,94. 162,62¢
Certificates of depos 1,033,88: 1,152,52 (118,644
Total $ 3,638,42! $ 3,335,85! $ 302,56¢

Deposits are the primary source of funds for us.b&leve that our deposit base is stable and thdtave the ability to attract new
deposits, mitigating a funding dependency on otheire volatile sources. During 2012, our demand, eganarket and savings deposit
balances increased by $421.2 million as a reswtiotwo acquisitions and a shift from our certifie of deposit balances due to the low rate
environment. Additionally, savings have increasea aesult of our preferred savings account whftdr®an attractive rate in the current low
interest rate environment.

Certificates of deposit of $100,000 and over weregercent of total deposits at December 31, 2@#i2&ven percent of total deposits at
December 31, 2011, and primarily represent depelsitionships with local customers in our markeamMaturities of certificates of deposit of
$100,000 or more outstanding at December 31 arensuized as follows:

December 31 2012
(in thousands)

Three months or les $ 124,79
Over three through six mont 59,15%
Over six through twelve monti 85,39:
Over twelve month 98,77
Total $ 368,12:
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Through the Promontory Interfinancial Network, LL\Ze participate in the Certificate of Deposit AcnbRegistry Services, or CDARS,
reciprocal and One-Way Buy programs. We have baeeraber of Promontory and have utilized CDARS s2@@9. Reciprocal deposits
provide a stable and costfective source of funds with rates generally lotwn traditional brokered deposits. Although peatal deposits ai
considered “brokered” under existing law, they temdct more like core deposits. Reciprocal depasi customer funds exchanged among
insured depository institutions that are memberth®fCDARS deposit placement service. Through xichange, we benefit from large, local
customer deposits, while providing our customet$ &tcess to FDIC insurance protection beyond temum deposit insurance amount.
Reciprocal deposits address the need to attraatedaith valuable customer relationships. As of Deoer 31, 2012 we had $9.8 million in
CDARS reciprocal deposits. We also participathin €DARS One-Way Buy program which allows us taobtarge blocks of wholesale
funding. Through the One-Way Buy program, fundingffectively purchased from insured depositoryitimsons that are member of the
CDARS deposit placement service. As of DecembefB12 we had $1.9 million in the CDARS One-Way Buggram.

The daily average amount of deposits and ratesqrageposits are summarized for the periods inelitat the following table:

2012 2011 2010
Years Ended December 31 Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(dollars in thousands)

Noninteres-bearing deman $ 877,05t $ 79291 $ 728,70i
Interes-bearing deman 306,99: 0.05% 286,58 0.12% 267,29. 0.21%
Money marke 308,71 0.17% 249,49 0.15% 251,09. 0.26%
Savings 902,88 0.2€% 761,27: 0.17% 749,32! 0.28%
Certificates of depos 1,104,26; 1.24% 1,181,82 1.71% 1,300,80. 1.95%
Total $ 3,499,92 0.48%  $ 3,272,09; 0.7% $ 3,297,21 0.87%
Borrowings

The following table represents the compositionafrbwings at December 31.:

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 $ Change
(in thousands)

Securities sold under repurchase agreements, $ 62,58. $ 30,37( $ 32,21:
Shor-term borrowings 75,00( 75,00( —
Long-term borrowings 34,10: 31,87« 2,22
Junior subordinated debt securit 90,61¢ 90,61¢ —
Total Borrowings $ 262,30. $227,86. $ 34,43¢

Borrowings are an additional source of fundingdsr Short-term borrowings are for terms under a® wnd were comprised of REPOs
and FHLB advances. We define repurchase agreemhtsur local retail customers as retail REPO.U8ities pledged as collateral under
these REPO financing arrangements cannot be so&ptedged by the secured party and are therefm@uated for as a secured borrowing.
FHLB advances are for various terms secured byakiek lien on residential mortgages and otherastate secured loans. The purpose of lon
term borrowings is to match-fund selected new loaginations, to mitigate interest rate sensitivigks and to take advantage of discounted
borrowing rates through the FHLB for community istreent projects. The increase in borrowings of &34illion is primarily within our retai
REPOs and is primarily due to the expiration ofuhémited FDIC insurance on noninterest-bearingnaded deposits.
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Information pertaining to REPOs is summarized mttible below:

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)
Balance at December : $62,58: $30,37( $40,65:
Average balance during the ye 47,38¢ 41,58 46,48¢
Average interest rate during the y 0.17% 0.13% 0.14%
Maximum montl-end balance during the ye $62,58: $42,40¢ $52,04¢
Average interest rate at Decembet 0.2(% 0.11% 0.07%
Information pertaining to short-term FHLB advanéesummarized in the table below:

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)
Balance at December : $75,00( $75,00( $ —
Average balance during the ye 50,21 551 32,47:
Average interest rate during the y 0.24% 0.32% 0.45%
Maximum montl-end balance during the ye $75,00( $75,00( $141,80(
Average interest rate at Decembel 0.1%% 0.1&% —%

During 2012, long-term borrowings increased $2.Rioni as compared to December 31, 2011. At Decer8beP012, our long-term
borrowings outstanding of $34.1 million includedl¥Bmillion that were at a fixed rate and $3.1 iwillat a variable rate.

During the third quarter of 2006, we issued $25illian of junior subordinated debentures throughoaled transaction at an initial fixed
rate of 6.78 percent. Beginning September 15, 20itilquarterly thereafter, we have had the opticedeem the subordinated debt, subject tc
a 30 day written notice and prior approval by tlRHE. We chose not to exercise the option for eetiemption in either 2011 or 2012 and the
subordinated debt converted to a variable raterab8th LIBOR plus 160 basis points. The subordidatebt qualifies as Tier 2 capital under
regulatory guidelines and will mature on Decemb®gr2D36.

During the first quarter of 2008, we completed i@gte placement to a financial institution of $2én0lion of floating rate trust preferred
securities. The trust preferred securities matutdarch 2038, are callable at our option after frears, bear interest initially at a rate of 6.44
percent per annum and quarterly adjust with theetimonth LIBOR plus 350 basis points. We began ngpkiterest payments to the trustee or
June 15, 2008 and quarterly thereafter. The trust
preferred securities qualify as Tier 1 capital un@gulatory guidelines. To issue these trust pretesecurities, we formed STBA Capital Trust
I, or the Trust, with $0.6 million of equity, whidk owned 100 percent by us. The proceeds fromsdheof the trust preferred securities and th
issuance of common equity were invested in junidrosdinated debt, which is the sole asset of thustTiThe Trust pays dividends on the trust
preferred securities at the same rate as the giter=pay on the junior subordinate debt held leyTtust. Since the third-party investors are th
primary beneficiaries, the Trust qualifies as dakae interest entity, or VIE, but is not consotieldin our financial statements.

During the second quarter of 2008, we issued $20ldn of junior subordinated debt through a ptvalacement with three financial
institutions at an initial rate of 6.40 percentttfl@ats quarterly with 3-month LIBOR plus 350 k&pbints. If all or any portion of the
subordinated debt ceases to be deemed Tier 2 Cdp@do a change in applicable capital regulati@reswill have the right to redeem, on any
interest payment date, subject to a 30 day writtatice and prior approval
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by the FDIC, the subordinated debt at the appleabiiemption rate. The redemption rate startshahaof 102.82 percent at June 15, 2009 an
decreases yearly to 100 percent on June 15, 2@l thareafter and can be called after five years. Sibordinated debt qualifies as Tier 2
capital under regulatory guidelines and will matareJune 15, 2018.

Also during the second quarter of 2008, we iss®&IGmillion of junior subordinated debt througpravate placement with a financial
institution at an initial rate of 5.15 percent tiaats quarterly with 3-month LIBOR plus 250 bagants. At any time after May 30, 2013, we
will have the right to redeem all or a portion bétsubordinated debt, subject to a 30-day writtgit@ and prior approval by the FDIC. The
subordinated debt qualifies as Tier 2 capital umdgulatory guidelines and will mature on May 3018.

Wealth Management Assets

As of December 31, 2012, the fair value of the I8ank wealth management assets under managemeatamdistration, or AUM,
which are not accounted for as part of our asgeteeased to $1.7 billion from $1.5 billion as oé&mber 31, 2011. AUM consist of $1.1
billion in S&T Trust and $0.6 billion in S&T Finara Services. The increase in 2012 is primarilyiladitable to the improved performance of
the U.S. and global capital markets.

Explanation of Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to the results of operations preseinieatcordance with GAAP, our management uses d@ad\tinual Report contains or
references, certain non-GAAP financial measuresh 13 net interest income on a fully taxable-edaivabasis, operating revenue and the
efficiency ratio. We believe these non-GAAP finalcheasures provide information useful to investonsnderstanding our underlying
operational performance and our business and peaface trends as they facilitate comparisons withpirformance of other companies in the
financial services industry. Although we believattthese non-GAAP financial measures enhance iorgstnderstanding of our business and
performance, these non-GAAP financial measuresldhmi be considered an alternative to GAAP or mered to be more important than
financial results determined in accordance with GAAor is it necessarily comparable with non-GAA@asures which may be presented by
other companies.

We believe the presentation of net interest incoma fully taxable-equivalent basis ensures conigilitsaof net interest income arising
from both taxable and tax-exempt sources and isistamt with industry practice. Interest income ther Consolidated Statements of Net
Income is reconciled to net interest income adglittea fully taxable-equivalent basis on pagesr82328.

Operating revenue is the sum of net interest incantenoninterest income less security gains/lossesder to understand the significa
of net interest income to our business and opeyaéaults, we believe it is appropriate to evaldlgesignificance of net interest income as a
component of operating revenue.

The efficiency ratio is recurring noninterest exgedivided by recurring noninterest income plusimigtrest income, on a fully taxable-
equivalent basis, which ensures comparability ofimerest income arising from both taxable andg¢agmpt sources and is consistent with
industry practice.

Capital Resources

Shareholders’ equity increased $46.9 million to&83nillion at December 31, 2012 compared to $48dilkon at December 31, 2011.
The increase in shareholders’ equity is primarikg do the issuance of 1.5 million shares of comstook of $27.6 million, for the two
acquisitions consummated in 2012, and the addifégi14.6 million in retained earnings, primarilyroprised of
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net income of $34.2 million reduced by common stdiskdends of $17.4 million. Included in other comapensive income was an increase of
$4.1 million in unrealized gains on securities &lae-for-sale due to the continued low interet Environment.

We continue to maintain a strong capital positidtiha leverage ratio of 9.31 percent as comparékdaaegulatory guideline of 5.00
percent to be well capitalized. Our risk-based Tiand Total capital ratios were 11.98 percentEn89 percent, respectively, at December 31
2012, which places us significantly above the Faldeeserve’s “well capitalized” guidelines of 6 0@rcent and 10.00 percent for Tier 1 and
Total capital. We believe that we have sufficiemslt flow, on balance sheet liquidity and borrowgagacity to fund all outstanding
commitments and letters of credit, while maintagnproper levels of liquidity. We believe that wevhahe ability to raise additional capital, if
necessary.

In October 2012, we filed a shelf registrationesta&nt on Form S-3 under the Securities Act of 1@3amended, with the SEC for the
issuance of up to $300.0 million of a variety ofwties including, debt and capital securitiegferred and common stock and warrants. We
may use the proceeds from the issuance of anyisesudor general corporate purposes, which contdiide investments at the holding
company level, investing in, or extending credijtdor subsidiaries, possible acquisitions and stepkirchases. As of December 31, 2012, we
had not issued any securities pursuant to the stgilftration statement.

Contractual Obligations

Contractual obligations represent future cash camanits and liabilities under agreements with tpiadgties and exclude contingent
contractual liabilities for which we cannot reasolygoredict future payments. We have various firanabligations, including contractual
obligations and commitments that may require futagh payments.

The following table presents as of December 31226ignificant fixed and determinable contractualigations to third parties by payme
date:

Payments Due In

2013 2014-2015 2016-2017 Later Years Total
(in thousands)
Deposits without a stated matur® $ 260454 $ $ — 3 —  $ 2,604,544
Certificates of depos® 643,63! 248,79: 131,07: 10,38¢ 1,033,88
Securities sold under repurchase agreen(® 62,58: — — — 62,58:
Shor-term borrowing<® 75,00( — — — 75,00(
Long-term borrowing«® 12,29: 4,76 4,74 12,30: 34,10:
Junior subordinated debt securit® — — — 90,61¢ 90,61¢
Operating and capital leas 2,16¢ 4,33¢ 4,11 43,95 54,56¢
Purchase obligatior 7,38¢ 14,20« 7,524 — 29,11¢
Total $ 3,407,60.  $ 272,09 $147,44¢ $ 157,25¢ $ 3,984,411

@) Excludes interes

Operating lease obligations represent short angHierm lease arrangements as described in Itenot®, N Premises and Equipment, in
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Purchasgabioins primarily represent obligations under agnent with our third party data proces:
servicer and communications charges as describkenm8, Note 17 Commitments and Contingencies.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we offer off-beéasheet credit arrangements to enable our cusgdmeneet their financing objectives.
These instruments involve, to varying degrees, efegmof credit and interest rate risk in excegh@famount recognized in the financial
statements. Our exposure to credit loss, in thatehe customer does not satisfy the terms of gheeanent, equals the contractual amount of
the obligation less the value of any collateral. &pely the same credit policies in making committaemd standby letters of credit that are
used for the underwriting of loans to customeran@itments generally have fixed expiration datesuahrenewals or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since wfathe commitments are expected to expire withimihg drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily representddash requirements. The allowance for unfundedhtitments is included in other
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table sets forth the commitments &iters of credit for the periods stated:

December 31 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Commitments to extend cre« $ 874,13 $ 816,16(
Standby letters of crec 95,39¢ 119,57¢
Total $ 969,53¢ $ 935,73t

Estimates of the fair value of these off-balanceeslitems were not made because of the short-tetanenof these arrangements and the
credit standing of the counterparties.

Our allowance for unfunded commitments is deterchinging a methodology similar to that used to aetee the ALL. Amounts are add
to the allowance for unfunded commitments througharge to current earnings in noninterest expértse balance in the allowance for
unfunded commitments increased by $1.8 million3®$nillion a December 31, 2012 as compared to filllibn at December 31, 2011 due
increases in both the volume of construction commaitts and higher historic loss rates.

Liquidity

Liquidity is defined as a financial institutianability to meet its cash and collateral obligasi@t a reasonable cost. This includes the a
to satisfy the financial needs of depositors whatwa withdraw funds or of borrowers needing toesscfunds to meet their credit needs.
Liquidity risk management involves monitoring andintaining sufficient levels of a diverse set afiding sources that are available for nor
operations and for unanticipated stress evendear to manage liquidity risk our Board of Direstdvas delegated authority to the ALCO, for
formulation, implementation and oversight of ligitydrisk management. ALCO'’s goal is to maintain quigte levels of liquidity to meet our
funding needs in both a normal operating envirortraed for potential liquidity stress events.

Our primary funding and liquidity source is a seabeposit base. We believe that S&T bank has tiigyab retain existing and attract ne
deposits, mitigating a funding dependency on otheire volatile sources. Although deposits are tliragmy source of funds, we have identified
various funding sources that can be used as pauraformal funding program when either a structureost efficiency has been identified.
These funding sources include a cushion of higiglyidl assets, borrowing availability at the FHLEsderal Funds lines with other financial
institutions and access to the brokered certifcatedeposit market including CDARs.
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Since the beginning of the financial industry &isi 2008, monitoring and maintaining appropriédeitlity levels has been a focus of
regulators, bankers and investors. ALCO has enltbatiheemeasurement, monitoring and reporting sysfemgjuidity risk management for
potential liquidity stress events. Specific focas lveen on maintaining an adequate level of agsédity, performing short-term and lorigfm
stress tests and developing a more detailed cantiygfunding plan. We also work to ensure that s€te various wholesale funding source
available, even in a stress event.

ALCO uses a variety of ratios and reports to marotar liquidity position. The ratios and reportslude an asset liquidity ratio, a liquidity
coverage ratio, a loan to deposit ratio, a nontumding ratio, and a cash flow projections repaitCO policy guidelines are in place for each
ratio that defines graduated risk tolerance lewéb ratio moves to high risk, specific actions defined, such as increased monitoring or the
development of an action plan to reduce the rigitipm. As of December 31, 2012 there were no tiyiratios in the high risk tolerance lev

Inflation

Management is aware of the significant effect tidia has on interest rates and can have on finbperéormance. Our ability to cope with
this is best determined by analyzing our capabitityespond to changing interest rates and ouityatil manage noninterest income and
expense. We monitor the mix of interest-rate seesissets and liabilities through ALCO in ordergéduce the impact of inflation on net
interest income. We also control the effects daitidn by reviewing the prices of our products aedvices, by introducing new products and
services and by controlling overhead expenses.
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Market risk is defined as the degree to which cleang interest rates, foreign exchange rates, calitynprices or equity prices can
adversely affect a financial institution’s earnirggscapital. For most financial institutions, inding S&T, market risk primarily reflects
exposures to changes in interest rates. Interesflu@tuations affect earnings by changing nednest income and other interest-sensitive
income and expense levels. Interest rate chanfgst afpital by changing the net present value lmdirak’s future cash flows, and the cash
flows themselves, as rates change. Accepting igkds a normal part of banking and can be an ingmdrsource of profitability and sharehol
value. However, excessive interest rate risk cegmatien banks’ earnings, capital, liquidity and saly. Our sensitivity to changes in interest
rate movements are continually monitored by the BSLBLCO monitors and manages market risk througgr shock analyses, economic ve
of equity, or EVE analysis and simulations in ortteavoid unacceptable earnings and market valiwtufations due to changes in interest r:

Rate shock analyses are performed on a staticdmfdreet to estimate the effect that specific ésterate changes would have on 12
months of preax net interest income. Rate shock analyses asanrimemediate parallel shift in market interesesatAssumptions are modifi
in the decreasing rate shock analyses due to tiydowe level of interest rates. Rate shock analydss incorporate management assumptions
regarding the level of interest rate changes onmaturity deposit products (noninterest-bearing aled) interest-bearing demand, money
market and savings) and changes in the prepaynediatvior of fixed rate loans and securities withiamlity. S&T policy guidelines limit the
change in pre-tax net interest income over a 12tmbarizon using rate shocks of +/- 300 basis oiRblicy guidelines define the percent
change in pre-tax net interest income by graduas&dolerance levels of minimal, moderate and hifjie table below reflects the rate shock
analyses results, which are in the minimal riskrtahce level.

In order to monitor interest rate risk beyond tRenionth time horizon of rate shocks, we also perf&VE analysis. EVE represents the
present value of all asset cash flows minus thegmevalue of all liability cash flows. As with eashock analysis, EVE incorporates
management assumptions regarding prepayment belwd\ired rate loans and securities with optiotyaéind core deposit behavior and value
S&T policy guidelines limit the change in EVE givehanges in rates of +/- 300 basis points. Poligdejines define the percent change in
EVE by graduated risk tolerance levels of minimmabderate and high.

The table below reflects the rate shock and EVHItgswhich are in the minimal risk tolerance level

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Change in Interest % Change in Pretax % Change in % Change in Pretax % Change in
Rate (basis points) Net Interest Income Economic Value of Equity Net Interest Income Economic Value of Equity
+300 8.2 23.2 11z 20.€
+200 5.C 16.¢ 7.3 15.¢
+100 2.C 9.1 8.2 9.1
-100 (2.4) (9.7) (3.9 (12.9
-200 (5.2) (7.5) (6.9) (15.2)
-300 (6.7) (6.6) (8.9) (15.1)

In addition to rate shocks and EVE, simulationspadormed periodically to assess the sensitiVityognario assumptions on pre-tax net
interest income. Simulation analyses most oftenftesensitivity to yield curve shape and sloparaies, severe rate shocks, changes in
prepayment assumptions and significant balancechiaxges.

The results from the rate shock and EVE analysesanmsistent with having an asset sensitive balaheet. Having an asset sensitive
balance sheet means more assets than liabilitiesepiice during the measured time frames. Thdimapions of an asset sensitive balance
sheet will differ
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depending upon the change in market interest retesexample, with an asset sensitive balance sheedeclining interest rate environment,
more assets than liabilities will decrease in rates situation could result in a decrease in netrest income and operating income.
Conversely, with an asset sensitive balance sheetising interest rate environment, more aséets kiabilities will increase in rate. This
situation could result in an increase in net irdehecome and operating income. When comparingekelts of December 31, 2012 to
December 31, 2011 the percent changes are a ofsh# balance sheet becoming less asset senditieeConsolidated Balance Sheet became
less asset sensitive during 2012 mainly as a reéslbwer prepayment behavior of fixed rate loand customer preference for short term
deposit products.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

December 31,

(in thousands, except share and per share data) 2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks, including interest-beatampsits of $257,116 and $208,854 at December 31,

2012 and 2011, respective $ 337,71 $ 270,52t
Securities availab-for-sale, at fair valu 453,09¢ 357,59t
Loans held for sal 22,49¢ 2,85(
Portfolio loans, net of unearned income of $216 $nthb at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respect 3,346,62 3,129,75!
Allowance for loan losse (46,489 (48,847

Portfolio loans, ne 3,300,13! 3,080,91
Bank owned life insuranc 58,61¢ 56,75¢
Premises and equipment, | 38,67¢ 37,75¢
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at ¢ 14,48t 18,21¢
Goodwill 175,73: 165,27
Other intangibles, n¢ 5,35( 5,72¢
Other asset 120,39! 124,37
Total Assets $4,526,70; $4,119,99.
LIABILITIES
Deposits:

Noninteres-bearing deman $ 960,98( $ 818,68t

Interes-bearing deman 316,76( 283,61:

Money marke 361,23: 278,09:

Savings 965,57: 802,94

Certificates of depos 1,033,88: 1,152,52
Total Deposits 3,638,42i 3,335,85!
Securities sold under repurchase agreen 62,58 30,37(
Shor-term borrowings 75,00( 75,00(
Long-term borrowings 34,10: 31,87
Junior subordinated debt securit 90,61¢ 90,61¢
Other liabilities 88,55( 65,74¢
Total Liabilities 3,989,28! 3,629,46!
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock ($2.50 par value)

Authorized—50,000,000 shares

Issued—31,197,365 shares and 29,714,038 sharexcatiber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively

Outstandin—29,732,209 shares and 28,131,249 shares at Dec8&hl2012 and 2011, respectivi 77,99: 74,28t
Additional paic-in capital 77,45¢ 52,63}
Retained earning 436,03 421,46
Accumulated other comprehensive I (13,587 (14,109
Treasury stock (1,465,156 shares and 1,582,78@shar December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, at

cost) (40,486 (43,756
Total Shareholders’ Equity 537,42: 490,52t
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $4,526,70: $4,119,99

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NET INCOME
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Years ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2012 2011 2010
INTEREST INCOME
Loans, including fee $145,18: $154,12: $169,40:
Investment Securitie:

Taxable 7,544 8,16¢ 7,68t

Tax-exempt 3,121 2,341 2,83(

Dividends 40& 442 50C
Total Interest Income 156,25 165,07¢ 180,41
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits 16,79¢ 22,95; 28,711
Borrowings and junior subordinated debt secur 4,22¢ 4,781 5,85¢
Total Interest Expense 21,02« 27,73 34,57:
NET INTEREST INCOME 135,22 137,34t 145,84t
Provision for loan losse 22,81¢ 15,60¢ 29,51
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 112,41. 121,73 116,33!
NONINTEREST INCOME
Debit and credit card fet 11,13 10,88¢ 9,95¢
Service charges on deposit accol 9,99- 9,97¢ 11,17¢
Wealth management fe 9,80¢ 8,18( 7,80¢
Insurance fee 8,44¢ 8,31« 8,31
Securities gains (losses), | 3,01¢ (1249 274
Mortgage banking 2,87¢ 1,19¢ 3,40z
Other 6,63¢ 5,621 6,28
Total Noninterest Income 51,91: 44,057 47,21(
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee bene 60,25¢ 51,07¢ 48,71¢
Data processin 9,62( 6,85: 6,14t
Net occupanc! 7,60¢ 6,94: 6,92¢
Professional services and le 5,65¢ 5,437 6,88¢
Furniture and equipme 5,26: 4,941 5,05¢
Marketing 3,30z 3,01¢ 2,79t
Other taxe: 3,20( 3,381 3,43
FDIC assessmel 2,92¢ 3,57( 5,42¢
Other 25,03¢ 18,68¢ 20,24¢
Total Noninterest Expense 122,86. 103,90¢ 105,63:
Income Before Taxes 41,46 61,88¢ 57,91:
Provision for income taxe 7,261 14,62: 14,43:
Net Income 34,20( 47,26¢ 43,48(
Preferred stock dividends and discount amortize — 7,611 6,207
Net Income Available to Common Shareholder $ 34,20( $ 39,65 $ 37,27¢
Earnings per common sh—basic $ 1.1¢ $ 1.4 $ 134
Earnings per common sh—diluted 1.1¢ 1.41 1.34
Dividends declared per common sh 0.6( 0.6( 0.6(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Net Income $34,20( $ 47,26¢ $43,48(
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Tax andét of Reclassifications into Ne

Income:
Change in unrealized gains on securities avai-for-sale 4,09 6,70z 69t
Reclassification adjustment for net (gains) lossesecurities available-for-sale included in net

income (3,016 124 (274
Adjustment to funded status of employee benefihg (271) (18,787 (60€)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Tax andé\ of Reclassifications into Ne

Income 81C (11,969 (185)
Income tax (expense) benefit related to items loéiotomprehensive incon (289 4,18 65
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), After Tax and Neof Reclassifications into Ne

Income 52€ (7,779 (120
Comprehensive Income $34,72¢ $ 39,49( $43,36(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Additional Accumulated
Preferred Common Retained Other Treasury

(thousands, except share Paid-in Comprehensive

and per share data) Stock Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Total

Balance at December 31, 20C $ 105,37( $ 74,28t $  51,15¢ $ 383,11 $ (6,219 $ (54,399 $ 553,31
Net income for 201! 43,48( 43,48(
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of (220 (220)
Preferred stock dividends and discount amortize 767 (6,207) (5,439
Cash dividends declared ($0.60 per sh (16,687) (16,687)
Treasury stock issued (205,135 sha (2,980 5,67: 3,692
Recognition of restricted stock compensation exp 47C 47C
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensatic 46 46
Forfeitures of nonstatutory stock options (11,008res) (104) (104)
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 106,13 $ 74,28 $ 51,57( $ 401,73 $ (6,339 $ (48,72) $ 578,66!
Net income for 201. 47,26¢ 47,26¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of (7,779 (7,779
Redemption of preferred sto (108,671) (108,67¢)
Preferred stock dividends and discount amortize 2,53¢ (7,61)) (5,079
Cash dividends declared ($0.60 per sh (16,830) (16,830)
Treasury stock issued (182,507 shares, (3,089 4,971 1,882
Recognition of restricted stock compensation exg 1,138 1,13
Tax expense from sto-based compensatic (66) (66)
Balance at December 31, 201 $ — $ 74,28t $ 52,63i $ 421,46 $ (14,109 $ (43,75¢)  $ 490,52¢
Net income for 201 34,200 34,20(
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of 52€ 52€
Cash dividends declared ($0.60 per sh (17,35) (17,35)
Common stock issued in acquisition (1,483,327 s)i 3,70¢ 23,90z 27,61(
Treasury stock issued (117,6shares, net (2,272) 3,27( 99¢
Recognition of restricted stock compensation exg 94¢ 94¢
Tax expense from sto-based compensatic (30) (30)
Balance at December 31, 201 $ = $ 77,99 $  77,45¢ $ 436,03 $ (13,58) $ (40,480 $ 537,42

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income $  34,20( $ 47,26« $  43,48(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Provision for loan losse 22,81 15,60¢ 29,51:
Provision for unfunded loan commitmel 1,811 (2,479 (1,555
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,00( 6,32% 6,581
Net amortization of discounts and premiu 2,28( 1,191 881
Stocl-based compensation expel 913 96( 513
Securities (gains) losses, 1 (3,01¢) 124 (274
Deferred income taxe 1,03¢ 2,44¢ (4,537
Tax expense (benefit) from st-based compensatic 30 66 (46)
Mortgage loans originated for s¢ (104,929 (68,267) (121,88)
Proceeds from the sale of loe 86,88¢ 74,78( 119,61°
Gain on the sale of loans, r (1,619 (875) (1,80¢
Net decrease in interest receiva 972 58¢ 2,75z
Net decrease in interest paya (1,37¢) (443) (1,679
Net decrease (increase) in other as 18,81¢ 4,13: (2,745
Net increase (decrease) increase in other ligs 18,050 (8,53) 20,17(
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 83,89( 73,90: 88,98
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of securities availe-for-sale (166,780 (135,44) (82,89()
Proceeds from maturities, prepayments and cabedidrities availab-for-sale 87,60« 71,31¢ 146,96(
Proceeds from sales of securities avail-for-sale 66,57¢ 70 257
Proceeds from the redemption of Federal Home LcankBtock 5,70C 4,14¢ 1,177
Net (increase) decrease in lo: (21,89) 185,18: 3,23¢
Proceeds from the sale of loans not originatededsale 3,87¢ 8,59¢ —
Purchases of premises and equipn (2,17¢ (2,53)) (3,469
Proceeds from the sale of premises and equip 14z 404 60
Net cash acquired from bank acquisitit 18,63¢ — —
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activitie: (8,329 131,74( 67,65!
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in core depos 207,65: 105,77t 63,38
Net decrease in certificates of dept (217,31) (87,557) (50,53¢)
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold ungercbase agreements and federal funds purct 28,44. (10,287 (4,28))
Net (decrease) increase in skterm borrowings — 75,00( (51,300
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 4,311 4,19: 9,241
Repayments of lor-term borrowings (15,089 (1,687) (65,770
Redemption of preferred sto — (108,67¢) —
Purchase of treasury sha (49) (64) —
Sale of treasury shar 1,047 1,94¢ 3,692
Preferred stock dividenc — (5,079 (5,439
Cash dividends paid to common sharehol (17,35) (16,83() (16,687
Tax (expense) benefit from stc-based compensatic (30 (66) 46
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (8,382) (43,31)) (117,64)
Net increase in cash and cash equival 67,18¢ 162,33( 38,99¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 270,52¢ 108,19¢ 69,20:
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Yea $ 337,71 $ 270,52t $ 108,19¢
Supplemental Disclosure:
Interest paic $ 22,32¢ $ 27,730 $ 36,25
Income taxes paid, net of refur 4,06° 15,10( 14,81¢
Loans transferred to held for si 19,25¢ 8,75:¢ —
Net assets (liabilities) from acquisitions, exchglcash and cash equivale (68%) — —
Transfers to other real estate owned and othessessed asse 1,91¢ 8,47: 11,30¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

S&T Bancorp, Inc., or S&T, was incorporated on Maid, 1983 under the laws of the Commonwealth ohBgvania as a bank holding
company and has three wholly owned subsidiarie§; B&nk, 9th Street Holdings, Inc. and STBA Capitaist I. We own a onkalf interest il
Commonwealth Trust Credit Life Insurance CompamyC®CLIC.

We are presently engaged in nonbanking activitiesuigh the following five entities: 9th Street Hioigs, Inc.; S&T Bancholdings, Inc.;
CTCLIC; S&T Insurance Group, LLC and Stewart Cdpitdvisors, LLC. 9th Street Holdings, Inc. and S&&ancholdings, Inc. are investment
holding companies. CTCLIC, which is a joint ventwi¢gh another financial institution, acts as a seirer of credit life, accident and health
insurance policies sold by S&T Bank and the othstitution. S&T Insurance Group, LLC, through itdsidiaries, offers a variety of insurar
products. Stewart Capital Advisors, LLC is a regjistl investment advisor that manages private imaygtaccounts for individuals and
institutions and advises the Stewart Capital Migh €and.

On March 9, 2012, we completed the acquisition@r/ersion of Mainline Bancorp, Inc., or Mainlirebank holding company based in
Ebensburg, Pennsylvania. Mainline had one subgidiainline National Bank, with eight branches &@i®9.5 million in loans and $206.0
million in deposits. The acquisition expanded oarket share and footprint throughout Cambria aradrBlounties of Western Pennsylvania.
The total acquisition cost of Mainline was $27.8liom.

On August 13, 2012, we completed the acquisitioBateway Bank of Pennsylvania, a bank with $99 lianiin loans and $105.4 millio
in deposits, headquartered in McMurray, Pennsybiahie total acquisition cost of Gateway Bank wEs.& million. As of December 31,
2012, Gateway was operating as a separate wholhedwubsidiary of S&T, with all transactions sitice acquisition date consolidated in our
financial statements. On February 8, 2013, GatdBank was merged into S&T Bank, and their two braschre now fully operational
branches of S&T Bank.

Accounting Policies

Our financial statements have been prepared inrdanoe with U. S. generally accepted accountingciples, or GAAP. In preparing the
financial statements, management is required tceneakmates and assumptions that affect the reapan®unts of assets and liabilities as of
the dates of the balance sheets and revenues padses for the periods then ended. Actual resoitkldiffer from those estimates. Our
significant accounting policies are described below

Principals of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include ticeunts of S&T and its wholly owned subsidiarie.significant intercompany
transactions have been eliminated in consolidatiorestments of 20 percent to 50 percent of thetantling common stock of investees are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting
Reclassification

Certain amounts in prior years’ financial statersdrdve been reclassified to conform to the cuieat’s presentation. The
reclassifications had no significant effect on msults of operations or financial condition.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Business Combinations

We account for business combinations using theisitigun method of accounting. Under this methododounting, the acquired
company’s net assets are recorded at fair valtreeatate of acquisition, and the results of openstiof the acquired company are combined
with our results from that date forward. Acquisiticosts are expensed when incurred. The differbateeen the purchase price and the fair
value of the net assets acquired (including idertiintangibles) is recorded as goodwill.

Fair Value Measurements

We use fair value measurements when recording etbging certain financial assets and liabiliti®ecurities available-for-sale, trading
assets and derivatives are recorded at fair valuerecurring basis. Additionally, from time to 8rwe may be required to record other assets
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, such assi¢etd for sale, impaired loans, other real esiateed, or OREO, mortgage servicing rights, o
MSRs, and certain other assets.

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddiban asset or paid to transfer a liability in gracipal or most advantageous market in ar
orderly transaction between market participants@imeasurement date. An orderly transactionriaresaction that assumes exposure to the
market for a period prior to the measurement datdlow for marketing activities that are usual @mdtomary for transactions involving such
assets or liabilities; it is not a forced transactiin determining fair value, we use various vatraapproaches, including market, income and
cost approaches. The fair value standard establesimgerarchy for inputs used in measuring faingahat maximizes the use of observable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputequiring that observable inputs be used wivaiilable. Observable inputs are inputs
that market participants would use in pricing aseasr liability, which is developed, based on netidata we have obtained from independent
sources. Unobservable inputs reflect our estimbéssumptions that market participants would uggricing an asset or liability, which are
developed based on the best information availabtkd circumstances.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priotdyunadjusted quoted market prices in active ntarke identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority tohservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The flireshierarchy is broken down into th
levels based on the reliability of inputs as foltow

Level 1: valuation is based upon unadjusted quotarket prices for identical instruments tradeddtive markets.

Level 2: valuation is based upon quoted marketgrior similar instruments traded in active markgt®ted market prices for identical or
similar instruments traded in markets that areaative and model-based valuation techniques fochwvhll significant assumptions are
observable in the market or can be corroboratethéket data.

Level 3: valuation is derived from other valuatimethodologies, including discounted cash flow medeld similar techniques that use
significant assumptions not observable in the ntafkdeese unobservable assumptions reflect estinoft@ssumptions that market participants
would use in determining fair value.

A financial instrument’s level within the fair vathierarchy is based on the lowest level of inpat ts significant to the fair value
measurement. Our policy is to recognize transfet&den any of the fair value hierarchy levels atehd of the reporting period in which the
transfer occurred.

The following are descriptions of the valuation heetologies that we use for financial instrumentorded at fair value on either a
recurring or nonrecurring basis.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Recurring Basis
Securities Available-for-Sale

Securities available-for-sale include both debt equity securities.

We obtain fair values for debt securities from iadparty pricing service, which utilizes severalusces for valuing fixed-income
securities. The market evaluation sources for debtirities include observable inputs rather thgniitant unobservable inputs and are
classified as Level 2. The service provider ut8ipeicing models that vary by asset class and dtechvailable trade, bid and other market
information. Generally, the methodologies includekier quotes, proprietary models, vast descrigivms and conditions databases, as well
extensive quality control programs.

Marketable equity securities that have an activetaple market are classified as Level 1. Market&loluity securities that are quotable,
are thinly traded or inactive, are classified agdl@ and securities that are not readily tradetidmnot have a quotable market are classifie
Level 3.

Trading Assets

We use quoted market prices to determine the &irevof our trading assets. Our trading assetheltkin a Rabbi Trust under a deferred
compensation plan and are invested in readily guetetual funds. Accordingly, these assets areifiledss Level 1. Trading assets are
recorded in other assets in the Consolidated Bal&heets.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We use derivative instruments, including interast swaps for commercial loans with our custonaard,we sell mortgage loans in the
secondary market and enter into interest rate dockmitments. We calculate the fair value for detixes using widely accepted valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow analggsishe expected cash flows of each derivativehEatuation considers the contractual
terms of the derivative, including the period totumdly and uses observable market based inputh, @siinterest rate curves and implied
volatilities. Accordingly, derivatives are classifi as Level 2.

We incorporate credit valuation adjustments int\hluation models to appropriately reflect both @wn nonperformance risk and the
respective counterparty’s nonperformance risk Inudating fair value measurements. In adjustingfttievalue of our derivative contracts for
the effect of nonperformance risk, we have considéne impact of netting and any applicable creditancements and collateral postings.

Nonrecurring Basis
Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale consist of 1-4 family residaintians originated for sale in the secondary ntaake, from time to time, certain loans
transferred from the loan portfolio to loans hedd $ale, all of which are carried at the lower o$tcor fair value. The fair value of 1-4 family
residential loans is based on the principal or rmdsantageous market currently offered for simdans using observable market data. The fa
value of the loans transferred from the loan péicfis based on the amounts offered for these l@aesrrently pending sales transactions.
Loans held for sale carried at fair value are dieskas Level 3.

Impaired Loans

Impaired loans are carried at the lower of carryiafyie or fair value. Fair value is determinedtesrecorded investment balance less any
specific reserve. We establish a specific reseageth on the following three impairment methodgh#)present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

the loan’s original effective interest rate, 2) than’s observable market price or 3) the fair eadfithe collateral less estimated selling costs
when the loan is collateral dependent and we expdifjuidate the collateral. However, if repaymenéxpected to come from the operation of
the collateral, rather than liquidation, then wendd consider estimated selling costs in deterngitiire fair value of the collateral. Collateral
values are generally based upon appraisals by eggrindependent state certified appraisers.

Appraisals may be discounted based on our histdamavledge, changes in market conditions fromtitme of appraisal or our knowledge
of the borrower and the borrower’s business. Inguhioans carried at fair value are classified asL8.

OREO and Other Repossessed Assets

OREO and other repossessed assets obtained ial parbtal satisfaction of a loan are recordethatlower of recorded investment in the
loan or fair value less cost to sell. Subsequefar@closure, these assets are carried at the lofitee amount recorded at acquisition date or
fair value less cost to sell. Accordingly, it magy tecessary to record nonrecurring fair value &ajests. Fair value, when recorded, is
generally based upon appraisals by approved, imdkgme state certified appraisers. Like impairechép@ppraisals on OREO may be
discounted based on our historical knowledge, cbamgmarket conditions from the time of appratsabther information available to us.
OREO and other repossessed assets are classiliedes3.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The fair value of MSRs is determined by calculatimg present value of estimated future net sergicash flows, considering expected
mortgage loan prepayment rates, discount rateacs®y costs and other economic factors, whichdatermined based on current market
conditions. The expected rate of mortgage loangyeyents is the most significant factor driving adue of MSRs. If the carrying value of
MSRs exceeds fair value, they are considered irapaks the valuation model includes significanthservable inputs, MSRs are classified ac
Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

Other Assets

We measure certain other assets at fair valuemmmeecurring basis. Fair value is based on thei@jan of lower of cost or fair value
accounting, or writedowns of individual assets. Valuation methodologissd to measure fair value are consistent withativerinciples of fair
value accounting and consistent with those destribve.

Financial Instruments

In addition to financial instruments recorded at ¥alue in our financial statements, fair value@mting guidance requires disclosure of
the fair value of all of an entity’s assets andilities that are considered financial instrumeiiise majority of our assets and liabilities are
considered financial instruments. Many of thesé&rimsents lack an available trading market as charaed by a willing buyer and willing
seller engaged in an exchange transaction. Als®oiir general practice and intent to hold ouaficial instruments to maturity and to not
engage in trading or sales activities. For faiueadisclosure purposes, we substantially utilizefélir value measurement criteria as required
and explained above. In cases where quoted faiegadre not available, we use present value metbatktermine the fair value of our
financial instruments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Short-Term Assets

The carrying amounts reported in the ConsolidateldiBe Sheets for cash and due from banks, ingudtarest-bearing deposits,
approximate fair value.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Loans

The fair value of variable rate performing loanbased on carrying values adjusted for credit fisie fair value of fixed rate performing
loans is estimated using discounted cash flow @ealyutilizing interest rates currently being a#tefor loans with similar terms, adjusted for
credit risk. The fair value of nonperforming loda$ased on their carrying values less any speafierve. The carrying amount of accrued
interest approximates fair value.

Bank Owned Life Insurance
Fair value approximates net cash surrender value.

Deposits

The fair values disclosed for deposits without ikedi maturities (e.g., noninterest and interestibgatemand, money market and savings
accounts) are by definition equal to the amounysble on demand. The carrying amounts for variedtke, fixed-term time deposits
approximate their fair values. Estimated fair valémr fixed rate and other time deposits are basediscounted cash flow analysis, using
interest rates currently offered for time deposiith similar terms. The carrying amount of accrugérest approximates fair value.

Short-Term Borrowings

The carrying amounts of securities sold under relpase agreements, federal funds purchased andsbibrterm borrowings approxima
their fair values.

Long-Term Borrowings

The fair values disclosed for fixed rate long-tdvarrowings are determined by discounting their raottial cash flows using current
interest rates for long-term borrowings of similemaining maturities. The carrying amounts of Malgaate longierm borrowings approxima
their fair values.
Junior Subordinated Debt Securities

The variable rate junior subordinated debt se@giteprice quarterly and fair values are basedaawyiag values.

Loan Commitments and Standby Letters of Credit

Off-balance sheet financial instruments consistamimitments to extend credit and letters of crdghtept for interest rate lock
commitments, estimates of the fair value of thedalance sheet items are not made because shibré-term nature of these arrangements
and the credit standing of the counterparties.
Other

Estimates of fair value are not made for items #natnot defined as financial instruments, inclgdinch items as our core deposit
intangibles and the value of our trust operations.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider cash and due from banks, interestpdeposits with banks and federal funds sold als aad cash equivalents.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Securities

We determine the appropriate classification of sées at the time of purchase. All securities Juling both debt and equity securities, are
classified as available-for-sale. These are seesitihat we intend to hold for an indefinite perafdime, but that may be sold in response to
changes in interest rates, prepayment risk, liggpitkeds or other factors. Such securities aréechat fair value with net unrealized gains and
losses deemed to be temporary, reported as a canpohother comprehensive income, net of tax. iRedlgains and losses on the sale of
available-for-sale securities and other-than-tempoimpairment, or OTTI, charges are recorded witioninterest income in the Consolidated
Statements of Net Income. Realized gains and lasséise sale of securities are determined usingpleeific-identification method. Bond
premiums are amortized to the call date and boscbdints are accreted to the maturity date, both lemel yield basis.

We perform a quarterly review of our securitiesdentify those that may indicate an OTTI. Our pplior OTTI within the marketable
equity securities portfolio generally requires enpairment charge when the security is in a los#ipasor 12 consecutive months, unless fact:
and circumstances would suggest the need for anl @ar to that time. Our policy for OTTI within ¢hdebt securities portfolio is based upon
a number of factors, including but not limited tioe length of time and extent to which the estimiditér value has been less than cost, the
financial condition of the underlying issuer, th#ligy of the issuer to meet contractual obligapthe best estimate of impairment charge
representing credit losses, the likelihood of theusity’s ability to recover any decline in itsiesated fair value and whether management
intends to sell the security or if it is more likghan not that management will be required tothellinvestment security prior to the security’s
recovery.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale consist of 1-4 family residantvans originated for sale in the secondary nteakd from time to time, certain loans
transferred from the loan portfolio to loans heldd $ale, all of which are carried at the lower otcor fair value. If a loan is transferred frore
loan portfolio to the held-for-sale category, amytexdown in the carrying amount of the loan at dage of transfer is recorded as a charge-off
against the allowance for loan loss, or ALL. Sulvsst declines in fair value are recognized as ageh®d noninterest income. When a loan is
placed in the held-for-sale category, we stop aiziog the related deferred fees and costs. Theiréngaunamortized fees and costs are
recognized as part of the cost basis of the lodineatime it is sold. Gains and losses on salésaofs held for sale are included in other
noninterest income in the Consolidated StatemedHteblincome.

Loans

Loans are reported at the principal amount outdtgnaet of unearned income, unamortized premiundismounts and deferred originat
fees and costs. We defer certain nonrefundabledagmation and commitment fees. Accretion of disats and amortization of premiums on
loans are included in interest income in the Cadatéd Statements of Net Income. Loan originateesfand direct loan origination costs are
deferred and amortized as an adjustment of lodd pieer the respective lives of the loans withautsideration of anticipated prepayments. If
a loan is paid off, the remaining unaccreted omuordized net origination fees and costs are immelliaecognized into income or expense.
Interest is accrued on loans as earned. Interesinia is recognized on loans as earned.

Closed-end installment loans, amortizing loans metby real estate and any other loans with paysreatteduled monthly are reported
past due when the borrower is in arrears two oremoonthly payments. Other multi-payment obligatiauith payments scheduled other than
monthly are reported past due when one schedulgder#t is due and unpaid for 30 days or more.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Generally, consumer loans are charged off agdiesft.L upon the loan reaching 90 days past due.@eruvial loans are charged off as
management becomes aware of facts and circumstdratagise doubt as to the collectability of allboportion of the principal and when we
believe a confirmed loss exists.

Nonaccrual Loans

We stop accruing interest on a loan (honaccrual)lednen the borrowes’ payment is 90 days past due. Loans are alsodptataonaccru
status when payment is not past due, but we hawvet@dout the borrower’s ability to comply with sting repayment terms. When the interes
accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued intdseeversed against interest income. Interestrimeis recognized on nonaccrual loans on a
cash basis if recovery of the remaining princigalasonably assured. As a general rule, a noradoain may be restored to accrual status
when its principal and interest is paid current #rabank expects repayment of the remaining coiahprincipal and interest, or when the
loan otherwise becomes well secured and in theegsoof collection.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The ALL reflects our estimates of probable lossd®ient in the loan portfolio at the balance ske#t. The methodology for determining
the ALL has two main components: evaluation andaimpent tests of individual loans and evaluatiod Bnpairment tests of certain groups of
homogeneous loans with similar risk characteristics

A loan is considered impaired when it is probahkg tve will be unable to collect all principal ainterest payments due according to the
original contractual terms of the loan agreemers.iWdividually evaluate all substandard, doubtfud @aonaccrual commercial loans greater
than $0.5 million for impairment. All troubled defgtstructurings, or TDRs, are considered to be irmgdoans and will be reported as an
impaired loan for the remaining life of the loanjess the restructuring agreement specifies anestteate equal to or greater than the rate tha
would be accepted at the time of the restructuidng new loan with comparable risk and it is fudtypected that the remaining principal and
interest will be collected according to the restmued agreement. For all TDRs, regardless of sizeyell as all other impaired loans, we
conduct further analysis to determine the probldde and assign a specific reserve to the loaedfreed appropriate. Specific reserves are
established based upon the following three impaitmeethods: 1) the present value of expected fudasé flows discounted at the loan’s
original effective interest rate, 2) the loan’s ebhsble market price or 3) the estimated fair vaiithe collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. Our impairment evaluations consist pilynaf the fair value of collateral method sincesh loans are collateral dependent.
Collateral values are discounted to consider ditipascosts when appropriate. A specific reservesismblished or a charge-off is taken if the
fair value of the impaired loan is less than theorded investment in the loan balance.

The ALL for homogeneous loans is calculated usisgsaematic methodology that is applied on a gugrbasis. The ALL model is
comprised of five distinct portfolio segments: Igrmercial Real Estate, or CRE, 2) Commercial adlddtrial, or C&l, 3) Commercial
Construction, 4) Consumer Real Estate and 5) GZbasumer. Each segment has a distinct set of higkacteristics monitored by
management. We further assess and monitor rislparidrmance at a more disaggregated level whidndies our internal risk rating system
for the commercial segments and collateral pos#iot loan-to-value, or LTV, for the consumer segtsien

Historical loss rate calculations are performed ngbg past losses from each pool of loans are agtgdgver the respective loss
emergence period. The loss emergence period isetkfis the average time between the occurrenceretld event (deterioration in the
borrower’s financial condition) and the confirmatiof a loss. Currently, we have estimated the éossrgence period to
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

be two years for CRE loans and one year for akolian classes. We use a one year look back péradesults, when considering our loss
emergence periods, in capturing historic losseshi@e years for CRE and two years for our othetfgid segments. These historic loss
calculations are then aggregated and applied to leao segment to determine the component of thie Bdsed upon historic losses. Since the
losses captured in the historical loss analysis nmyaccurately represent the losses inherengitodn portfolio at the balance sheet date,
qualitative adjustments are then applied to logmsants to determine the total ALL. Qualitative aijnents are aggregated into five catega
including process, economic conditions, loan ptidf@asset quality and other external factors.

Within the five aforementioned categories, thedaihg qualitative factors are considered:

1) Changes in our lending policies and procedunetding underwriting standards, collection, chexajf and recovery practices not
considered elsewhere in estimating credit los

2) Changes in national, regional, and local econ@and business conditions and developments thedtaffe collectability of the
portfolio, including the condition of various matksegments

3) Changes in the nature and volume of our loan partéand terms of loan:

4) Changes in the experience, ability and depth oflendling management and stz

5) Changes in the volume and severity of past daed, the volume of non accrual loans, and thenveland severity of adversely
classified or graded loan

6) Changes in the quality of our loan review syst

7) Changes in the value of the underlying collatevalcbllaters-dependent loan:

8) The existence and effect of any concentrationseditand changes in the level of such concentratianc

9) The effect of external factors such as competieind legal and regulatory requirements on thel lefrestimated credit losses in our
current loan portfolio

Bank Owned Life Insurance

We have purchased life insurance policies on aeggécutive officers and employees. We receivedsh surrender value of each policy
upon its termination or benefits are payable upendeath of the insured. Changes in net cash slarealue are recognized in noninterest
income or expense in the Consolidated Statemeridgbhcome.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment, including leasehold impneves, are stated at cost less accumulated dejioecislaintenance and repairs are
charged to expense as incurred, while improventaatextend an asset’s useful life are capitalered depreciated over the estimated
remaining life of the asset. Depreciation expessmputed generally by the straight-line methadif@ncial reporting purposes and
accelerated methods for income tax purposes. Leltsehprovements are amortized over the short¢he@fasset’s useful life or the remaining
lease term, including renewal periods when readgrassured.

Restricted Investment in Bank Stock

Federal Home Loan Bank, or FHLB, stock is carriedost and evaluated for impairment based on tti@ate recoverability of the par
value. We hold FHLB stock because we are a memitted=HLB of Pittsburgh. The FHLB requires membterpurchase and hold a specified
level of FHLB stock based upon on the members asdet, level of borrowings and participation imet programs offered. Stock in the FH
is non-marketable and is redeemable at the discrefithe FHLB. Members do not purchase stock enRHLB for the same reasons that
traditional equity investors acquire stock in aweistor-owned enterprise. Rather, members purchask t® obtain access to
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the low-cost products and services offered by tHeB: Unlike equity securities of traditional fqrofit enterprises, the stock of the FHLB di
not provide its holders with an opportunity for tapappreciation because, by regulation, FHLB lstoan only be purchased, redeemed and
transferred at par value. Both cash and stock endgd are reported as income in taxable investneentrisies in the Consolidated Statements o
Net Income

On February 22, 2012, the FHLB of Pittsburgh anmedirthat it would pay a dividend on the averagétabgtock balance held during the
three month period ended December 31, 2011 at@mumdined rate of 0.10% for the first time since12008. The FHLB noted future dividend
payments and capital stock repurchases will coatiowbe reviewed on a quarterly basis. We had $lion of redemptions from the FHLB
throughout 2012. We reviewed and evaluated the Fetyital stock for OTTI at December 31, 2012. Baggan our review of the FHLB's
current financial position, they reported improwaanings throughout 2012 compared to 2011 androomto exceed all capital ratios required
Additionally, we considered that the FHLB beganipgydividends and redeeming excess stock durin@ 28&cordingly, we believe sufficient
evidence exists to conclude that no OTTI exisBetember 31, 2012.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We have three reporting units: Community Bankingalth Management and Insurance. At December 32,204 had goodwill of $175
million, including $171.5 million in Community Bairlg, representing 98 percent of total goodwill &d2 million in Insurance, representing
two percent of total goodwill. The carrying valuegoodwill is tested annually for impairment eacbt@er 1 or more frequently if it is
determined that we should do so. We first asseabitatively whether it is more likely than not ththe fair value of a reporting unit is less than
its carrying amount. Our qualitative assessmensiciens such factors as macroeconomic conditionskehaonditions specifically related to
the banking industry, our overall financial perf@amee and various other factors. If we determineithis more likely than not that the fair
value is less than the carrying amount, we protedest for impairment. The evaluation for impaimhavolves comparing the current
estimated fair value of each reporting unit tccaisrying value, including goodwill. If the curreestimated fair value of a reporting unit exceed:
its carrying value, no additional testing is reqdiland impairment loss is not recorded. If thevested fair value of a reporting unit is less than
the carrying value, further valuation proceduresgerformed and could result in impairment of goitidveing recorded. Further valuation
procedures would include allocating the estimagovialue to all assets and liabilities of the mejpg unit to determine an implied goodwill
value. If the implied value of goodwill of a repiag unit is less than the carrying amount of thaddwill, an impairment loss is recognized in
an amount equal to that excess.

We have core deposit and other intangible assststirey from acquisitions which are subject to atization. We determine the amount of
identifiable intangible assets based upon indep@ntie deposit and insurance contract analysixe dime of the acquisition. Intangible as:
with finite useful lives are evaluated for impainm&vhenever events or changes in circumstancesatelthat their carrying amount may no
recoverable. No events or changes in circumstathe¢svould indicate that the carrying amount of aigntifiable intangible assets may not be
recoverable had occurred during the years endedrbleer 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Joint Ventures

We have made investments directly in Low Income s$ttogl Tax Credit, or LIHTC, partnerships formed witird parties. As a limited
partner in these operating partnerships, we redaieredits and tax deductions for losses incubsethe underlying properties. These
investments are amortized
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

over a maximum of 10 years, which represents thieg¢hat the tax credits will be utilized. We hadetermined that we are not the primary
beneficiary of these investments because the gegmenaers have the power to direct the activitieg most significantly impact the economic
performance of the partnership and have the olbigab absorb expected losses and the right tavedenefits.

OREO and Other Repossessed Assets

OREO and other repossessed assets are includdeeinassets in the Consolidated Balance Sheetarantbmprised of properties acqui
through foreclosure proceedings or acceptancedekd in lieu of a foreclosure. At the time of fdostire, these properties are recorded at the
lower of the recorded investment in the loan or ¥alue less cost to sell. Loan losses arising ftloenacquisition of such property initially are
charged against the ALL. Subsequently, these aasetsarried at the lower of carrying value or entrfair value less cost to sell. Gains or
losses realized subsequent to acquisition arededan other expenses in the Consolidated StatesnoéiNet Income.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

MSRs are recognized as separate assets when coemtstto fund a loan to be sold are made. Upon camenit, the MSR is established,
which represents the then current estimated fairevaf future net cash flows expected to be redlipe performing the servicing activities. T
estimated fair value of the MSRs is estimated bBgutating the present value of estimated futureseeticing cash flows, considering expectec
mortgage loan prepayment rates, discount rateacs®y costs and other economic factors, whichdatermined based on current market
conditions. The expected rate of mortgage loangyeyents is the most significant factor driving adue of MSRs. Increases in mortgage |
prepayments reduce estimated future net servi@s flows because the life of the underlying IGareduced. In determining the estimated
value of MSRs, mortgage interest rates, which aszldo determine prepayment rates, are held cdrstanthe estimated life of the portfolio.
MSRs are reported in other assets in the Consetidahlance Sheets and are amortized into noniniesne in the Consolidated Statements
of Net Income in proportion to, and over the perddthe estimated future net servicing incomehef inderlying mortgage loans.

MSRs are regularly evaluated for impairment basethe estimated fair value of those rights. The &R stratified by certain risk
characteristics, primarily loan term and note rfteemporary impairment exists within a risk sifiaation tranche, a valuation allowance is
established through a charge to income equal tartieunt by which the carrying value exceeds thienastd fair value. If it is later determined
all or a portion of the temporary impairment nodenexists for a particular tranche, the valuatidowance is reduced.

MSRs are also reviewed for OTTI. OTTI exists whiea tecoverability of a recorded valuation allowarscédetermined to be remote, tak
into consideration historical and projected interages and loan pay-off activity. When this sitoatoccurs, the unrecoverable portion of the
valuation allowance is applied as a direct writgvddo the carrying value of the MSR. Unlike a vaioa allowance, a direct write-down
permanently reduces the carrying value of the MB&Rthe valuation allowance, precluding subsequesuveries.

Derivative Financial Instruments
Interest Rate Swaps

In accordance with applicable accounting guidaocelérivatives and hedging, all derivatives ar@gmized as either assets or liabilitie:
the balance sheet at fair value. Interest rate s\weg contracts in which a series of interestftates (fixed and variable) are exchanged over a
prescribed period. The notional amounts on whiehittiterest payments are based are not exchanged. We

78



Table of Contents

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

utilize interest rate swaps for commercial loartsede derivative positions relate to transactiongliith we enter into an interest rate swap

a customer while at the same time entering intoféaetting interest rate swap with another finahitiatitution. In connection with each
transaction, we agree to pay interest to the custam a notional amount at a variable interestaatereceive interest from the customer on a
same notional amount at a fixed rate. At the same,twe agree to pay another financial institutiom same fixed interest rate on the same
notional amount and receive the same variablegsteate on the same notional amount. The trasaatiows our customer to effectively
convert a variable rate loan to a fixed rate lodh ws receiving a variable yield. These agreemeotsd have floors or caps on the contracted
interest rates.

Pursuant to our agreements with various finanaostitutions, we may receive collateral or may bspineed to post collateral based upon
mark-tomarket positions. Beyond unsecured threshold leceltateral in the form of cash or securities rbaymade available to counterpar
of interest rate swap transactions. Based upomcuuent positions and related future collateralirsgments relating to them, we believe any
effect on our cash flow or liquidity position to mematerial. Derivatives contain an element of @radk, the possibility that we will incur a
loss because a counterparty, which may be a finhimstitution or a customer, fails to meet its trantual obligations. All derivative contracts
with financial institutions may be executed onlytweéounterparties approved by our Asset and Ligh@iommittee, or ALCO, and derivatives
with customers may only be executed with custométisin credit exposure limits approved by our Sehioan Committee. Interest rate swaps
are considered derivatives, but are not accourtedsing hedge accounting. As such, changes iagtimated fair value of the derivatives are
recorded in current earnings and included in otiogrinterest income in the Consolidated Statemdrmteblincome.

Interest Rate Lock Commitments and Forward Sale Con  tracts

In the normal course of business, we sell origimhatertgage loans into the secondary mortgage laakeh We also offer interest rate i
commitments to potential borrowers. The commitmeanésgenerally for 60 days and guarantee a speédifterest rate for a loan if underwriti
standards are met, but the commitment does naaiblihe potential borrower to close on the loartoidingly, some commitments expire
prior to becoming loans. We can encounter pricisksrif interest rates increase significantly beftre loan can be closed and sold. We may
utilize forward sale contracts in order to mitig#ies pricing risk. Whenever a customer desiresahgoducts, a mortgage originator quotes a
secondary market rate guaranteed for that daydintrestor. The rate lock is executed between thegagee and us and in turn a forward sal
contract may be executed between us and the inv&ith the rate lock commitment and the correspantbrward sale contract for each
customer are considered derivatives, but are ramtuanted for using hedge accounting. As such, ctaimgihe estimated fair value of the
derivatives during the commitment period are reedrith current earnings and included in mortgageibgrin the Consolidated Statements of
Net Income

Allowance for Unfunded Commitments

In the normal course of business, we offer off-beéasheet credit arrangements to enable our cusgdmeneet their financing objectives.
These instruments involve, to varying degrees, efgmof credit and interest rate risk in excegh@famount recognized in the financial
statements. Our exposure to credit loss, in thatehe customer does not satisfy the terms of gheeanent, equals the contractual amount of
the obligation less the value of any collateral. &pely the same credit policies in making committaemd standby letters of credit that are
used for the underwriting of loans to customeran@itments generally have fixed expiration datesuahrenewals or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since wfahe commitments are expected
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

to expire without being drawn upon, the total cotmneint amounts do not necessarily represent fuashk equirements. The allowance for
unfunded commitments is included in other liakgkitin the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The allosvBnmaunfunded commitments is
determined using a similar methodology as our ALhe reserve is calculated by applying historicaklaates from our ALL model to the
estimated future utilization of our unfunded conments.

Treasury Stock

The repurchase of our common stock is recordedsit At the time of reissuance, the treasury stmdount is reduced using the average
cost method. Gains and losses on the reissuaremrohon stock are recorded in additional paid-irtegfo the extent additional paid-in
capital from previous treasury share transactiaigt® Any deficiency is charged to retained eagsin

Wealth Management Fees

Assets held in a fiduciary capacity by the subsjdiank, S&T Bank, are not our assets and are fibrer@ot included in our Consolidated
Financial Statements. Wealth management fee inéemaported in the Consolidated Statements of Natrhe on the accrual basis.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation may include stock optiadsrestricted stock which is measured using tine/édue method of accounting. The
grant date fair value is recognized over the pediadng which the recipient is required to provigvice in exchange for the award. Stock
option expense is determined utilizing the Black@®@es model. Restricted stock expense is determise) the grant date fair value. We
estimate expected forfeitures when stock-baseddsnare granted and record compensation expensdaprdyards that are expected to vest.

Pensions

Pension expense for S&T Basldefined benefit pension plan is actuarially dateed using the projected unit credit actuariak costhod
The funding policy for the plan is to contribute @mits to the plan sufficient to meet the minimumding requirements of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISAispsuch additional amounts as may be appropsatgect to federal income tax
limitation.

Marketing Costs
We expense all marketing-related costs, includohgegtising costs, as incurred.

Income Taxes

We estimate income tax expense based on amourgstexito be owed to the tax jurisdictions wherecareduct business. On a quarterly
basis, management assesses the reasonablenes&ffécdiive tax rate based upon our current esémathe amount and components of net
income, tax credits and the applicable statutaxyrdides expected for the full year.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arerdeted using the asset and liability method andeperted in other assets or other
liabilities, as appropriate, in the ConsolidatedaBae Sheets. Under this method, the net defeareddset or liability is based on the tax effect:
of the differences between the book and tax bdsissets and liabilities and recognizes enactedggsin tax rate and laws. When deferrec
assets are recognized, they are subject to a i@iugtowance based on management’s judgmentabether realization is more likely than
not.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Accrued taxes represent the net estimated amoentodiaxing jurisdictions and are reported in othesets or other liabilities, as
appropriate, in the Consolidated Balance SheetseVdkiate and assess the relative risks and apat®pex treatment of transactions and fi
positions after considering statutes, regulatipudicial precedent and other information and maimtax accruals consistent with the evalua
of these relative risks and merits. Changes t@ghienate of accrued taxes occur periodically dughmges in tax rates, interpretations of tax
laws, the status of examinations being conductedxing authorities and changes to statutory, jatland regulatory guidance. These chan
when they occur, can affect deferred taxes andiaddiaxes, as well as the current period’s incarexpense and can be significant to our
operating results.

Tax positions are recognized as a benefit onlyi Tmore likely than not” that the tax positiorould be sustained in a tax examination,
with a tax examination being presumed to occur. 8ieunt recognized is the largest amount of taetiethhat is greater than 50 percent lik
of being realized on examination. For tax positinosmeeting the “more likely than not” test, n& beenefit is recorded.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share, or EPS, is calculatedube twoelass method to determine income allocated to comshareholders. Unvest
share-based payment awards that contain nonfdsfeitaghts to dividends are considered particigptiacurities under the two-class method.
Income allocated to common shareholders is theidetivby the weighted average number of common sharestanding during the period.
Potentially dilutive securities are excluded frdme basic EPS calculation.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated undentbie dilutive of either the treasury stock methothe two-class method. Under the
treasury stock method, the weighted average nuoft@mmon shares outstanding is increased by ttenpally dilutive common shares. For
the two-class method, diluted earnings per shatal@ilated for each class of shareholders usiagvtighted average number of shares
attributed to each class. Potentially dilutive commnshares are common stock equivalents relatiogt@utstanding warrants, stock options
and restricted stock.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards Updates
Technical Corrections and Improvements

In October 2012, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard, or FASB, issued Accounting Standards UpdatASU, No. 2012-04,
Technical Corrections and Improvements, which waamhto correct minor technical errors in the dodifon and to conform terminology and
clarify certain guidance in various topics of tlogification to fully reflect the fair value measorent and disclosure requirements of Topic
Since this includes minor corrections, terminoleagnformation and guidance clarification only of yioeisly issued accounting guidance, it
was adopted at December 31, 2012, and did notdmawapact on our results of operations or finangaition.

Technical Amendments and Corrections to SEC Section S

In August 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-03 efidments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC StediuAting Bulletin No. 114,
Technical Amendments Pursuant to SEC Release N8233, and Corrections Related to FASB Accountitap8ards Update 2010-22 (SEC
Update), which were meant to codify various amenasand corrections included in these previouslyas bulletins and releases. Since tf
codification only of previously issued accountingdance, it was adopted at September 30, 2012didntbt have an impact on our results of
operations or financial position.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Presentation of Comprehensive Income

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011wtfich superseded certain pending paragraphs in R&8.201105, which had bee
issued in June 2011. ASU No. 2011-05 allowed aityethie option to present the total of compreheasncome, the components of net income
and the components of other comprehensive incotherén a single continuous statement of comprekeriscome or in two separate but
consecutive statements. Under both options, atyastiequired to present each component of netnrecalong with total net income, each
component of other comprehensive income along avitbtal for other comprehensive income and a stadunt for comprehensive income.
ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to present thapanents of other comprehensive income as paheo$tatement of changes in
stockholders’ equity but permits companies to pregethe annual period the comprehensive inconmepmments in a single continuous
statement or two consecutive statements and teprésthe interim periods only the total for compensive income in a single continuous
statement or two consecutive statements. ASU Nb1-AR effectively defers changes that relate toptlesentation of reclassification
adjustments out of accumulated other comprehemsogame. The amendments will be temporary to alloe/RASB time to redeliberate the
presentation requirements for reclassificationsodatccumulated other comprehensive income for ansnd interim financial statements. The
two amendments became effective at the same tieselTASUs should be applied retrospectively ane wHective for public companies for
fiscal years, and interim periods within those geleginning after December 15, 2011. We haveesddtie option of a single continuous
statement format for interim periods, and two safgbut consecutive statements for annual peridus adoption of both ASU 2011-05 and
2011-12 impacted only our presentation of comprsivenincome and did not have an impact on our tesiiloperations or financial position.

Testing Goodwill for Impairment

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010&:h permits an entity to make a qualitative asseent of whether it is more
likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair valiseless than its carrying amount before applyirggtttio-step goodwill impairment test. If an
entity concludes it is not more likely than notttha fair value is less than its carrying amoutmeed not perform the two-step impairment test
This ASU is effective for annual and interim goolivhpairment tests performed for fiscal years Inegng after December 15, 2011. Early
adoption is permitted. The adoption of this ASU dat have a material impact on our results of ap@mra or financial position.

Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, whighresents the convergence of the FASB'’s andntteenational Accounting
Standard Board’s, or IASB, guidance on fair valumasurement. ASU 2011-04 reflects the common reqpainés under U.S. GAAP and
international financial reporting standards, or 8 Ror measuring fair value and for disclosing mfiation about fair value measurements,
including a consistent meaning for the term “fafue.” The new guidance does not extend the ufarofalue but, rather, provides guidance
about how fair value should be applied where #lisady required or permitted under U.S. GAAP ®®$%-For U.S. GAAP, most of the
changes are clarifications of existing guidancevording changes to align with IFRS 13 Fair Valuedgigrement. A public company is requi
to apply the ASU prospectively for interim and aahperiods beginning after December 15, 2011. Eadlyption is not permitted for a public
company. The adoption of this ASU impacted onlgldisure requirements and did not have a materigh@non our results of operations or
financial position.
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Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurchase Agreements

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 20038; which is intended to improve financial repagtiof repurchase agreements, or repos,
other agreements that both entitle and obligateresteror to repurchase or redeem financial agsdtse their maturity. When an entity enters
into a typical repo arrangement, it transfers foiahassets to a counterparty in exchange for wdtshan agreement for the counterparty to
return the same or equivalent financial assets fioted price in the future. Current guidance priéss when an entity may or may not
recognize a sale upon the transfer of financiattassubject to a repo agreement. That determinitibased, in part, on whether the entity has
maintained effective control over the transferri@aricial assets. This ASU improves the accountimgifese transactions by removing from
assessment of effective control the criterion rengithe transferor to have the ability to repusshar redeem the financial assets and focuses
the assessment on the transferor's contractuakrtighis guidance is effective for the first interor annual period beginning on or after
December 15, 2011. The guidance should be appt@sppctively to transactions or modifications ofsérg transactions that occur on or after
the effective date. Early adoption is not permitfBlde adoption of this ASU did not have a matdrgact on our results of operations or
financial position.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Updates notye  t Adopted
Disclosures About Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU, No. 2011ifl¢pnjunction with the issuance by the IASB, ofemdments to Disclosures—
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabél#i(Amendments to IFRS 7). The disclosure requintsnapply to recognized financial
instruments and derivative instruments that arsedfbr subject to an enforceable master nettirangement. An entity shall disclose
information to enable users of its financial stadets to evaluate the effect or potential effeaatting arrangements on its financial position,
including the effect or potential effect of riglitksetoff associated with recognized assets armyrezed liabilities. While both the FASB and
the IASB retained the existing offsetting modelslenU.S. GAAP and IFRS, the new standards requis@asures to allow investors to better
compare financial statements prepared under U.3\R3ith financial statements prepared under IFR& flew standards are effective for
annual periods beginning January 1, 2013, andiinteeriods within those annual periods. Retrospedpplication is required. The adoption
of this ASU is expected to impact only our disclestequirements and is not expected to have a iakitepact on our results of operations or
financial position.

NOTE 2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

During 2012, we completed two acquisitions, MaialBancorp, Inc., or Mainline and Gateway Bank af3ylvania, or Gateway.
Goodwill was calculated as the excess of the cenatibn exchanged over the net identifiable assaisired from each acquisition and will |
be deductible for tax purposes. Goodwill from batiguisitions was assigned to our Community Bankegment.

On March 9, 2012, we acquired 100 percent of thimgshares of Mainline, located in Ebensburg, Bgiwania, which was the holding
company and sole shareholder of Mainline NatiorailB The acquisition expanded our market shard@otgrint throughout Cambria and
Blair Counties of Western Pennsylvania. Mainlinargfiolders were entitled to elect to receive feaheshare of Mainline common stock either
$69.00 in cash or 3.6316 shares of S&T common siMekalso purchased Mainline’s preferred stockddsunder the U.S. Treasury Capital
Purchase Program, or CPP, for $4.7 million on M&cRk012. The preferred stock was purchased aivddets part of the merger transaction.
Purchase accounting guidance allows for a reasenaslod of time following an acquisition for thegairer to obtain the information
necessary to complete the accounting for a
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NOTE 2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS — continued

business combination. This period, known as thesomement period, shall not exceed one year fronatieisition date. The measurement
period for the Mainline acquisition ends March 912. Based on new information received about factscircumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date one measurement period adjustfoe®0.5 million was recorded relating to a conéngliability for an IRS proposed penalty
for tax year 2010. Cash paid to former Mainlinershalders was $8.2 million and the fair value afhooon shares issued was $14.8 million

of December 31, 2012, S&T recognized Goodwill of7/d@illion from the Mainline acquisition.

On August 13, 2012, we acquired 100 percent of/tiimg shares of Gateway, located in McMurray, Bghrania. The acquisition
expanded our market share and footprint into Wagbmand Butler counties in Pennsylvania. Gateviiyeholders were entitled to receive
$3.08 in cash and 0.4657 shares of S&T common sioekchange for one share of Gateway common stekf December 31, 2012,
Gateway was operating as a separate wholly-ownesidiary of S&T. On February 8, 2013, Gateway Baals merged into S&T Bank, and
their two branches are now fully operational braschf S&T Bank. Cash paid to former Gateway shddeis was $5.2 million and the fair
value of common shares issued was $13.3 millional¥e settled outstanding equity awards for $1I0ani As of December 31, 2012, S&T
recognized Goodwill of $3.8 million from the Gatemacquisition.

The following table summarizes total considerafiaid, assets acquired and liabilities assumed Beoémber 31, 2012 for both the
Mainline and Gateway acquisitions:

(in thousands) Mainline Gateway Combined
Consideration Paid
Cash $ 12,90« $ 6,23¢ $ 19,14:
Common stocl 14,78¢ 13,28 28,07(
Fair value of previously held equity inter: 74 272 34¢€
Fair Value of Total Consideration $ 27,76¢ $ 19,79 $ 47,55¢
Fair Value of Assets Acquired
Cash and cash equivale $ 17,76: $ 20,01¢ $ 37,78:
Securities and other investme 73,32¢ 9,56¢ 82,89:
Loans 129,50: 99,09( 228,59
Premises and other equipm: 2,28( 49t 2,77¢
Core deposit intangibl 90C 431 1,331
Other asset 12,43¢ 2,66¢ 15,10:
Total Assets Acquired $ 236,21( $ 132,26: $ 368,47:
Fair Value of Liabilities Assumed
Deposits 205,98t 105,40( 311,38t
Borrowings 6,991 9,77 16,77«
Other liabilities 2,144 1,06¢ 3,212
Total Liabilities Assumed $ 215,13( $ 116,24! $ 331,37
Total Fair Value of Identifiable Net Assets 21,08( 16,01¢ 37,09¢
Goodwill $ 6,68/ $ 3,77¢ $ 10,46(

Acquired loans were recorded at fair value withcaayover of the related allowance for loan los8termining the fair value of the loa
involved estimating the amount and timing of prpatiand interest cash flows expected to be colieotethe loans and discounting those cash
flows at a market rate of interest. Loans acquivét evidence of credit quality deterioration wera significant. We acquired $231.9 million
of gross loans and recognized a net combined giedticredit mark of $3.3 million.
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Direct costs related to the acquisitions were egpdras incurred. As of December 31, 2012, we rezedra combined total of $6.0 millis
of one-time merger related expenses. For the Ggtaa@uisition, we recognized $1.5 million of onexi merger related expenses; consisting
primarily of legal, professional and other expernse$0.6 million, $0.6 million in change in contraleverance and other employee costs and
$0.3 million in data processing contract terminatmd conversion costs. For the Mainline acquisjtiee recognized $4.5 million of one-time
merger related expenses; including $1.8 millionhange in control, severance and other employds,&&0 million in data processing
contract termination and conversion costs and 80llibn in legal, professional and other expenses.

NOTE 3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table reconciles the numerators aadaininators of basic EPS with that of diluted EPS:

Years ended December 31,

(in thousands, except share and per share data) 2012 2011 2010
Numerator for Earnings per Common Share—Basic:
Net income $  34,20( $ 47,264 $  43,48(
Less: Preferred stock dividends and discount aaaiitin — 7,611 6,201
Less: Income allocated to participating she 12¢€ 13C 42
Net Income Allocated to Common Shareholder $ 34,07 $ 39,52 $ 37,23
Numerator for Earnings per Common Share—Diluted:
Net income $  34,20( $ 47,26¢ $ 43,48(
Less: Preferred stock dividends and discount amaiitin — 7,611 6,201
Net Income Available to Common Shareholder $  34,20( $ 39,65 $ 37,27¢
Denominators:
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstandi—Basic 28,976,61 27,966,98 27,791,14
Add: Potentially dilutive common shar 32,26 23,16¢ 22,26
Denominator for Treasury Stock Methoc—Diluted 29,008,88 27,990,15 27,813,40
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstandi—Basic 28,976,61 27,966,98 27,791,14
Add: Average participating shares outstanc 107,27- 92,21 33,89¢
Denominator for Two-Class Method—Diluted 29,083,89 28,059,19 27,825,04
Earnings per common sh—basic 1.1¢ $ 1.41 1.34
Earnings per common sh—diluted 1.1¢ $ 1.41 1.34
Warrants considered anti-dilutive excluded fronutiNle potential common

shares 517,01: 517,01: 517,01:
Stock options considered anti-dilutive excludedrrdilutive potential common

shares 747,44 757,58( 930,96¢
Restricted stock considered anti-dilutive excluffedh dilutive potential

common share 75,017 69,04: 11,63¢
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NOTE 4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Refer to Note 1 Summary of Significant Accountingi€les under Fair Value Measurements for our antiag policy including details of
the valuation methods used to determine the fdiregaof our assets and liabilities.

The following tables present our assets and ligslithat are measured at fair value on a reculrasis by fair value hierarchy level at
December 31, 2012 and 2011. There were no transédnseen Level 1 and Level 2 for items measurddiavalue on a recurring basis during
the periods presented.

December 31, 2012

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ASSETS
Securities availab-for-sale:
Obligations of U.S. government corporations anchaigs $ — $212,066 $ —  $212,06¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S. goveenircorporations and agenc — 57,89¢ — 57,89¢
Mortgagebacked securities of U.S. government corporatiowsagencie — 60,78 — 60,78
Obligations of states and political subdivisic — 112,76° — 112,76°
Marketable equity securitie 14C 8,31¢ 1,13(C 9,58¢
Total securities available-for-sale 14C 451,82¢ 1,13C 453,09¢
Trading securities held in a Rabbi Tr 2,228 — — 2,228
Total securities 2,363 451,82¢ 1,13C 455,31¢
Derivative financial asset
Interest rate sway — 23,74¢ — 23,74¢
Interest rate lock commitmer — 467 — 467
Total Assets $2,365  $476,04.  $1,13C  $479,53:
LIABILITIES
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate sway $ — $2352 $ — $ 2352
Forward sale contrac — 48 — 48

Total Liabilities $ — $2357C $ — $ 23,57(
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December 31, 2011

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ASSETS
Securities availab-for-sale:
Obligations of U.S. government corporations anchages $ — $142,78t¢ $ — $142,78t
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S. goveentrcorporations and agenc — 65,39: — 65,39¢
Mortgagebacked securities of U.S. government corporatiowsagencie — 48,75: — 48,75:
Obligations of states and political subdivisic — 88,80¢ — 88,80¢
Marketable equity securitie 2,85k 7,31¢ 1,68 11,85¢
Total securities availablefor-sale 2,85t 353,05« 1,68 357,59¢
Trading securities held in a Rabbi Tr 1,94¢ — — 1,94¢
Total securities 4,80¢ 353,05¢ 1,68 359,54!
Derivative financial asset
Interest rate sway — 23,76¢ — 23,76¢
Interest rate lock commitmer — 244 — 244
Total Assets $4,80¢ $377,06. $1,687 $383,55:
LIABILITIES
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate sway $ — $ 23,63¢ $ — $ 23,63¢
Forward sale contrac $ — $ 95 $ — $ 95
Total Liabilities $ — $ 23,73¢ $ — $ 23,73¢

We classify financial instruments as Level 3 whatugtion models are used because significant irgret®ot observable in the market.
The following tables present the changes in assetsured at fair value on a recurring basis foclviaie have utilized Level 3 inputs to
determine the fair value:

Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of ye $ 1,68 $ 1,58¢
Total (losses) gains included in other comprehengigcome/los® (350 99
Net purchases, sales, issuances and settle| (207) —
Transfers out of Level — —
Balance at end of yea $ 1,13(C $ 1,68i

@) Changes in estimated fair value of available4ate investments are recorded in accumulated athemprehensive income/loss, while gains and loseasdales are recorded in
security gains (losses), net in the ConsolidatedeBtents of Net Incom

87



Table of Contents
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We may be required to measure certain assetsalitities on a nonrecurring basis. The followinglés present our assets that are
measured at estimated fair value on a nonrecub@sis by the fair value hierarchy level at Decen®igr2012 and 2011. There were no
liabilities measured at estimated fair value oraracurring basis during these periods. Loans fueldale are recorded at the lower of cost or
fair value. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we tatbans held for sale that were recorded at fdiraza

December 31, 2012

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ASSETS

Impaired Loan: $ — $ — $44,05¢ $44,05¢
Other real estate ownt — — 58t 58t
Mortgage servicing right — — 2,10¢ 2,10¢
Total Assets $ — $ — $46,75( $46,75(

December 31, 2011

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ASSETS

Impaired Loan: $ — $ — $36,50( $36,50(
Other real estate ownt — — 3,73¢ 3,73¢
Mortgage servicing right — — 2,15 2,15¢
Total Assets $ — $ — $42,39: $42,39:

The carrying values and fair values of our finahitiatruments at December 31, 2012 and 2011 aiepted in the following tables:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012

Carryin(I;

(in thousands) Value (D) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks, including inte-bearing deposit $ 337,71 $ 337,71 $337,71: $ — $ —
Securities availab-for-sale 453,09¢ 453,09¢ 14C 451,82t 1,13(
Loans held for sal 22,49¢ 22,60: — — 22,60:
Portfolio loans 3,346,62: 3,347,60: — — 3,347,60:
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at c 14,48¢ 14,48 — — 14,48t
Bank owned life insuranc 58,61¢ 58,61¢ — 58,61¢ —
Trading securities held in a Rabbi Tr 2,22: 2,22: 2,22 — —
Mortgage servicing right 2,10¢ 2,10¢ — — 2,10¢
Interest rate sway 23,74¢ 23,74¢ — 23,74¢ —
Interest rate lock commitmer 467 467 — 467 —

LIABILITIES
Deposits $3,638,42 $3,643,68. $ — $ — $3,643,68.
Securities sold under repurchase agreen 62,58: 62,58: — — 62,58:
Shor-term borrowings 75,00( 75,00( — — 75,00(
Long-term borrowings 34,10: 36,23¢ — — 36,23
Junior subordinated debt securit 90,61¢ 90,61¢ — — 90,61¢
Interest rate sway 23,52: 23,52: — 23,52: —
Forward sale contrac 48 48 — 48 —

@) As reported in the Consolidated Balance Sh
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NOTE 4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS — continued

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011

Carryin?

(in thousands) value ) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks, including interest-bearing

deposits $ 270,52t $ 270,52 $270,52¢ $ — $ —

Securities availab-for-sale 357,59¢ 357,59¢ 2,85¢ 353,05« 1,68
Loans held for sal 2,85( 2,95¢ — — 2,95¢
Portfolio loans 3,129,75! 3,120,35; — — 3,120,35:
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at c 18,21¢ 18,21¢ — — 18,21¢
Bank owned life insuranc 56,75¢ 56,75! — 56,75¢ —
Trading securities held in a Rabbi Tr 1,94¢ 1,94¢ 1,94¢ — —
Mortgage servicing right 2,15z 2,15: — — 2,15z
Interest rate sway 23,76¢ 23,76¢ — 23,76¢ —
Interest rate lock commitmer 244 244 — 244 —

LIABILITIES
Deposits $3,335,85! $3,343,88' $ — $ — $3,343,88!
Securities sold under repurchase agreen 30,37( 30,37( — — 30,37(
Shor-term borrowings 75,00( 75,00( — — 75,00(
Long-term borrowings 31,87 34,17: — — 34,17:
Junior subordinated debt securit 90,61¢ 90,61¢ — — 90,61¢
Interest rate sway 23,63¢ 23,63¢ — 23,63¢ —
Forward sale contrac 95 95 — 95 —

W As reported in the Consolidated Balance Sh

NOTE 5. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANK ACCO UNTS

The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 8ystethe Federal Reserve, imposes certain resequerements on all depository
institutions. These reserves are maintained iridima of vault cash or as an interest-bearing balamith the Federal Reserve. During the years
ended 2012, 2011 and 2010 the required reserveagack$36.6 million, $36.6 million and $32.5 milliaespectively.

NOTE 6. DIVIDEND AND LOAN RESTRICTIONS

S&T is a legal entity separate and distinct frosnbianking and other subsidiaries. A substantigigoof our revenues consist of dividend
payments we receive from S&T Bank. S&T Bank, imfus subject to state laws and regulations thait the amount of dividends it can pay to
us. In addition, both S&T and S&T Bank are subjectarious general regulatory policies relatingite payment of dividends, including
requirements to maintain adequate capital abovdatay minimums. The Federal Reserve has indictitatdbanking organizations should
generally pay dividends only if (i) the organizat®net income available to common shareholders theepast year has been sufficient to fully
fund the dividends and (ii) the prospective rateafings retention appears consistent with tharorgtion’s capital needs, asset quality and
overall financial condition. Thus, under certaircamstances based upon our financial conditionability to declare and pay quarterly
dividends may require consultation with the FedBaderve and may be prohibited by
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NOTE 6. DIVIDEND AND LOAN RESTRICTIONS — continued

applicable Federal Reserve regulations. If we v@igay a dividend in contravention of Federal Reseegulations, the Federal Reserve coulc
raise supervisory concerns. We redeemed our Seiireferred Stock on December 7, 2011, and thexef@r are no longer subject to the
dividend restriction imposed by participation i tGPP.

Federal law prohibits us from borrowing from S&Trikaunless such loans are collateralized by speaffigations. Further, such loans .
limited to 10 percent of S&T Bank’s capital and aigddal paid-in capital, as defined. In April 202&¢ closed a $5.0 million line of credit with
S&T Bank that had been secured by investments athan subsidiary of S&T.

NOTE 7. SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

The following tables present the amortized costfairdvalue of available-for-sale securities foe fheriods shown:

December 31, 2012

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
(in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Obligations of U.S. government corporations anchaigs $207,22¢ $ 4,89 $ (59 $212,06¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S. goveenbrcorporations and
agencies 56,08t 1,811 — 57,89¢
Mortgagebacked securities of U.S. government corporatiowsagencie 57,40¢ 3,37: — 60,78
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 107,91 4,90¢ (52 112,76
Debt Securities 428,63: 14,98: (105) 443,51(
Marketable equity securitie 8,50 1,09¢ (11 9,58¢
Total $437,13! $ 16,07 $ (11¢ $453,09¢
December 31, 2011
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
(in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Obligations of U.S. government corporations anchages $138,38t $ 4,400 $ = $142,78t
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S. goveenbrcorporations and
agencies 63,20: 2,19¢ — 65,39¢
Mortgagebacked securities of U.S. government corporatiownsagencie 45,28¢ 3,46: — 48,75:
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 85,68¢ 3,12¢ (12 88,80¢
Debt Securities 332,56t 13,18 (12 345,73t
Marketable equity securitie 10,15: 2,17¢ (473) 11,85¢
Total $342, 71t $ 15,36 $ (489 $357,59¢

During 2012, there were $3.0 million in gross readi gains, compared to nominal gains in 2011 andlidlion in 2010. The $3.0 in gro
realized gains relates to the sales of two equigitipns during the year as a result of increasesiue after merger announcements. There
nominal gross realized losses in 2012 and $0.1amilh gross realized losses in 2011 and 2010tingl&o securities available-for-sale.
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NOTE 7. SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE — continued

The following tables present the fair value anddbe of gross unrealized losses by investment agtdgr the periods presented:

December 31, 2012

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

(in thousands) Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. government corporatio

and agencie $11,37( $ (59) $ — $ — $11,37( $ (59)
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S.

government corporations and agen — — — — — —
Mortgage-backed securities of U.S.

government corporations and agent — — — — — —
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 11,28t (52 — — 11,28t (52
Debt Securities 22,65¢ (10x%) — — 22,65t (10%)
Marketable equity securitie 22€ (12) — — 22¢ (12)
Total Temporarily Impaired Securities $ 22,88: $ (11¢ $ — $ — $ 22,88! $ (11¢

December 31, 2011
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

(in thousands) Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. government corporatio

and agencie $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S.

government corporations and agen — — — — — —
Mortgage-backed securities of U.S.

government corporations and agent — — — — — —
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 502 (8) 414 (4 91€ (12
Debt Securities 50z (8) 414 4 91¢ (12
Marketable equity securitie 5,14: (473 — — 5,14: (473)
Total Temporarily Impaired Securities $ 5,64¢ $ (48] $ 414 $ (4) $ 6,05¢ $ (485

We do not believe any individual unrealized losefBecember 31, 2012 represents an OTTI. Refdiote 1 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies for our accounting policy fercsirities and OTTI.

As of December 31, 2012, the unrealized losse$verdebt securities were primarily attributablectmnges in interest rates. The unrea
losses on two marketable equity securities as aEbBéer 31, 2012 were attributable to temporaryideslin the market value of these stocks.
We do not intend to sell and it is not likely thag will be required to sell any of the securitieferenced in the table above, in an unrealized
loss position before recovery of their amortizedtco
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NOTE 7. SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE — continued

Net unrealized gains of $10.4 million and $9.7 imillwere included in accumulated other comprehenisiss, net of tax, at December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. Gross unrealized g#ifi40.5 million and $10.0 million, net of tax, wenetted against gross unrealized losst
$0.1 million and $0.3 million, respectively, foretfe same periods. During 2012 unrealized gainassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income into earnings were $3.0 millwehile unrealized losses reclassified into eaysito record OTTI| were minimal. During
2011, unrealized gains reclassified out of accutaedlather comprehensive loss into earnings werénmainwhile $0.1 million of unrealized
losses were reclassified into earnings to recordIOT

The amortized cost and fair value of securitieslalbe-for-sale at December 31, 2012, by contrdaneturity, are included in the table
below. Actual maturities may differ from contradtusaturities because borrowers may have the rigbatl or prepay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalties.

December 31, 2012

Amortized

(in thousands) Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or le: $ 38,43« $ 38,96¢
Due after one year through five ye. 130,69( 134,19.
Due after five years through ten ye 64,82: 66,50’
Due after ten yeal 81,19 85,16¢

315,14( 324,83:
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S. goveentrcorporations and agenc 56,08t 57,89¢
Mortgagebacked securities of U.S. government corporatiownsagencie 57,40¢ 60,78:
Debt Securities 428,63: 443,51(
Marketable equity securitie 8,50: 9,58¢
Total $ 437,13! $ 453,09t

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, securities withyirggrvalues of $307.5 million and $233.9 millioespectively, were pledged to secure
repurchase agreements, public funds and trustdepdsits and as collateral for our interest ratepswy
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NOTE 8. LOANS AND LOANS HELD FOR SALE

The following table presents the composition ohkaa

December 31,

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Commercia
Commercial real esta $1,452,13: $1,415,33:
Commercial and industri 791,39¢ 685,75:
Commercial constructio 168,14: 188,85:
Total Commercial Loan 2,411,67. 2,289,93i
Consume
Home equity 431,33! 411,40«
Residential mortgag 427,30: 358,84t
Installment and other consurnr 73,87¢ 67,13
Consumer constructic 2,437 2,44(
Total Consumer Loar 934,95( 839,82:
Total Portfolio Loans 3,346,62. 3,129,75!
Allowance for loan losse (46,489 (48,84)
Total Portfolio Loans, ne 3,300,13: 3,080,91!
Loans held for sal 22,49¢ 2,85(
Total Loans, Net $3,322,63 $3,083,76:

The table above includes loans that were acquited fwo bank acquisitions. Approximately $129.5limil of loans were acquired from
the Mainline acquisition on March 9, 2012 which sieted of $57.7 million of consumer loans and $filion of commercial loans.
Additionally, on August 13, 2012, we acquired Gagwvhich added $99.1 million of loans, includingd$Z million of commercial and $24.9
million of consumer loans. Additionally, we had $3 ®nillion in loans held for sale that related tpaaticipation loan that we had not received
funds from the participating banks as of Decemhlie2B12.

We attempt to limit our exposure to credit riskdiyersifying our loan portfolio and actively managiconcentrations. When
concentrations exist in certain segments, we nigigfas risk by monitoring the relevant economidiaators and internal risk rating trends and
through stress testing of the loans in these cda3s®al commercial loans represent 72 percenf78makercent of total portfolio loans at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplyctifMihin our commercial portfolio, the CRE andnemercial construction portfolios
combined comprise 67 percent of total commerciah$oand 48 percent of total portfolio loans at Dawer 31, 2012 and 70 percent of total
commercial loans and 51 percent of total portfdians at December 31, 2011. Further segmentatitmedCRE and commercial construction
portfolios by industry and collateral type revealgoncentration in excess of nine percent of to&hs. The majority of both commercial and
consumer loans are made to businesses and indwiduaur Western Pennsylvania market, resulting geographic concentration. The
conditions of the local and regional economiesnapgitored closely through publicly available dasangell as information supplied by our
customers. Only the CRE and commercial construgiantfolios combined have any significant out-adtstexposure, with 19 percent of the
combined portfolio and nine percent of total lohergg out-of-state loans at December 31, 2012 8maktcent of the combined portfolio and
10 percent of total loans being out-of-state laandecember 31, 2011. Management believes undarwgtidelines and ongoing review by
credit administration mitigates the concentratigk present in the loan portfolio.

In situations where, for economic or legal reaseteted to a borrower’s financial difficulties, weay grant a concession for other than an
insignificant period of time to the borrower thadbwd not
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NOTE 8. LOANS AND LOANS HELD FOR SALE — continued

otherwise be granted, the related loan is classdga TDR. We strive to identify borrowers in fical difficulty early and work with them to
modify to more affordable terms before their loaaghes nonaccrual status. These modified termsajgniaclude extensions of maturity
dates at a stated interest rate lower than thewcumarket rate for a new loan with similar risladcteristics, reductions in contractual interest
rates, and principal deferment. These modificatemesgenerally for longer term periods that wouwdtilme considered insignificant. While
unusual, there may be instances of loan princirglifeness. We may have borrowers classified as WbB&ein their debt obligation has been
discharged by a chapter 7 bankruptcy without reatition of debt.

We individually evaluate all substandard commericiahs that experienced a forbearance or changgerivs agreement, as well as all
substandard consumer and residential mortgage thahentered into an agreement to modify theistég loan.

All TDRs are considered to be impaired loans antlheireported as impaired loans for the remaitifiegof the loan, unless the
restructuring agreement specifies an interestaqiml to or greater than the rate that would bepated at the time of the restructuring for a |
loan with comparable risk and it is fully expectbdt the remaining principal and interest will lidlected according to the restructured
agreement. Further, all impaired loans are repatedonaccrual loans unless the loan is a TDRhtmatnet the requirements to be returned to
accruing status. TDRs can be returned to accrdatgssif the ultimate collectability of all conttaal amounts due, according to the restruct
agreement, is not in doubt and there is a pericmfnimum of six months of satisfactory paymenfgrenance by the borrower either
immediately before or after the restructuring. Vittrtbt return any TDRs to accruing status during20

The following table summarizes the restructurechdoas of the dates presented:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Performing Nonperforming Performing Nonperforming

Total Total
(in thousands) TDRs TDRs TDRs TDRs TDRs TDRs
Commercial real esta $ 14,22( $ 9,58¢ $23,80: $ 22,28¢ $ 10,87: $33,15¢
Commercial and industri; 8,27( 93¢ 9,20¢ 6,18( — 6,18(
Commercial constructio 11,73¢ 5,32¢ 17,05¢ 19,68: 2,94: 22,62
Home equity 4,19t 341 4,53¢ — — —
Residential mortgag 3,07¢ 2,75z 5,83( 1,57C 4,37( 5,94(
Installment and other consun 24 — 24 — — —
Total $ 41,52 $ 18,94( $60,46: $ 49,71¢ $ 18,18 $67,90(
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NOTE 8. LOANS AND LOANS HELD FOR SALE — continued

The following tables present the restructured Idanshe years ending December 31:

2012
Pre- Post-
Modification Modification
Outstanding Outstanding Total Difference
Number of Recorded Recorded )

_ Investment, Investment, in Recorded
(in thousands, except number of loans) Loans Investment
Commercial real estate

Maturity date extensio 3 $ 704 $ 692 $ (12)

Interest rate reductic 2 1,78¢ 1,76¢ (17)
Commercial and industrial

Maturity date extensio 4 2,82¢ 2,601 (229
Commercial construction

Maturity date extensio 6 2,89¢ 1,87¢ (1,020
Home Equity

Discharge of dek 161 4,53( 4,53( —
Residential mortgage

Maturity date extensio 1 47¢E 43¢ (36€)

Interest rate reductic 2 67 67 —

Discharge of det 76 2,34¢ 2,34¢ —
Installment and other consumer

Discharge of dek 5 25 25 —
Total by Concession Type

Maturity date extensio 14 6,89¢ 5,607 (1,297

Interest rate reductic 4 1,852 1,83t a7

Discharge of dek 242 6,904 6,90/ —
Total 26C $ 15,65« $  14,34¢ $ (1,30%)

e9)
represents the outstanding balance at period

Excludes loans that were paid off or char-off by period end. The pre-modification balancpresents the balance outstanding prior to modifa@atThe post-modification balance

2011
Pre- Post-
Modification Modification
Outstanding Outstanding Total Difference
Number of Recorded Recorded )

_ Investment, Investment, in Recorded
(in thousands, except number of loans) Loans Investment
Commercial real estate

Maturity date extensio 3 $ 3,361 $ 3,81i $ 45¢

Interest rate reductic 2 682 604 (78)

Other 3 2,03¢ 90¢ (1,12¢)
Commercial and industrial

Maturity date extensio 6 6,36 6,18( (189
Commercial construction

Maturity date extensio 12 21,02¢ 20,97¢ (50)
Residential mortgage

Maturity date extensio 6 5,201 4,82¢ (376

Interest rate reductic 2 33€ 30¢ (28)

Other 1 75 40 (35)
Total by Concession Type

Maturity date extensio 27 35,95¢ 35,80: (159

Interest rate reductic 4 1,01¢ 91z (106

Other 4 2,10¢ 94¢ (1,167
Total 35 $ 39,08: $ 37,66 $ (1,42))

@ Excludes loans that were paid off or char-off by period end. The pre-modification balancpresents the balance outstanding prior to modifaatThe post-modification balance

represents the outstanding balance at period
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NOTE 8. LOANS AND LOANS HELD FOR SALE — continued

We had $6.9 million of new TDRs related to our aonsr loan portfolio for borrowers who had their déischarged and not reaffirmed
through Chapter 7 bankruptcy. These loans are eppgyted as accruing TDRs as the borrowers aremuon their payments and almost all
have no history of delinquency.

During 2012, we modified 7 C&I loans totaling $6rfilion, one commercial construction loan totalftt.2 million and 8 commercial real
estate loan totaling $3.6 million for financiallptibled borrowers that were not considered to bRI.DModifications primarily represented
insignificant delays in the timing of payments thadre not considered to be concessions or we hese ddequately compensated for the
concession through principal reductions or addéiaollateral. As of December 31, 2012 we havegrmitments to lend additional funds on
any TDRs.

The following table is a summary of TDRs which défed (defined as 90 days past due since time afifination) during years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 that had been restedcivithin the last twelve months prior to Decem®®r2012 and 2011, respectively:

Defaulted TDRs

For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Number of Number of
Recorded Recorded
(dollars in thousands) Defaults Investment Defaults Investment
Commercial real esta — $ — 2 $ 0.8
Total — $ — 2 $ 0.6

The following table is a summary of nonperformirsgets for the years ended December 31:

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Nonperforming Assets
Nonaccrual loan $ 36,01¢ $ 37,93
Nonaccrual TDR: 18,94( 18,18¢
Total nonperforming loan 54,95¢ 56,11¢
OREO 911 3,967
Total Nonperforming Assets $ 55,86¢ $60,08:

OREO which is included in other assets in the Clidated Balance Sheets consists of 13 propertiés.our policy to obtain OREO
appraisals on an annual basis.

We have granted loans to certain officers and thre®of S&T as well as to certain affiliates of wfficers and directors in the ordinary
course of business. These loans were made on stiblyathe same terms, including interest rated emllateral, as those prevailing at the time
for comparable transactions with unrelated persosdid not involve more than normal risk of colédwlity.

The following table presents a summary of the aggpeamount of loans to any such persons as ofrilsee31:

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of ye $ 31,82: $ 34,37:
New loans 29,46" 23,75
Repayment (25,21)) (26,309
Balance at End of Year $ 36,07t $31,82:
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

We maintain an ALL at a level determined to be adée| to absorb estimated probable credit lossesenhin the loan portfolio as of the
balance sheet date. Refer to Note 1 Summary offfgigmt Accounting Policies for details of our Alpolicy. During the fourth quarter of
2010, we implemented various enhancements to tHeméthodology to better align the calculation witle inherent risk identified within the
loan portfolio and align it with regulatory guidandcChanges included consideration of additional lésk characteristics such as internal risk
rating, collateral, and loan-to-value, enhancirgylthse loss calculation to consider the estimatezidmergence period of each loan segment
and expanding the qualitative adjustments to censidditional factors. The enhancements made télthemethodology did not materially
change the ALL at December 31, 2010.

We develop and document a systematic ALL methodolagsed on the following portfolio segments: 1) CREC&I, 3) Commercial
Construction, 4) Consumer Real Estate and 5) GZbasumer.

The following are key risks within each portfolieggment:

CRE —Loans secured by commercial purpose real estatliding both owner occupied properties and investrproperties for various
purposes such as hotels, strip malls and apartm@peration of the individual projects as well &sbgl cash flows of the debtors are the
primary sources of repayment for these loans. Dinglition of the local economy is an important iradar of risk, but there are also more
specific risks depending on the collateral typaval as the business prospects of the lesseeg fhribject is not owner occupied.

C&l —Loans made to operating companies or manufactéoetke purpose of production, operating capaeitgounts receivable, inventory
or equipment financing. Cash flow from the openatiof the company is the primary source of repayrf@rthese loans. The condition of the
local economy is an important indicator of riskt there are also more specific risks dependinghenirtdustry of the company. Collateral for

these types of loans often do not have sufficiahierin a distressed or liquidation scenario tsBathe outstanding debt.

Commercial Construction—Loans made to finance construction of buildingsthier structures, as well as to finance the agprisand
development of raw land for various purposes. Wihiterisk of these loans is generally confinech®donstruction period, if there are
problems, the project may not be complete, andiels, snay not provide sufficient cash flow on itsrote service the debt or have sufficient
value in a liquidation to cover the outstandingipipal. The condition of the local economy is appartant indicator of risk, but there are also
more specific risks depending on the type of progexel the experience and resources of the developer

Consumer Real Estate—Loans secured by first and second liens such e temuity loans, home equity lines of credit antifamily
residences, including purchase money mortgagespiitmary source of repayment for these loans isrtheme and assets of the borrower.
condition of the local economy, in particular theemployment rate, is an important indicator of fizskthis segment. The state of the local
housing market can also have a significant impadhes segment because low demand and/or declivonge values can limit the ability of
borrowers to sell a property and satisfy the debt.

Other Consumer—Loans made to individuals that may be securedsketa other than 1-4 family residences, as welhascured loans. This
segment includes auto loans, unsecured lines &t cards. The primary source of repayment fosg¢heans is the income and assets of the
borrower. The condition of the local economy, imtigallar the unemployment rate, is an importantdatbr of risk for this segment. The value
of the collateral, if there is any, is less likédybe a source of repayment due to less certalatedl values.

We further assess risk within each portfolio segngrpooling loans with similar risk characteristi€-or the commercial loan classes, the
most important indicator of risk is the internadlgsigned risk rating, including pass, special noarsind substandard. Consumer loans are
pooled by
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

type of collateral and first or second lien posiidor consumer real estate loans. Historical las=ss are applied to these loan pools to
determine the general reserve component of the Management monitors various credit quality indicatfor both the commercial and
consumer loan portfolios, including delinquencynperforming status and changes in risk ratings omathly basis. Refer to Note 1 Summ
of Significant Accounting Policies for our policgrfdetermining past due status of loans.

The following tables present the age analysis ef gae loans segregated by class of loans as dfties presented:

December 31, 2012

Total

30-59 Days 60-89 Days Past Due
(in thousands) Current Past Due Past Due perforrr!\:r?g_ Loans Total Loans
Commercial real esta $1,41893 $ 2,23C $ 41z $ 30,55¢ $33,19¢ $1,452,13
Commercial and industrii 780,31! 4,40¢ 237 6,43¢ 11,08: 791,39¢
Commercial constructio 150,82: 10,54: — 6,77¢ 17,32( 168,14:
Home equity 424,48! 2,33: 86& 3,65: 6,85( 431,33!
Residential mortgag 416,36 1,71: 1,94¢ 7,27¢ 10,93¢ 427,30:
Installment and other consurr 73,33¢ 40¢€ 95 4C 541 73,87¢
Consumer constructic 2,21¢ — — 21¢ 21¢ 2,43
Total $3,266,47. $ 21,63. $ 3,55¢ $ 54,95t $80,14¢ $3,346,62.

December 31, 2011

Total

30-59 Days 60-89 Days Past Due
(in thousands) Current Past Due Past Due perforrr,::r?g_ Loans Total Loans
Commercial real esta $1,37458 $ 7,651 $ 1,44¢ $ 31,64t $40,75: $1,415,33
Commercial and industrii 672,89 3,58t 1,701 7,57( 12,85¢ 685,75:
Commercial constructio 182,30! — — 6,547 6,547 188,85:
Home equity 405,57¢ 2,19¢ 691 2,93¢ 5,82¢ 411,40«
Residential mortgag 349,21 1,24( 1,16 7,22¢ 9,63 358,84t
Installment and other consurr 66,67¢ 382 70 4 45€ 67,13:
Consumer constructic 2,25¢ — — 181 181 2,44(
Total $3,053,511 $ 15,06 $ 5,07 $ 56,11f $76,24¢ $3,129,75

We continually monitor the commercial loan portfolhrough an internal risk rating system. Loan risings are assigned based upon the
creditworthiness of the borrower and are reviewe@ ongoing basis according to our internal pedicl oans within the pass rating generally
have a lower risk of loss than loans risk ratedpecial mention and substandard, which generallg ha increasing risk of loss.
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

Our risk ratings are consistent with regulatorydguice and are as follows:
Pass—The loan is currently performing and is of higlatity.

Special Mention—A special mention loan has potential weaknessaswhrrant management’s close attention. If leftarrected, these
potential weaknesses may result in deterioratich@fepayment prospects or in the strength otmdit position at some future date.
Economic and market conditions, beyond the borrtsa@mtrol, may in the future necessitate this sifasation.

Substandard—A substandard loan is not adequately protecteithéyet worth and/or paying capacity of the bornoareby the collateral
pledged, if any. Substandard loans have a wellhddfiveakness, or weaknesses that jeopardize thdditpn of the debt. These loans are
characterized by the distinct possibility that wi# sustain some loss if the deficiencies are raytected.

The following tables present the recorded investrirenommercial loan classes by internally assigm&dratings as of the dates presen

December 31, 2012

Commercial % of Commercial % of Commercial % of % of
(dollars in thousands) Real Estate Total and Industrial Total Construction Total Total Total
Pass $1,265,81! 87.2% $ 718,07 90.7% $ 118,84: 70.7%  $2,102,72. 87.2%
Special mentiol 96,15¢ 6.€% 42,01¢ 5.2% 30,74¢ 18.2% 168,92( 7.C%
Substandar 90,16 6.2% 31,31( 4.C% 18,55¢ 11.(% 140,03 5.8%
Total $1,452,13. 100.% $ 791,39¢ 100.(% $ 168,14. 100.% $2,411,67. 100.%

December 31, 2011

Commercial % of Commercial % of Commercial % of % of
(dollars in thousands) Real Estate Total and Industrial Total Construction Total Total Total
Pass $1,229,00! 86.&% $ 600,89 87.€% $ 136,27( 72.1%  $1,966,17! 85.9%
Special mentiol 84,40( 6.C% 33,13t 4.8% 17,10¢ 9.1% 134,64 5.€%
Substandar 101,92¢ 7.2% 51,72 7.€% 35,47¢ 18.8% 189,12 8.2%
Total $1,415,33. 100.(% $ 685,75: 100.(% $ 188,85. 100.% $2,289,93 100.(%

We monitor the delinquent status of the consumetfgdm on a monthly basis. The risk of loss is geily highest for nonperforming
loans.

The following tables present the recorded investrirenonsumer loan classes by performing and ndapeimg status as of the dates
presented:

December 31, 2012

Installment
Residential
Home and other Consumer
(in thousands) Equity Mortgage consumer Construction Total
Performing $427,68: $420,02! $ 73,83t $ 2,21¢ $923,76:
Nonperforming 3,65: 7,27¢ 40 21¢ 11,18¢
Total $431,33! $427,30: $ 73,87t $ 2,431 $934,95(
December 31, 2011
Installment
Residential
Home and other Consumer
(in thousands) Equity Mortgage consumer Construction Total
Performing $408,46¢ $351,61° $ 67,127 $ 2,25¢ $829,47:
Nonperforming 2,93¢ 7,22¢ 4 181 10,35(
Total $411,40: $ 358,84t $ 67,13 $ 2,44( $839,82:
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

We individually evaluate all substandard, doub#tl nonaccrual commercial loans greater than $0l&mfor impairment. Loans are
considered to be impaired when based upon cuméntiation and events it is probable that we wéllumable to collect all principal and
interest payments due according to the originatragtual terms of the loan agreement. All TDRsamesidered to be impaired loans and will
be reported as an impaired loan for the remairifagf the loan, unless the restructuring agreerspatifies an interest rate equal to or greate
than the rate that would be accepted at the tinteeofestructuring for a new loan with comparaisk and it is fully expected that the
remaining principal and interest will be collecztording to the restructured agreement. For aR3,Degardless of size, as well as all other
impaired loans, we conduct further analysis to meitee the probable loss and assign a specificvederthe loan if deemed appropriate.

The following tables present investments in loamssadered to be impaired and related informatiothase impaired loans at the dates
for the periods stated:

December 31, 2012 Year ended December 31, 2012
Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
(in thousands) Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
With a related allowance recorde
Commercial real esta $ 6,13¢ $ 6,86« $ 1,22¢ $ 5,79¢ $ 21¢
Commercial and industri 1,86¢ 2,79( 1,00z 1,82¢ —
Commercial constructio 79¢ 89¢ 3 4,44¢ —
Consumer real esta — — — — —
Other consume — — — — —
Total with a Related Allowance Recordec 8,801 10,55( 2,231 12,06¢ 21€
Without a related allowance record:
Commercial real esta 33,85¢ 45,95! — 41,13¢ 1,11z
Commercial and industri 11,41¢ 12,227 — 11,67: 32¢
Commercial constructio 17,71 27,48¢ — 22,29¢ 571
Consumer real esta 10,827 12,02t 20,53:¢ 68
Other consume 25 25 — 6 —
Total without a Related Allowance Recordec 73,84( 97,71¢ — 95,64¢ 2,08(
Total:
Commercial real esta 39,99« 52,817 1,22¢ 46,93¢ 1,33(
Commercial and industri 13,28: 15,01" 1,00z 13,49¢ 32¢
Commercial constructio 18,51: 28,38: 3 26,74¢ 571
Consumer real esta 10,827 12,02¢ — 20,53: 68
Other consume 25 25 — 6 —
Total $ 82,64: $108,26¢ $ 2,231 $107,71¢ $ 2,29¢
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

December 31, 2011 Year Ended December 31, 2011
Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
(in thousands) Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
With a related allowance recorde
Commercial real esta $ 9,04¢ $ 9,27¢ $ 3,487 $ 12,04¢ $ 32C
Commercial and industri 4,207 4,207 1,11¢ 3,497 77
Commercial constructio 1,97¢ 1,97¢ 942 3,32¢ 4
Consumer real esta — — — 172 —
Total with a Related Allowance Recorded 15,23! 15,45¢ 5,54t 19,04: 401
Without a related allowance record:
Commercial real esta 41,05¢ 47,87 — 34,96¢ 1,41°¢
Commercial and industri 7,784 7,78¢ — 4,12¢ 132
Commercial constructio 24,024 24,37" — 8,85¢ 49¢
Consumer real esta 5,93¢ 6,54¢ — 2,617 19E
Total without a Related Allowance Recorded 78,80¢ 86,57¢ — 50,56¢ 2,23¢
Total:
Commercial real esta 50,10% 57,15( 3,487 47,01( 1,73¢
Commercial and industri 11,99 11,99: 1,11¢ 7,62¢ 20¢
Commercial constructio 25,99¢ 26,35( 942 12,18: 50C
Consumer real esta 5,93¢ 6,54¢ — 2,79( 19E
Total $ 94,03¢ $102,03¢ $ 5,54°f $ 69,60" $ 2,63¢

As of December 31, 2012, $40.0 million of CRE loanmprised 48 percent of the total impaired loar82.6 million. These impaired
loans are collateralized primarily by commerciallrestate properties such as retail or strip maffgse buildings, hotels and various other ty
of commercial purpose properties. These loans @merglly considered collateral dependent and chaffgeare recorded when a confirmed |
exists. Approximately $13.3 million of charge-offave been recorded relating to these CRE loanstbedife of these loans. It is our policy to
order appraisals on an annual basis on impairagsloasooner if facts and circumstances warrargratise. As of December 31, 2012, these
loans had collateral with an estimated fair vaksslcost to sell of approximately $55.2 million. Waee current appraisals on all but four loan:
totaling $1.5 million of the $40.0 million impair&ZRE loans. These $1.5 million of loans do not haveéated appraisals due to bankruptcy
proceedings that are awaiting resolution and oar ks a sales agreement in process. Appraisaatedtgreater than 16 months are generall
discounted an extra 10 percent in order to estittatémpact of aged appraisals, unless managesemidre of other facts and circumstances
that would imply a different discount should be léggh In determining this discount, management mers the market area of the collateral,
the condition of the collateral, and other relevaetors that could impact the collateral value.
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

The following tables detail activity in the ALL fdhe years ended December 31:

2012
Commercial Commercial and

Commercial Consumer Other Total

(in thousands) Real Estate Industrial Construction Real Estate Consumer Loans
Balance at beginning of ye $ 29,80« $ 11,27+ $ 3,70¢ $ 3,16¢ $ 894 $ 48,84:
Chargoffs (9,627) (5,27¢) (10,527 (2,509) (1,079 (29,019
Recoveries 1,25¢ 1,15 891 197 341 3,841
Net (Charge-offs)/ Recoveries (8,369 (4,125 (9,630 (2,312) (737) (25,177)
Provision for loan losse 3,81( 61C 13,427 4,20¢ 764 22,81¢
Balance at End of Yeat $ 25,24¢ $ 7,75¢ $ 7,50( $ 5,05¢ $ 921 $ 46,48«

2011
Commercial Commercial and

Commercial Consumer Other Total

(in thousands) Real Estate Industrial Construction Real Estate Consumer Loans
Balance at beginning of ye $ 30,42t $ 9,771 $ 5,90« $ 3,96: $ 1,31¢ $ 51,38
Charg-offs (8,827 (8,97)) (1,720 (2,617 (1,019 (23,145
Recoveries 78C 357 2,46 1,03( 36C 4,99(
Net (Charge-offs)/ Recoveries (8,044 (8,619 743 (1,587 (653) (18,155
Provision for loan losse 7,42 10,11 (2,949 791 22¢ 15,60¢
Balance at End of Yeat $ 29,80 $ 11,27 $ 3,70 $ 3,16¢ $ 894 $ 48,84.

The following tables present the ALL and recordeeestments in loans by category as of December 31.:
2012
Allowance for Loan Losses Portfolio Loans
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively
Evaluated for Evaluated for Evaluated for Evaluated for

(in thousands) Impairment Impairment Total Impairment Impairment Total
Commercial real esta $ 1,22¢ $ 24,02( $25,24¢ $ 39,99« $ 1,412,13! $1,452,13.
Commercial and industrii 1,00z 6,751 7,75¢ 13,28: 778,11: 791,39t
Commercial constructio 3 7,497 7,50( 18,51: 149,63: 168,14:
Consumer real esta — 5,05¢ 5,05¢ 10,827 850,24t 861,07!
Other consume — 921 25 73,85( 73,87¢
Total $ 2,23 $ 44,25! $46,48:¢ $ 82,64. $  3,263,98 $3,346,62.
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

2011
Allowance for Loan Losses Portfolio Loans
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively
Evaluated for Evaluated for Evaluated for Evaluated for

(in thousands) Impairment Impairment Total Impairment Impairment Total
Commercial real esta $ 3,481 $ 26,317 $29,80: $ 50,10° $ 1,365,221 $1,415,33.
Commercial and industrii 1,11¢ 10,15¢ 11,27« 11,99: 673,76: 685,75:
Commercial constructio 942 2,761 3,70¢ 25,99¢ 162,85 188,85:
Consumer real esta — 3,16¢ 3,16¢ 5,93¢ 766,75: 772,69(
Other consume — 894 894 — 67,13: 67,13:
Total $ 5,54¢ $ 43,29t $48,84: $ 94,03¢ $ 3,035,722 $3,129,75!
NOTE 10. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
The following table is a summary of premises angiggent at December 31:
(in thousands) 2012 2011
Land $ 6,49( $ 6,31¢
Premises 43,43¢ 41,60¢
Furniture and equipme 24,94« 22,94:
Leasehold improvemen 5,96¢ 4,89¢

80,83: 75,76¢
Accumulated depreciatic (42,157 (38,009
Total $ 38,67¢ $ 37,75¢

Depreciation expense related to premises and eguipwas $3.9 million in 2012 and $4.3 million fartb 2011 and 2010.

Certain banking facilities are leased under arreneggs expiring at various dates until the year 2084 account for these leases on a
straight-line basis due to escalation clausesleées are accounted for as operating leases,tdrceme capital lease. Rental expense for
premises amounted to $2.4 million, $1.9 million &1id7 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivétgluded in the rental expense for
premises are leases entered into with two directanich totaled $0.2 million for 2012, 2011 and 201

Minimum annual rental and renewal option paymeatsach of the following five years and thereafter approximately:

(in thousands) Operating Capital Total
2013 $ 2,08¢ $ 76 $ 2,164
2014 2,107 76 2,18¢
2015 2,07¢ 76 2,152
2016 2,00¢ 76 2,08z
2017 1,954 76 2,03(
Thereafte! 43,11« 83¢ 43,95
Total $ 53,34¢ $1,21¢ $54,56¢
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NOTE 11. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table represents a roll forward obguwvill:

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of ye $ 165,27: $ 165,27:
Additions 10,46( —
Balance at End of Yeat $ 175,73: $ 165,27

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase prer the fair value of net assets purchased.tibadi goodwill of $10.5 million was
recorded during 2012, including $6.7 for our acijjiois of Mainline and $3.8 million for our acquigih of Gateway. Refer to Note 2 Business
Combinations for further details on these acquisii There were no additions to goodwill in 2011.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually with aterim analysis performed when necessary. Baped our qualitative assessment
performed for our annual impairment analysis, wectuwded that it is more likely that not that the faalue of the reporting units exceeds the
carrying value. In general, the overall macroecoieaunditions and more specifically the econominditions of the banking industry have
been improving recently. Additionally, our overpéirformance has not significantly deteriorated wedlid not identify any other facts and
circumstances causing us to conclude that it iertikely than not that the fair value of the reaytunits would be less than the carrying ve

The following table shows a summary of intangildeets:

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Gross carrying amount at beginning of y $ 15,07( $15,07(
Additions 1,331 —
Accumulated amortizatio (11,05) (9,347)
Balance at End of Year $ 5,35C $ 5,72¢

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2012 consi$ted.6 million for the acquisition of core deptssi$0.2 million for the acquisition of
wealth management relationships and $0.6 millioritie acquisition of insurance contract relatiopshirhe additions of $1.3 million includes
core deposit intangibles as a result of our actijois of Mainline and Gateway. We determined th@amh of these identifiable intangible
assets as well as those acquired before 2012, basedndependent core deposit, wealth managemennaurance contract analyses. Other
intangible assets are evaluated for recoverafatityually and more frequently if triggering eventsl @hanges in circumstances occur. We
completed this review in 2012 and 2011 and detezththat other intangible assets are not impaired.

Amortization expense on finite-lived intangible etsstotaled $1.7 million, $1.7 million and $1.9 lioih for 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The following is a summary of the esied amortization expense for finlieed intangibles assets, assuming no new addititmn
each of the five years following December 31, 2012:

(in thousands) Amount
2013 $1,59(
2014 1,12¢
2015 88¢
2016 64t
2017 50C
Total $4,74i
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NOTE 12. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVIT IES

In the normal course of business, we use derivatisttuments and hedging activities as discussédéniDerivative Financial Instruments
in Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Poliie
The following table indicates the amount representhe value of derivative assets and derivatailities at December 31:

Derivatives (included in Derivatives (included
Other Assets) in Other Liabilities)

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Derivatives not Designated as Hedging Instrument
Interest Rate Swap Contract—Commercial Loans
Fair value $ 23,74¢ $ 23,76¢ $ 23,520 $ 23,63¢
Notional amoun 227,53. 189,86¢ 227,53. 189,86¢
Collateral poste: — — 19,59¢ 20,27:
Interest Rate Lock Commitment—Mortgage Loans
Fair value 467 244 — —
Notional amoun 14,28 7,09t — —
Forward Sale Contract——Mortgage Loans
Fair value — — 48 95
Notional amoun — — 14,10( 7,72¢

The following table indicates the gain or loss ggdaed in income on derivatives for the year endedember 31:

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Derivatives not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Interest rate swap contra—commercial loan $101 $ (39) $ 96
Interest rate lock commitmer—mortgage loan 223 27 62
Forward sale contra—mortgage loan 47 (507) 22C
Total Derivative Gain (Loss) $371 $(518) $37¢

NOTE 13. MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar® #84.1-4 family mortgage loans that were solBdderal National Mortgage
Association, or FNMA, amounted to $82.9 million,738 million and $109.3 million, respectively. At 8@mber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 our
servicing portfolio totaled $329.2 million, $336llion and $318.2 million, respectively.

The following table indicates MSRs and the netyiag values:

Servicing Net Carrying
Valuation
(in thousands) Rights Allowance Value
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 3,292 $ 82t $ 2,46
Additions 621 34z 27¢
Amortization (593 — (599)
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 3,32( $ 1,167 $ 2,15
Additions 82¢ (67) 89¢
Amortization (940 — (940
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 3,20¢ $ 1,10C $ 2,10¢
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NOTE 14. DEPOSITS

The following table presents the composition ofagts at December 31 and interest expense fordhesyended December 31:

2012 2011 2010

Interest Interest Interest
(in thousands) Balance Expense Balance Expense Balance Expense
Noninteres-bearing deman $ 960,98( 3 — $ 81868t $ — $ 76581 % —
Interes-bearing deman 316,76( 6C 283,61: 47 295,24¢ 54
Money marke 361,23 614 278,09: 691 262,68 1,16¢
Savings 965,57: 2,35¢ 802,94: 1,267 753,81 2,12i
Certificates of depos 1,033,88 13,76¢ 1,152,52 20,94° 1,239,97! 25,37(
Total $ 363842 $ 16,79%¢ $ 333585 $ 2295 $ 331752 $ 28,71

The aggregate of all certificates of deposit ovHdG000 amounted to $368.1 million and $357.7 omllat December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

The following table indicates the scheduled mawsibf certificates of deposit at December 31, 2012

(in thousands)

Amount
2013 $ 643,63
2014 129,96:
2015 118,82¢
2016 53,73t
2017 77,33¢
Thereaftel 10,38¢
Total $ 1,033,88.

NOTE 15. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings are for terms under one geadrwere comprised of retail repurchase agreementREPOs, and FHLB advances.
We define repurchase agreements with our locail rtstomers as retail REPOs. Securities pledgexbbateral under these REPO financing
arrangements cannot be sold or repledged by theesbparty and are therefore accounted for aswesgdorrowing. FHLB advances are for
various terms secured by a blanket lien on resiglembrtgages and other real estate secured Iddesfollowing table represents the
composition of short-term borrowings at DecembeaBd interest expense for the years ended Decediber

2012 2011 2010
Interest Interest Interest
(in thousands) Balance Expense Balance Expense Balance Expense
Securities sold under repurchase agreements, $ 62,58 $ 82 $ 30,37( $ 53 $40,65: $ 64
Federal Home Loan Bank advan: 75,00( 12: 75,00( 2 — 14€
Total $137,58: $ 20t $105,37( $ 55 $40,65! $ 21C

We had a $5.0 million line of credit with S&T Baskcured by investments of another subsidiary of Séflich was closed in April 2012.
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NOTE 15. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS — continued

Information pertaining to REPOs are summarizedétable below:

(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Balance at December : $62,58: $30,37( $40,65!
Average balance during the ye 47,38¢ 41,58¢ 46,48¢
Average interest rate during the y 0.17% 0.13% 0.14%
Maximum montl-end balance during the ye $62,58:. $42,40¢ $52,04¢
Average interest rate at Decembel 0.20% 0.11% 0.07%

Information pertaining to short-term FHLB advangesummarized in the table below:

(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Balance at December : $75,00( $75,00( $ —
Average balance during the ye 50,21: 551 32,47:
Average interest rate during the y 0.24Y% 0.32% 0.45%
Maximum montl-end balance during the ye $75,00( $75,00( $141,80(
Average interest rate at Decembel 0.19% 0.18% —

NOTE 16. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

We had total borrowings as of December 31, 20122&1d at the Pittsburgh FHLB of $108.9 million &1D6.6 million, respectively.
Total borrowings for 2012 consisted of $75 millionshort-term borrowings and $33.9 million in lotegm borrowings. The total borrowings
$106.6 million in 2011 consisted of $75.0 millianshort-term borrowings and $31.6 million in loregrh borrowings. FHLB borrowings are
collateralized by a blanket lien on residential tyages and other real estate secured loans. datas pledged as collateral at the FHLB were
$2.0 billion at year end. We were eligible to barrop to an additional $787.7 million based on dyalg collateral and up to $299.7 million
more provided that additional collateral is pledged

Interest expense of $1.1 million was recognizedbog term borrowings for both 2012 and 2011, an® $illion was recognized for 201
Scheduled annual maturities and average interest far all of the long-term debt, including a ¢apiease of $0.3 million, for each of the five
years and thereafter subsequent to December 32,8@1as follows

(dollars in thousands) Balance Average Rate
2013 $12,29: 3.46%
2014 2,36¢ 3.36%
2015 2,39¢ 3.41%
2016 2,33( 3.44%
2017 2,412 3.53%
Thereafte! 12,30: 2.70%
Total $34,10: 3.18%
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NOTE 16. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS — continued

Junior Subordinated Debt Securities

The following table represents the compositionuoifigr subordinated debt securities at Decembemn8itlze interest expense for the years
ended December 31:

2012 2011 2010

Interest Interest Interest
(in thousands) Balance Expense Balance Expense Balance Expense
2006 Junior subordinated de $25000 $ 52 $25000 $ 1,34« $25000 $ 1,69
2008 Junior subordinated d—trust preferred securitie 20,61¢ 80¢ 20,61¢ 771 20,61¢ 782
2008 Junior subordinated de 20,00( 81¢ 20,00( 78€ 20,00( 791
2008 Junior subordinated de 25,00( 76€ 25,00( 72¢ 25,00( 73E
Total $90,61¢ $ 2,91¢ $90,61¢ $ 3,63F $90,61¢ $ 4,00:

The following table summarizes the key terms ofjanior subordinated debt securities:

2006 Junior 2008 Trust 2008 Junior 2008 Junior

(dollars in thousands) Subordinated Debt Preferred Securities Subordinated Debt Subordinated Debt
Junior Subordinated De $25,00C — $20,000 $25,00C
Trust Preferred Securitit — $20,000 — —
Stated Maturity Dat: 12/15/203¢ 3/15/2038 6/15/2018 5/30/2018
First optional redemption date at | — 3/15/2013 6/15/2013 5/30/2013
Regulatory Capite Tier 2 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 2
Interest Rate 3 month LIBOR 3 month LIBOR 3 month LIBOR 3 month LIBOR

plus 160 bp: plus 350 bp: plus 350 bp: plus 250 bp:
Interest Rate at December 31, 2( 1.91% 3.81% 3.81% 2.81%

We completed a private placement of the trust prefesecurities to a financial institution duritng tfirst quarter of 2008. As a result, we
own 100 percent of the common equity of STBA Cafitast I. The trust was formed to issue mandatagdeemable capital securities to
third-party investors. The proceeds from the stb® securities and the issuance of the commoityelpy STBA Capital Trust | were invested
in junior subordinated debt securities issued byTag third party investors are considered the anjnbeneficiaries; therefore, the trust
qualifies as a variable interest entity, or VIE} lsunot consolidated into our financial statemeSHEBA Capital Trust | pays dividends on the
securities at the same rate as the interest pais foy the junior subordinated debt held by STBAiGATrust I.

NOTE 17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments
The following table sets forth the commitments &tters of credit at December 31

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Commitments to extend cret $874,13 $816,16(
Standby letters of crec 95,39¢ 119,57¢
Total $969,53¢ $935,73¢
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NOTE 17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES — continued

Estimates of the fair value of these off-balanceeslitems were not made because of the short-tetanenof these arrangements and the
credit standing of the counterparties.

Our allowance for unfunded commitments totaled $8illon at December 31, 2012 and $1.2 million &cBmber 31, 2011. Refer to Note
1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Allamnce for Unfunded Commitments for the methodologgduto calculate the allowance for
unfunded commitments.

We have future commitments with third party vendorsdata processing and communication charges patcessing and communication
charges related to these commitments resultedgarese of $10.3 million for 2012, including $2.3 linih in one-time merger related expenses
for our acquisitions of Gateway and Mainline, $miflion in 2011 and $6.8 million in 2010.

The following table sets forth the future estimapegments related to data processing and commigricgtharges for each of the five ye
following December 31, 2012:

(in thousands) Total
2013 $ 7,380
2014 7,03z
2015 7,172
2016 6,81¢
2017 70¢
Total $29,11¢

(1) Included in this amount is $0.6 million relatedthe Gateway conversion in the first quarter of 2(

The commitments in the above table show a deciedd®&l4 due to the Gateway conversion expenseshinuary 2013. The commitments
show a decrease again in 2016 and 2017 when twoactswith third party data processors expire.
Litigation

In the normal course of business, we are subjecatious legal and administrative proceedings daitns. While any type of litigation

contains a level of uncertainty, we believe thatalitcome of such proceedings or claims pendinigwilhave a material adverse effect on ou
consolidated financial position.

NOTE 18. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years endesteer 31 are comprised of;

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Current $6,22: $12,17- $18,96¢
Deferred 1,03¢ 2,44¢ (4,537
Total $7,261 $14,62: $14,43:

The provision for income taxes differs from the amtocomputed by applying the statutory federal medax rate to income before inco
taxes. We ordinarily generate an annual effecxeraite that is less that the statutory rate gh@®sent primarily due to benefits resulting from
tax-exempt interest, excludable dividend income;eigempt interest on bank owned life insurance andbémefits associated with LIHTC frc
certain partnership investments.

109



Table of Contents

NOTE 18. INCOME TAXES — continued

The statutory to effective tax rate reconciliationthe years ended December 31 is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Statutory tax rat 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Low income housing and federal historic tax cre (10.5)% (5.5)% (3.9)%
Tax-exempt interes (6.7)% (4.1)% (4.8)%
Bank owned life insuranc (1.2)% (1.2)% (1.3)%
Acquisition costt 0.5% — —
Dividend exclusior (0.7% (0.6)% (0.7%
Other 1.1% — 0.6 %
Effective Tax Rate 17.5% 23.6 % 24.9 %

Income taxes applicable to security gains were $iillion in 2012, insignificant in 2011 and $0.1lhein in 2010.
Significant components of our temporary differenaese as follows at December 31:

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Net unrealized holding gains on securities avag-for-sale $ (5,58¢) $ (5,209)
Prepaid pensio (4,72)) (5,007%)
Deferred loan incom (969) (736
Purchase accounting adjustme (93%) (3,160
Depreciation on premises and equiprmr (1,969 (1,882
Other (690 (700
Total Deferred Tax liabilities (14,864 (16,699
Deferred Tax Assets:
Allowance for loan losse 16,53¢ 15,59:
Tax credit carryforwards (expires in 20 yee 1,43( —
Other employee benefi 2,701 2,14¢
Low income housing partnershi 2,89( 2,60¢
Net adjustment to funded status of pens 12,89¢ 12,80«
Impairment of securitie 1,37t 2,11¢
Delinquent interest on nonaccrual loi 1,71¢ 1,18
State net operating loss carryforwa 1,49¢ 1,232
Other 3,15 3,55¢
Gross Deferred Tax Asset: 44,20¢ 41,25(
Less: Valuation allowance for Pennsylvania net afieg loss carryforwarc (1,499 (1,232
Total Deferred Tax Assets 42,707 40,01¢
Net Deferred Tax Assel $ 27,84 $ 23,32«

We establish a valuation allowance when it is mitdy than not that we will not be able to realtbe benefit of the deferred tax assets.
Except for Pennsylvania net operating loss, or N€rryforwards, we have determined that a valuadlowance is unnecessary for the
deferred tax assets because it is more likely tirdithat these assets will be realized throughréuteversals of existing temporary differences
and through future taxable income. Periodicallg, vhluation
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NOTE 18. INCOME TAXES — continued

allowance is reviewed and adjusted based on maragsnassessments of realizable deferred tax assetss Geferred tax assets were redi
by a valuation allowance related to Pennsylvaranme tax NOLs generated by S&T, as utilizationhefse losses is not likely. These NOL
carryforwards total $15.0 million and will expine the years 2020-2032.

The period change in deferred taxes on our CoreselitiBalance Sheet is comprised of the followinDedember 31:

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Deferred tax changes reflected in other comprekiergsin/los: $ 284 $(4,18¢)
Deferred tax changes resulting from purchase adoauadjustment (5,849 —
Deferred tax changes reflected in federal incomesigense (benefi 1,03¢ 2,44¢

Unrecognized Tax Benefits
A reconciliation of the change in Federal and Sgatess unrecognized tax benefits, or UTB, for tharg ended December 31:

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of ye $ 20C $242 $28¢€
Prior period tax position
Increase — — —
Decreast¢ — — (67)
Current period tax positior 91z (42 23
Reductions for statute of limitations expiratic (135) — —
Balance at End of Year $ 97¢ $20C $242
Amount That Would Affect the Effective Tax Rate if Recognizec $ 147 $197 $23¢

We classify interest and penalties as an elemetgixaéxpense. We monitor changes in tax statutgsegyulations to determine if
significant changes will occur over the next 12 thanAs of December 31, 2012 no significant charigé$TB are projected, however, tax
audit examinations are possible.

We recognized $0.2 million related to interest@12 and insignificant amounts in both 2011 and 2@16e Consolidated Statements of
Net Income. Additionally, we recognized a $0.5 millliability for an IRS proposed penalty relatedour Mainline acquisition. This amou
was recognized as an adjustment to purchase adegamd had no impact on our Consolidated Statewfelet Income.

As of December 31, 2012, all income tax returregdfiior the tax years 2009 through 2011 remain stibjeexamination by the IRS.
Currently, our income tax return for the 2010 taaris under examination by the IRS. We do not eixipet the results of this examination \
have a material effect on our financial conditiomesults of operations.
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NOTE 19. TAX EFFECTS ON OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following tables present the tax effects of¢bmponents of other comprehensive income for #aasyended December 31

Tax
(Expense) Net of
Pre-Tax Tax

(in thousands) Amount Benefit Amount
2012
Change in unrealized gains/losses on securiticitable-for-sale $ 4,097 $ (1,439 $ 2,66:
Reclassification adjustment for net gains/lossesemurities available-for-sale included in ne

income (3,016 1,05¢ (1,967)
Adjustment to funded status of employee benefilg (2717) 95 (17€)
Other Comprehensive Income $ 8IC $ (289 $ 52¢
2011
Change in unrealized gains/losses on securitictable-for-sale $ 6,70z $ (2,34¢) $ 4,35¢
Reclassification adjustment for net gains/lossesemurities available-for-sale included in net

income 124 (43) 81
Adjustment to funded status of employee benefilg (18,787 6,57¢ (12,217
Other Comprehensive Income $(11,967) $ 4,185 $ (7,779
2010
Change in unrealized gains/losses on securitictable-for-sale $ 69t $ (249 $ 45z
Reclassification adjustment for net gains/lossesemurities available-for-sale included in ne

income (274) 96 (17¢)
Adjustment to funded status of employee benefilg (60€) 212 (399
Other Comprehensive Income $ (18H $ 65 $ (120
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NOTE 20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

We maintain a defined benefit pension plan, or Rtamering substantially all employees hired ptmdanuary 1, 2008. The benefits are
based on years of service and the empl®yeempensation for the highest five consecutivesygathe last ten years. Contributions are intel

to provide for benefits attributed to employee &@to date and for those benefits expected taabeed in the future.

The following table summarizes the activity in thenefit obligation and Plan assets deriving thelfhstatus, which is recorded in other

liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 93,03: $74,11¢
Service cos 2,78t 2,371
Interest cos 4,35¢ 4,16:
Plan participan’ contributions 71 3,96¢
Plan amendmen — (1,519
Actuarial loss 6,72: 15,19¢
Benefits paic (4,519 (5,26¢)
Projected Benefit Obligation at End of Year $102,45: $ 93,03
Change in Plan Asset:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $ 72,62¢ $ 68,77
Actual return on plan asse 9,81( 15€
Employer contribution 3,10( 5,00(
Plan participan’ contributions 71 3,96¢
Benefits paic (4,519 (5,26¢)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Yea $ 81,08¢ $ 72,62¢
Funded Status $(21,36€) $(20,407)

The following table sets forth the amounts recogdiin accumulated other comprehensive gain/loBeaémber 31.:
(in thousands) 2012 2011
Prior service cred $(1,447) $(1,579
Net actuarial los 36,29° 36,29
Total (Before Tax Effects) $34,85¢ $34,71*
Below are the actuarial weighted average assungptiead in determining the benefit obligation:
2012 2011

Discount rate 4.0(% 4.7%
Rate of compensation incree 3.0(% 4.0(%
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NOTE 20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — continued

The following table summarizes the components bpeeiodic pension cost and other changes in PFlaata and benefit obligation
recognized in other comprehensive gain/loss foytes ended December 31:

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Components of Net Periodic Pension Co:
Service co—benefits earned during the peri $2,78¢ $ 2,371 $ 2,24¢
Interest cost on projected benefit obligat 4,35¢ 4,16 4,017
Expected return on plan ass (5,569 (5,379 (4,882
Amortization of prior service cred (237 (7) @)
Recognized net actuarial Ic 2,47¢ 773 824
Net Periodic Pension Cos $ 3,91¢ $ 1,921 $2,19i
Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit ObligatioRecognized in Other Comprehensiv:

Loss
Net actuarial loss (gait $ 2,471 $20,42: $ 1,261
Recognized net actuarial Ic (2,479 (773 (829
Prior service cred © (1,519 —
Recognized prior service cre 137 7 7
Total (Before Tax Effects) $ 14C $18,14: $ 444
Total Recognized in Net Benefit Cost and Other Comehensive Gain/Loss (Before Ta:

Effects) $ 4,05¢ $20,06¢ $ 2,641

The following table summarizes the actuarial weighverage assumptions used in determining neidieipension cost:

2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 4.75% 5.75% 6.25%
Rate of compensation incree 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Expected return on asst 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

The net actuarial loss included in accumulatedratbenprehensive gain/loss expected to be recogiiizeet periodic pension cost during
the year ended December 31, 2013 is $2.4 millitre gdrior service cost expected to be recognizemhgliine same period is not significant.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Plan $@3.5 million at December 31, 2012 and $82.0 millat December 31, 2011.

We consider many factors when setting the assuatecof return on Plan assets. As a general gusléii@ assumed rate of return is equal
to the weighted average of the expected returnedoh asset category and is estimated based onidasteturns as well as expected future
returns. The weighted average discount rate izveifirom corporate yield curves.

S&T Bank’s Retirement Plan Committee determines the investpicy for the Plan. In general, the targeteskasllocation is 50 perce
to 70 percent equities and 30 percent to 50 pefoestt income. A strategic allocation within eadset class is employed based on the Plan’s
time horizon, risk tolerances, performance expauntatand asset class preferences. Investment maramee discretion to invest in any equity
or fixed-income asset class, subject to the seesiguidelines of the Plan’s Investment Policy Stant.

At this time, the Bank is not required to make shceontribution to the Plan in 2013; however, tl@iBcontributed $3.1 million to the
Plan in December 2012.
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NOTE 20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — continued

The following table provides information regardiestimated future benefit payments to be paid it @fi¢he next five years and in the
aggregate for the five years thereafter:

(in thousands) Amount
2013 $ 5,81
2014 5,547
2015 6,601
2016 6,22¢
2017 6,05¢
201&—2022 36,217

We also have supplemental executive retiremensp@nSERPS, for certain key employees. The SERPsrdunded. The projected
benefit obligations related to the SERPs were $8lfon and $3.1 million at December 31, 2012 afd 2, respectively. These amounts also
represent the net amount recognized in the statesfiénancial position for the SERPs. Net periodanefit costs for the SERPs were $0.5
million, $0.3 million, and $0.3 million for each tfe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and &Hkctively. Additionally, $2.0 million
and $1.9 million before tax were reflected in acalated other comprehensive gain/loss at Decemhe2®R and 2011, respectively, in
relation to the SERPs. The actuarial assumptioed fs the SERPs are the same as those used fBtahe

We maintain a Thrift Plan, a qualified defined edmnition plan, in which substantially all employese eligible to participate. We make
matching contributions to the Thrift Plan up to Bércent of participants’ eligible compensation araly make additional profit-sharing
contributions as provided by the Thrift Plan. Expenelated to these contributions amounted to $ill®n in 2012 and $1.1 million in both
2011 and 2010.

Fair Value Measurements

The following tables present our Plan assets medsairfair value on a recurring basis by fair vdiierarchy level at December 31, 2012
and 2011. There were no transfers between Levetll avel 2 for items of a recurring basis during periods presented. The increase of $0.’
million in Level 3 plan assets since December 31,12is due to an increase in unrealized gainsdrirthestments. There were no purchases,
transfers or sales of Level 3 plan assets.

December 31, 2012
Fair Value Asset Classes (1)

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivale(® $ — $8,58¢ $ — $ 8,58t
Fixed Income® 22,21 — 1,43: 23,64
Equities:
Equity index mutual fun—domestic® 1,93¢ — — 1,93¢
Equity index mutual fun—international® 4,21¢ — — 4,21¢
Domestic Individual Equitie®) 39,63: — — 39,63
International Individual Equitie( 1,80z — — 1,80z
Equity—Partnership®) — — 1,27¢ 1,27¢
Total Assets at Fair Value $69,79¢ $8,58¢ $2,707 $81,08¢

() Refer to Note 1 Summary of Significant AccountiolicRes, Fair Value Measurements for a descriptidrievels within the fair value hierarch
(@ This asset class includes FDIC insured money mans&tuments
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NOTE 20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — continued

() This asset class includes a variety of fixed ineanutual funds and a partnership which primarilyeists in investment grade rated securities. Imvest managers have discretion to
invest in fixed income related securities includintires, options and other derivatives. Investmemty be made in currencies other than the U.$ard

4 The sole investment within this asset class is 68Pindex iShare:

() The sole investment within this asset class is MSXEIE Index iShare:

()  This asset class includes individual domestic @giihvested in an active -cap strategy. It may also include convertible bol

(7)  This asset class includes American Depository Res;@r ADR

()  This asset class includes a Partnership pricechiayiivestment manager which invests in equitiesT:Bills.

December 31, 2011
Fair Value Asset Classes ()

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalef $ — $7,44( $ — $ 7,44(
Fixed Income® 21,53¢ — 1,33: 22,87.
Equities:
Equity index mutual fun—domestic® 1,58( — — 1,58(
Equity index mutual fun—international® 3,431 — — 3,43
Domestic Individual Equitie® 34,60( — — 34,60(
International Individual Equitie(® 1,437 — — 1,43
Equity—Partnership®) — 1,26( 1,26(
Total Assets at Fair Value $62,59: $7,44( $2,59: $72,62¢

@) Refer to Note 1 Summary of Significant AccountiolicRes, Fair Value Measurements for a descriptidrievels within the fair value hierarch

() This asset class includes FDIC insured money mank&tuments

(®)  This asset class includes a variety of fixed ineanutual funds and a partnership which primariiyests in investment grade rated securities. Imvest managers have discretion to
invest in fixed income related securities includintyires, options and other derivatives. Investmemiy be made in currencies other than the U.3ard

4 The sole investment within this asset class is 68Pindex iShare:

() The sole investment within this asset class is MSXEIE Index iShare:

()  This asset class includes individual domestic égiinvested in an active -cap strategy. It may also include convertible bol

(") This asset class includes American Depository Res;@r ADR

®  This asset class includes a Partnership pricechiyinvestment manager which invests in equitiesTBills.

NOTE 21. INCENTIVE AND RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN AND DI VIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

We adopted an Incentive Stock Plan in 1992 thatigeal for granting incentive stock options, nonstatty stock options, restricted stock
and appreciation rights. On October 17, 1994, 8#21Stock Plan was amended to include outsidetdii®cThe 1992 Stock Plan had a
maximum of 3,200,000 shares of our common stockeapited ten years from the date of board appreMaDecember 31, 2002, 3,180,822
nonstatutory stock options and restricted stockldesh granted under the 1992 Stock Plan. No fuaivards will be made under the 1992
Stock Plan. All grants under the 1992 Stock Plarerexpired at December 31, 2012.

We adopted an Incentive Stock Plan in 2003 thatiges for granting incentive stock options, nongiaty stock options, restricted stock
and appreciation rights. The 2003 Stock Plan hassdémum of 1,500,000 shares of our common stockeapites ten years from the date of
board approval. The 2003 Stock Plan is similah& 1992 Stock Plan, which the 2003 Stock Plan cepla

Stock Options

As of December 31, 2012, 675,500 nonstatutory stptions are outstanding under the 2003 Stock Ranstatutory stock options
granted in 2006 and 2005 are fully vested and laaem-year life. These stock options were fullyenged in 2010.

116



Table of Contents

NOTE 21. INCENTIVE AND RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN AND DI VIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN — continued

The fair value of option awards under the nonstayustock option plan were estimated on the dagrant using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, which is dependent upon certasuiamptions. We use the simplified method in develgghe estimated life of the option,
whereby the expected life is presumed to be thepoidt between the vesting date and the end ofdhéractual term. There have been no
nonstatutory stock options granted since 2006.

The following table summarizes activity for nonstaty stock options for the years ending Decemler 3

2012

2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Remaining Remaining Remaining
Average  Contractual Number of Average Contractual Average  Contractual
Number Exercise Exercise Number of Exercise
of Shares Price Term Shares Price Term Shares Price Term
Outstanding at beginning of ye ~ 757,05( $ 34.3:t 930,70( $ 32.8( 1,100,551 $ 31.8¢
Grantec — — — — — —
Exercisec — — — — (82,100 19.81
Forfeited (81,550  27.2¢ (173,65()  26.11 (87,750  33.0¢
Outstanding at End of Year 675,50( $ 35.1¢ 2.0yeart 757,05( $ 34.3: 2.8 year: 930,70( $ 32.8(C 3.3 year:
Exercisable at End of Year 675,500 $ 35.1¢ 2.0years 757,05( $ 34.37 2.8year: 930,70( $ 32.8(C 3.3 year:

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstag@ind exercisable was zero as of December 31, 2012, and 2010. The aggregate
intrinsic value represents the total pretax inidnvalue (the difference between our closing stoigke on the last trading day of the fourth

guarter and the exercise price, multiplied by theber of in-the-money options) that would have beseived by the option holders had all
option holders exercised their options on Decer8tie2012.

The following table provides information about neested options for the years ended December 31:

Weighted Average

Non-

Vested Grant Date

Options Fair Value

Non-vested at December 31, 20( 51,62¢ $ 9.4¢
Grantec —
Vested 30,62t 9.4¢
Forfeited 21,00( 9.4¢
Non-vested at December 31, 201 — $ —
Grantec — —
Vested — —
Forfeited — —
Non-vested at December 31, 201 — $ —
Grantec — —
Vested — —
Forfeited — —
Non-vested at December 31, 2012 — $ =
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NOTE 21. INCENTIVE AND RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN AND DI VIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN — continued

The following table presents information about ktoptions exercised for the years ended Decemhber 31

(in thousands, except share data) 2012 2011 2010
Number of options exercise — — 82,10(
Total intrinsic value of options exercis $— $— $ 131
Cash received from options exercis — — 1,75¢
Tax deduction realized from options exerci $— $— $ 46

Restricted Stock

We periodically issue restricted stock to employaed directors, pursuant to the 2003 Stock PlarofA3ecember 31, 2012, 237,484
restricted shares have been granted under this plan

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, we granted 19,362,900a8d 14,208 restricted shares of common stosgertively, to outside directors.
The grants are part of the compensation arrangeapgmoved by the Compensation and Benefits Comenitteereby the directors receive
compensation in both the form of cash and resttisteares of common stock. These shares fully yvesyear after the date of grant.

Also during 2012, 2011 and 2010, we granted 48,608,57 and 4,688 restricted shares of common stesgectively, to senior
management. The awards to senior management wartedrin accordance with performance levels s¢hé&yompensation and Benefits
Committee. The first grant or 9,897 restricted shavests fully on the second anniversary of thatglates. The second grant or 38,111
restricted shares was granted under our Long Tecentive Plan (2012 LTIP) and consists of both tamd performance-based awards.
Vesting for the time-based awards is 50 perceet &fto years and the remaining 50 percent at tdeoéthe third year. The performanbasec
awards vest at the end of the three year periodnB2011 the restricted shares granted occurrettiree occasions and have different vesting
periods. The first grant, or 16,497 restricted ebavests fully on the second anniversary of thatyate. The second grant, or 11,104 restr
shares, vested fully on January 1, 2012. The tiagt, or 32,556 restricted shares, was grantedrung Long Term Incentive Plan (2011
LTIP) and vests in the same manner as explainedealfaf the 4,688 restricted shares granted in 2DB81 shares fully vested one year after
the date of grant. The remaining 2,807 shares gdaveist 50 percent on each of the one and twoayeaversaries from the date of grant.

During the vesting period, the recipient receiviesdénds and has the right to vote the unvestedeshgranted. If the recipient leaves S&T
before the end of the vesting period, shares willdsfeited except in the case of retirement, digglor death where accelerated vesting
provisions are defined within the plan agreement.

Compensation expense for time-based restrictet #aecognized ratably over the period of servigmerally the entire vesting period,
based on fair value on the date of grant. For graratde to directors, the fair value is determingthle closing price of the stock on the date of
grant. The average of the high and low prices efstiock on the grant date is used for senior manage Compensation expense for
performance-based restricted stock is recognizedblgaover the remaining vesting period once tkelihood of meeting the performance
measure is probable. During 2012, 2011 and 2010ewegnized compensation expense of $0.9 millidr, $illion and $0.5 million and
realized a tax benefit of $0.3 million, $0.4 miti@nd $0.3 million, respectively.
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NOTE 21. INCENTIVE AND RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN AND DI VIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN — continued

The following table provides information about reged stock for the years ended December 31:

Weighted Average
Restricted
Grant Date Fair

Stock Value

Non-vested at December 31, 2009 41,34: $ 24.7¢
Grantec 18,89¢ 21.4¢
Vested 25,00¢ 21.8¢
Forfeited 3,56: 29.1¢
Non-vested at December 31, 201 31,67( $ 24.5¢
Grantec 80,04" 21.3¢
Vested 23,91 23.6¢
Forfeited 1,65 23.6¢
Non-vested at December 31, 201 86,15( $ 21.8¢
Grantec 67,37( 21.5¢
Vested 37,11¢ 19.7¢
Forfeited 1,38: 19.5¢
Non-vested at December 31, 201 115,01¢ $ 22.3¢

As of December 31, 2012, there was $1.3 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost related toicted stock that will be recognized
as compensation expense over a weighted averaigel péione year.
Dividend Reinvestment Plan

We also sponsor a Dividend Reinvestment and Stacghse Plan, or Dividend Plan, where shareholdesspurchase shares of S&T
common stock at the average fair value with reiteatdlividends and voluntary cash contributions. pla@ administrator and transfer agent,
may purchase shares directly from us from sharkkihéreasury or purchase shares in the open rmtKalfill the Dividend Plan’s needs.
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NOTE 22. PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION

The following condensed financial statements sunmadhe financial position of S&T Bancorp, Inc.aDecember 31, 2012 and 2011

and the results of its operations and cash flowsdgh of the three years ended December 31, 2012,and 2010.

BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(in thousands) 2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash $ 12,20: $ 13,68¢
Investments in

Bank subsidian 523,66 474,66

Nonbank subsidiarie 19,93¢ 20,00¢
Other asset 3,12¢ 2,937
Total Assets $ 558,92 $ 511,29(
LIABILITIES
Long-term debt $ 20,61¢ $ 20,61¢
Other liabilities 88¢ 14~
Total Liabilities 21,50} 20,76
Total Shareholders Equity 537,42. 490,52¢
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 558,92 $ 511,29(
STATEMENTS OF NET INCOME

Years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Dividends from subsidiarie $35,60: $23,02¢ $22,63¢
Investment incom 17 121 86
Interest expense on lo-term debi 80¢ 777 782
Other expense 1,80(C 1,091 1,64¢
Income before Equity in Undistributed Net Income ofSubsidiaries 33,01: 21,28: 20,29(
Equity in undistributed net income (distributiondrcess of net income) ¢

Bank subsidian 1,371 25,59( 23,15¢

Nonbank subsidiarie (183 392 32
Net Income $34,20( $47,26¢ $43,48(
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NOTE 22. PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION — continued

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income $ 34,20( $ 47,26« $ 43,48(
Equity in (undistributed net income) distributionéxcess of net income of subsidial (1,189 (25,987 (23,190
Tax expense (benefit) from st-based compensatic 30 66 (46)
Other 1,027 10,14¢ 47C
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 34,06¢ 31,49: 20,71«
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net investments in subsidiari (5,03Y) — —
Acquisitions (14,127 — —
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (19,159 — —
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Redemption of preferred sto — (108,676 —
Sale of treasury shares, | 99¢ 1,94¢ 3,69
Preferred stock dividenc — (5,072 (5,439
Cash dividends paid to common sharehols (17,357 (16,830) (16,687)
Tax (expense) benefit from st-based compensatic (30 (66) 46
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (16,389 (128,699 (18,379
Net (decrease) increase in Ci (1,482 (97,205 2,33t
Cash at beginning of ye 13,68/ 110,88 108,55«
Cash at End of Year $ 12,20: $ 13,68¢ $110,88t¢

NOTE 23. REGULATORY MATTERS

We are subject to various regulatory capital rezmaignts administered by the federal banking agerfeakire to meet the minimum capi
requirements can initiate certain mandatory angipbsadditional discretionary actions by regulattirat, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on our financial statements. Uragital guidelines and the regulatory frameworkgarmpt corrective action, we must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitatmeasures of our assets, liabilities and cedtfibalance sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. Our capital am®and classification are also subject to qualiggiddgments by the regulators about risk
weightings and other factors.

The most recent notifications from the Federal Resand the FDIC categorized S&T and S&T Bank al eapitalized under the
regulatory framework for corrective action. Theexé been no conditions or events that we believe bhanged S&T or S&T Bank’s status
during 2012 and 2011.

Tier 1 capital consists principally of shareholdexuity, including preferred stock; excluding itemecorded in accumulated other
comprehensive gain/loss, less goodwill and othmmigibles. For regulatory purposes, trust prefesesrities totaling $20.0 million, issued by
an unconsolidated trust subsidiary of S&T undedysaich junior subordinated debt, are included ar Ticapital for S&T. Total capital
consists of Tier 1 capital plus junior subordinatietht and the ALL subject to limitation. We curigrtave $70.0 million in junior subordinat
debt which is included in Tier 2 capital for S&Takcordance with current regulatory reporting regaents.
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NOTE 23. REGULATORY MATTERS — continued

Quantitative measures established by regulati@nsure capital adequacy require us to maintainmmini amounts and ratios of Total and
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and Tieafital to average assets. As of December 31, 20d2@11, we met all capital adequacy
requirements to which we are subject.

The following table summarizes risk-based capitabants and ratios for S&T and S&T Bank.

To be
Well Capitalized
Under Prompt

For Capital Adequacy Corrective Action
Actual Purposes Provisions
(in thousands, except for ratios) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2012
Total Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets
S&T $504,04: 15.3% $ 262,02 8.0(% $327,53¢ 10.0(%
S&T Bank 452,90¢ 14.35%% 252,48 8.0(% 315,61: 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets
S&T 392,50t 11.9&0 131,01! 4.0(% 196,52: 6.0(%
S&T Bank 343,33: 10.8&0 126,24- 4.0(% 189, 36¢ 6.0(%
Leverage Rati®)
S&T 392,50t 9.31% 168,56: 4.0(% 210,70 5.0(%
S&T Bank 343,33: 8.45% 162,61: 4.0(% 203,26« 5.0%
As of December 31, 201
Total Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets
S&T $465,70: 15.2% $ 245,15: 8.0(% $306,44: 10.0(%
S&T Bank 429,83 14.1% 243,69¢ 8.0(% 304,62: 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets
S&T 356,48:- 11.6% 122,57 4.0(% 183,86¢ 6.0(%
S&T Bank 321,35. 10.5%%0 121,84 4.0(% 182,77 6.0(%
Leverage Rati®)
S&T 356,48« 9.17% 155,52¢ 4.0(% 194,40¢ 5.0(%
S&T Bank 321,35. 8.3(% 154,78 4.0(% 193,48t 5.00%

(@) Minimum requirement is 3.00 percent for the moghly-rated financial institutions
NOTE 24. CAPITAL PURCHASE PROGRAM

On December 7, 2011 we redeemed all of the $108liom or 108,676 shares, of Series A PreferreatBissued on January 16, 2009 in
conjunction with our participation in the CPP. Upexdemption, a one-time na&sh reduction to net income available to commamestolder:
of $1.8 million, or $0.06 per common share, warded for the remaining unamortized discount ofgteferred stock. Refer to Note 23
Regulatory Matters for additional disclosures rélgag capital requirements.

As part of its original purchase of the Series &fEred Stock, the U.S. Treasury received a wattaptirchase 517,012 shares of our
common stock at an initial per share exercise @f381.53. The warrant provides for the adjustntéribhe exercise price and the number of
shares of our common stock issuable upon exercisant to customary anti-dilution provisions, sashupon stock splits or distributions of
securities or other assets to holders of our comshaek and upon certain issuances of our commark stbor below a specified price relative
to the initial exercise price. A binomial pricingoael was used to calculate the fair value of tharoon stock warrant we issued on January
2009 resulting in a fair value of $4.0 million.
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NOTE 24. CAPITAL PURCHASE PROGRAM — continued

The assumptions used to calculate the fair valubeofvarrant are summarized below:

Assumption

Value
Contractual tern 10 year
Exercise price $ 31.5:
Estimated fair value of company stc $ 29.14
Expected life 10 year
Risk-free rate over expected life of the warr 2.3€%
Expected volatility 28.4%
Expected dividend yiel 3.85%

We utilized the average of daily and monthly higtalrvolatility for purposes of this valuation. &udition, the U.S. Treasury has agreec
to exercise voting power with respect to any shafe®mmon stock issued upon exercise of the warkee did not repurchase the warrant at

the time of the Series A Preferred Stock redempdiuth it will remain outstanding until January 2@kuntil we repurchase it from the U.S.
Treasury or it is exercised by the owner.

NOTE 25. SEGMENTS

We operate three reportable operating segmenisdimg) Community Banking, Wealth Management and riaisce.
«  Our Community Banking segment offers services winichude accepting time and demand deposits, @tgig commercial and
consumer loans and providing letters of credit emedlit card service:

e Our Wealth Management segment offers discount lbagieeservices, services as executor and trustesr wilis and deeds, guardian
and custodian of employee benefits and other midtbrokerage services, as well as a registeregiment advisor that manages
private investment accounts for individuals andiinsons.

e Our Insurance segment includes a full-service ersce agency offering commercial property and cagirsdurance, group life and
health coverage, employee benefit solutions ansiopeit insurance line

The following represents total assets by reportapkrating segment as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Community Banking $ 4,516,19 $ 4,110,46.
Insurance 9,30z 8,192
Wealth Managemet 1,20¢ 1,34(
Total Assets $ 4,526,70 $ 4,119,99
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NOTE 25. SEGMENTS — continued

The following tables provide financial informatiéor our three segments. The financial results eflibsiness segments include allocation
for shared services based on an internal analyaistipports line of business and branch performamasurement. Shared services include
expenses such as employee benefits, occupancysepamputer support and other corporate overtiwah with these allocations, the
financial results are not necessarily indicativéhef business segments’ financial condition andltesf operations as if they existed as
independent entities. The information provided urtte caption “Eliminations” represents operations considered to be reportable segment:
and/or general operating expenses and eliminatindsadjustments, which are necessary for purpdsesanciling to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Community
Wealth
(in thousands) Banking Management Insurance Eliminations Consolidated
Interest incom $ 155,86! $ 454 $ 1 $ (69 $ 156,25:
Interest expens 22,13t — — (1,117 21,02«
Net interest income (expens 133,73 454 1 1,04z 135,22
Provision for loan losse 22,81t — — — 22,81t
Noninterest incom 36,42: 9,78¢ 5,262 44C 51,91:
Noninterest expens 97,68 9,44¢ 5,41% 4,69: 117,24.
Depreciation expens 3,83: 31 48 — 3,912
Intangible amortizatiol 1,60(C 57 52 — 1,70¢
Income tax expense (bene! 10,207 352 (88) (3,210 7,261
Net Income (Loss) $ 34,01( $ 354 $ (169 $ — $  34,20(
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Community
Wealth
(in thousands) Banking Management Insurance Eliminations Consolidated
Interest incom $ 164,73¢ $ 307 $ 1 $ 33 $ 165,07
Interest expens 27,69: — 291 (250 27,73
Net interest income (expens 137,04t 307 (290) 28:¢ 137,34t
Provision for loan losse 15,60¢ — — — 15,60¢
Noninterest incom 30,19¢ 8,32¢ 5,23¢ 29¢ 44,057
Noninterest expens 81,18( 7,30z 5,19¢ 4,23¢ 97,91.
Depreciation expens 4,16t 32 57 — 4,25¢
Intangible amortizatiol 1,61¢ 66 52 — 1,735
Income tax expense (bene! 17,911 492 (127) (3,65%) 14,62:
Net Income (LosS) $ 46,75% $ 74z $ (235 $ — $ 47,26¢
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Community
Wealth
(in thousands) Banking Management Insurance Eliminations Consolidated
Interest incom $ 180,31¢ $ 471 $ 2 $ (379) $ 180,41
Interest expens 34,69: — 293 (412 34,57
Net interest income (expens 145,62 471 (297) 39 145,84t
Provision for loan losse 29,511 — — — 29,51
Noninterest incom 32,95¢ 7,95( 4,96¢ 1,33 47,21(
Noninterest expens 82,87 7,52¢ 4,85(C 4,181 99,42¢
Depreciation expens 4,16: 34 62 — 4,25¢
Intangible amortizatiol 1,81t 75 56 — 1,94¢
Income tax (benefit) expen 17,01¢ 324 (102) (2,809 14,43
Net Income (Loss) $ 43,20¢ $ 463 $ (189 $ — $  43,48(

124



Table of Contents

NOTE 26. OTHER NONINTEREST EXPENSE

Other noninterest expenses are presented in thelalow:

Years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2010

Other noninterest expenses
Joint venture amortizatic $ 4,19¢ $ 3,302 $ 2,57¢
Other real estate ownt 2,16¢ 1,51¢ 1,921
Unfunded loan commitmen 1,811 (1,479 (1,555
Amortization of intangible: 1,70¢ 1,737 1,94:
Loan collection fee 43C 624 1,77(
Other 14,71¢ 12,97¢ 13,59:

Total Other Noninterest Expenses $25,03! $18,68¢ $20,24¢

NOTE 27. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selected financiahdat the most recent eight quarters:

(unaudited)
2012 2011
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

(in thousands, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS
Interest incom: $38,92( $38,82( $39,37( $39,14( $40,25¢ $40,84f $41,78: $42,19:
Interest expens 4,62¢ 5,02t 5,551 5,81¢ 6,192 6,97¢ 7,24 7,32(
Provision for loan losse 421F 2,30¢ 7,028 9,272 2,331 1,53¢ 1,097 10,64(
Net interest income after provision for loan

losses 30,07¢ 31,49( 26,79¢ 24,04¢ 31,73( 32,33¢ 33,44: 24,23:
Security gains (losses), r — 2,17( 6 84C — (81) (56) 13
Noninterest incom 11,56¢ 12,57¢ 12,52t 12,22¢ 11,57« 10,42 11,17¢ 11,01
Noninterest expens 29,71 31,01¢ 29,34 32,78 26,67 24,19: 25,59 27,44¢
Income before taxes 11,92« 15,21¢ 9,98: 4,33t 16,63: 18,48 18,96: 7,80¢
Provision for income taxe 2,40( 2,62% 1,38: 85E 4,37¢ 4,681 4,05] 1,51«
Net income 9,52¢ 12,59t 8,60( 3,48( 12,25¢ 13,80z 14,91( 6,29t
Preferred stock dividends and discount

amortization — — — — 2,93¢ 1,55¢ 1,55¢ 1,55k
Net Income Available to Commor

Shareholders $ 952/ $12598 $860( $348( $ 9,317 $12,24¢ $1335. $ 4,74(
Per Share Data
Common earnings per she— diluted $ 032 $ 04t $ 03C $ 01z $ 03 $ 044 $ 048 $ 0.27
Dividends declared per common sh 0.1t 0.1t 0.1t 0.1t 0.1t 0.1t 0.1t 0.1t
Common book valu 18.0¢ 17.97 17.6¢F 17.47 17.4¢4 17.6¢ 17.31 16.9(

On December 7, 2011 we redeemed all of the $108lidm or 108,676 shares, of Series A Preferreatktissued on January 16, 2009 in
conjunction with our participation in the CPP. Upexdemption, a one-time na&sh reduction to net income available to commamestolder:
of $1.8 million, or $0.06 per common share, wa®rded for the remaining unamortized discount ofgteferred stock.
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NOTE 28. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In the first quarter of 2013, we entered into agld@rm agreement with a merchant processing compéeyreceived an upfront fee and
will receive future revenue based upon a revenaergi agreement. As a result of this agreementyilvde terminating our current merchant
processing agreement and expect to incur an earhyitation fee. We are working with our existingrot&nt processor to determine the
amount of the fee. We are currently evaluatingtthesaction and the impact on our first quarte2@3 financial statements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We have audited S&T Bancorp, Inc. and subsididthess Company) internal control over financial repay as of December 31, 2012,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control—Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management ionssiple for maintaining effective internal contoer financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the accomying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reportingour responsibility is to express an opinion on@wenpany’s internal control over financial reportinased
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet andbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfagreuch other procedures as we considered necesghg/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftrin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fia&l reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on criteria establishedimernal Control—Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway
Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company asadiger 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consadiddatements of net income,
comprehensive income and changes in shareholdguigyeand cash flows for each of the years inttinee-year period ended December 31,
2012, and our report dated February 22, 2013 egpdean unqualified opinion on those consolidatedritial statements.

/s KPMG LLP
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
February 22, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of S&T Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiariess @@bmpany) as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statsménet income, comprehensive income and changdsareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year gednded December 31, 2012. These consolidatedcfadastatements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility Exjgress an opinion on these consolidated finasta¢ments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digs in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaarferred to above present fairly, in all mateéspects, the financial position of S&T
Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December @12 2nd 2011, and the results of its operationstarahsh flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2012, in conifipwith U.S. generally accepted accounting pptes.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@wnited States), the Company’
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2012, based on criteria establishédtémnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated February 22, 2013 expressec
an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of@mnpany’s internal control over financial reporting

/s KPMG LLP
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
February 22, 2013
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiorS&fT’s Chief Executive Officer, or CEO, and Chigh&ncial Officer, or CFO (its
principal executive officer and principal financafficer, respectively) management has evaluatectfectiveness of the design and operation
of S&T’s disclosure controls and procedures asefdédnber 31, 2012. In designing and evaluating igeasure controls and procedures,
management recognizes that any controls and proegdwo matter how well designed and operatedpaaride only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objectives.

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetesigned to ensure that information requivdaetdisclosed by us in the reports
we file or submit under the Securities Exchange#934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, is dechiprocessed, summarized and rep:
within the time periods required by the Securities Exchange Commission, or the SEC, and thatisfmfmation is accumulated and
communicated to S&T’s management, including our GiB@ CFO as appropriate, to allow timely decisi@uzarding required disclosure.

Based on and as of the date of such evaluationCE@ and CFO concluded that the design and oparatfiour disclosure controls and
procedures were effective in all material respeaxgsyf the end of the period covered by this report

b) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Fin  ancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is definec
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management assessdds3%stem of internal control over financial refiog as of December 31, 2012, in
relation to criteria for effective internal contmer financial reporting as described in “Inter@aintrol—Integrated Framework,” issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremgd@ommission. Based on this assessment, manageoresttides that, as of
December 31, 2012, S&T's system of internal contrar financial reporting is effective and meets thiteria of the “Internal Control—
Integrated Framework.”

KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounfing, has issued a report on the effectiveness8af'Sinternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2012, which is inctliderein.

¢) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repor  ting

No changes were made to S&T’s internal control dwemcial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(fider the Exchange Act) during the
last fiscal quarter that materially affected, ag ezasonably likely to materially affect, S&T'sénbal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART Il
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-Krisorporated herein from the sections entitledct®®® 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance”, “Election of Directors”, “Egutive Officers of the Registrant” and “Corpor&@evernance and Board and Committee
Meetings” in our proxy statement relating to ouryVe®, 2013 annual meeting of shareholders.

ltem 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This information required by Item 11 of Form 10-Kimcorporated herein from the sections entitledrffpensation Discussion and
Analysis;” “Executive Compensation;” “Director Coepsation;” “Compensation Committee Interlocks amglder Participation”; and
“Compensation Committee Report” in our proxy stadahrelating to our May 20, 2013 annual meetinghareholders.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except as set forth below, the information requipgdtem 12 of Form 10-K is incorporated from tleetions entitled “Principal Beneficial
Owners of S&T Common Stock” and “Beneficial Ownepsbf S&T Common Stock by Directors and Officera”aur proxy statement relating
to our May 20, 2013 annual meeting of shareholders.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION UPDATE
The following table provides information as of Dedger 31, 2012 related to the equity compensatiangin effect at that time.

@) (b) (c)

Number of securities

Number of securities to Weighted average remaining available for
be issued upon exercise exercise price of future issuance under
outstanding options, equity compensation
of outstanding options, plan (excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plan approvec
by shareholder® 675,50( $ 35.4% 325,01t

Equity compensation plans not

approved by shareholde — — —
Total 675,50( $ 35.4% 325,01t
@) Awards granted under the 2003 Incentive Stock F

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-Krisorporated herein from the sections entitledléfs Person Transactions” and
“Director Independence” in our proxy statementtiatato our May 20, 2013 annual meeting of shardéis.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 of Form 10-Krisorporated herein from the section entitled 8pdndent Registered Public
Accounting Firm” in our proxy statement relatingaor May 20, 2013 annual meeting of shareholders.
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PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) The following documents are filed as part of tiepart.

Consolidated Financial StatementsThe following consolidated financial statementsiactuded in Part II, Item 8 of this report. Nodincial
statement schedules are being filed since the nedjuriformation is inapplicable or is presentethia Consolidated Financial Statements or
related notes.

Consolidated Balance She 64
Consolidated Statements of Net Inco 65
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inc 66
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareh’ Equity 67
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc 68
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 69
Report of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Publicdunting Firm on Effectiveness of

Internal Control Over Financial Reporti 127

Report of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Publicdunting Firm on Consolidated
Financial Statemen 12¢
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(b) Exhibit:
2.1

3.4

3.€

3.8
10.1

10.2

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Septefthez011, between S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Mainline
Bancorp, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 2.1 to S&T Bancdrg. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Septemb@r
2011 and incorporated herein by referel

Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement and Plan of Memged as of January 27, 2012, between S&T Bancol
Inc. and Mainline Bancorp, Inc., dated Septembe2042. Filed as Exhibit A to Form S-4 Registration
Statement (No. 3-178424) dated January 30, 2012 and incorporatesirhby reference

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 29, 2b&Ryeen S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Gateway Bank of
Pennsylvania filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the S&T Bam;dnc. Current report on Form 8-K filed on April 3012
and incorporated herein by referen

Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bancorp, Inc. Riles Exhibit B to Registration Statement (No. 2&35n
Form <-4 of S&T Bancorp, Inc., dated May 5, 1983, and ipooated herein by referenc

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bampplnc. Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Form S-4 Registnat
Statement (No. --02600) dated January 15, 1986, and incorporatezirhby reference

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bampplnc. effective May 8, 1989, incorporated hergyn
reference. Filed as exhibit 3.3 to S&T Bancorp, kuenual Report on Form 10-K for year ending Decemb
31, 1998 and incorporated herein by refere

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bampplnc. effective July 21, 1995. Filed as exhihi to
S&T Bancorp, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K foayending December 31, 1998 and incorporated here
reference

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bampplnc. effective June 18, 1998. Filed as exi8hitto
S&T Bancorp, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K foayending December 31, 1998 and incorporated herei
by reference

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bampplnc. effective April 21, 2008. Filed as ExhiBitl to
S&T Bancorp, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-@dilon August 7, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference

Certificate of Designations for the Series A PnafdrStock. Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to S&T Bancorp,.|@arrent
Report on Form-K filed on January 15, 2009 and incorporated helgineference

By-laws of S&T Bancorp, Inc., as amended, April 2008. Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to S&T Bancorp, Inc.
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed on August 7, 2008 and incorporated hergimdference

S&T Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated 1992 Inger8tock Plan. Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-8
Registration Statement (No. -48549) dated March 24, 1998 and incorporated hérneneference.:

S&T Bancorp, Inc. 2003 Incentive Stock Plan. FiexdExhibit 4.2 to Form S-8 Registration Statemisiat
333-111557) dated December 24, 2003 and incorporatesinhisy reference.
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(b) Exhibit:
10.z

10.4

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.€

21

23
24.1
24.2
31.1
31.2
32
101**

S&T Bancorp, Inc. Thrift Plan for Employees of S&hnk, as amended and restated. Filed as Exhibtb4.2
Form S-8 Registration Statement (No. 333-15654f1gdiRecember 31, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference.’

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan af B&ncorp, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-3
Registration Statement (No. 333-156555) dated Jgrj@2009 and incorporated herein by referendedrs
Exhibit 4.2 to S&T Bancorp, Inc. on Forn-8 filed on January 2, 2009 and incorporated hdvgireference.:

Severance Agreement, by and between Todd D. BndeS&T Bancorp, Inc., dated December 31, 2008dFile
as Exhibit 10.1 to S&T Bancorp, Inc. Current RegmrtForm 8-K filed on January 2, 2009 and incorpeata
herein by reference

Severance Agreement, by and between Edward C. HmtIS&T Bancorp, Inc., dated December 31, 2008.
Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to S&T Bancorp, Inc. Curr&#port on Form 8-K filed on January 2, 2009 and
incorporated herein by referenci

Severance Agreement, by and between David G. Anwold S&T Bancorp, Inc. dated December 31, 2008.
Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to S&T Bancorp, Inc. Curr&@#port on Form 8-K filed on January 2, 2009 and
incorporated herein by referenci

Severance Agreement, by and between Gregor T. Ydiagd S&T Bancorp, Inc. dated December 31, 2008.
Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to S&T Bancorp, Inc. Curr&#port on Form 8-K filed on January 2, 2009 and
incorporated herein by referenci

Severance Agreement, by and between Mark KochwhS&T Bancorp, Inc. dated as of January 1, 2008dFi
as Exhibit 10.1 to S&T Bancorp, Inc. Current RemmrtForm 8-K filed on February 26, 2010 and incoaped
herein by reference

Subsidiaries of the Registra

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pukticounting Firm.

Power of Attorney

Power of Attorney

Rule 13-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Offici

Rule 1314(a) Certification of the Principal Financial @#i.

Rule 13-14(b) Certification of the Chief Executive Officand Principal Financial Office

The following financial information from the Regiaht's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ehde
December 31, 2012 is formatted in eXtensible BussriReporting Language (XBRL): (i) Consolidated Baka
Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Net IncdifeConsolidated Statements of Comprehensivemne (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Sharehollgtsty and (v) Consolidated Statements of Casiw§lo
and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme¢

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arraegé

** This exhibit is furnished and will not be deemeitetf” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securifisshange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78r), or othervgisbject to the liability of that
section. Such exhibit will not be deemed to be ipocated by reference into any filing under theuBities Act or of Securities Exchange Act, exceptite extent that the Registrant
specifically incorporates it by referen:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

S&T BANCORP, INC.

(Registrant
.-"""r:';/{f 0_ 4/
’ 02/22/1:
Todd D. Brice Date

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

":';' 3 E 2- 02/22/1;

Mark Kochvar Date
Senior Executive Vice President, Chief

Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
President and Chief Executive Officer (PrincipakEutive 02/22/1:

T d/(/f 0 /(/ Officer)

Todd D. Brice

Senior Executive Vice President and Chief FinanOificer 02/22/1:
W (Principal Financial Officer)

Mark Kochvar

/s/ Melanie Lazzari Senior Vice President, Controller 02/22/1:
Melanie Lazzar
* Director 02/22/1:
John N. Brenzi:

Director 02/22/1:
John J. Delane

Director 02/22/1:
Michael J. Donnelly
* Director 02/22/1:

William J. Gatti
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SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

* Director 02/22/1:
Jeffrey D. Grube

Director 02/22/1:
Frank W. Jone
/sl Joseph A. Kirk Director 02/22/1:
Joseph A. Kirk

Director 02/22/1:
David L. Krieger
* Chairman of the Board and Director 02/22/1:
James C. Mille

Director 02/22/1:
Fred J. Morelli, Jr
* Director 02/22/1:
Frank J. Palermo, J
* Director 02/22/1:
Alan Papernicl
* Director 02/22/1:
Charles A. Spadafol
* Director 02/22/1:
Christine J. Toretl

Director 02/22/1:
Charles G. Urtir
*By: /s/ Joseph A. Kirk Director 02/22/1:

Joseph A. Kirk
Attorne*-in-fact
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Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

S&T Bancorp, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation, fimancial holding company. The table below setshfall of our subsidiaries as to state or
jurisdiction of organizatior

Subsidiary State or Jurisdiction of Organizati
S&T Bank Pennsylvanic
Gateway Bank of Pennsylvar® Pennsylvani:
9th Street Holdings, In Delaware
S&T Bancholdings, Inc Delaware
S&T Insurance Group, LL¢ Pennsylvani:
S&T Professional Resources Group, L Pennsylvanic
S&T-Evergreen Insurance, LL Pennsylvanic
S&T Settlement Services, LL Pennsylvanic
Stewart Capital Advisors, LL! Pennsylvanic
STBA Capital Trust Delaware
Commonwealth Trust Credit Life Insurance Comp Arizona

@ Gateway Bank of Pennsylvania was merged into S&kBa February 8, 201:



Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irréigistration statement Nos. 333-183978, 333-16,1333-157297 and 33B56555, on Forr
S-3, Nos. 333-181568 and 333-178424 on Form SetNan 333-156541 on Form S-8 of S&T Bancorp, Imad aubsidiaries of our reports
dated February 22, 2013, with respect to the catesteld balance sheets of S&T Bancorp, Inc. andidiab®s as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, and the related consolidated statementstafoeme, comprehensive income and changes in lsblaiers’equity, and cash flows for ee
of the years in the three-year period ended Decethe2012, and the effectiveness of internal admtver financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, which reports appear in the Mbee 31, 2012 annual report on Form 10-K of S&T &ap, Inc. and subsidiaries.

/sl KPMG LLP
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
February 22, 2013



Exhibit 24.1
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears betmh,(a “Signatory”) constitutes and
appoints Joseph A. Kirk, Jeffrey D. Grube and Frédhklones (each an “Agent,” and collectively, “Agghor any of them, his true and lawful
attorney-in-fact and agent for and in his namegeland stead, in any and all capacities, to sigrCibmpany’s Annual Report on Form KGor
the year ended December 31, 2012 and to file the swith all exhibits thereto, and all amendmemtstber documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comianis€Each Signatory further grants to the Agenitiolver and authority to do and perform
each and every act and thing requisite and neggssahe judgment of such Agent, to be done innamtion with any such signing and filing,
as full to all intents and purposes as he migltiooild do in person, and hereby ratifies and corfiaththat said Agent may lawfully do or ca
to be done by virtue hereof.

This Power of Attorney may be executed simultankonsone or more counterparts, each of which shalleemed an original, but all of
which constitute but one and the same instrument.

Signature Title Date

/sl James C. Miller Chairman of the Board and February 22, 2013
James C. Mille Director
/sl Todd D. Brice Chief Executive Officer and February 22, 2013
Todd D. Brice Director
/s/ John N. Brenzia Director February 22, 2013
John N. Brenzii

Director February 22, 2013
John J. Delane

Director February 22, 2013
Michael J. Donnelly
/s/ William J. Gatti Director February 22, 2013
William J. Gatti
/sl Jeffrey D. Grube Director February 22, 2013
Jeffrey D. Grube

Director February 22, 2013
Frank W. Jone
/sl Joseph A. Kirk Director February 22, 2013
Joseph A. Kirk

Director February 22, 2013

David L. Krieger



Signature

Title

Date

/sl Alan Papernick

Alan Papernicl

/sl Charles A. Spadafora

Charles A. Spadafol

/s/ Christine J. Toretti

Christine J. Toretl

Charles G. Urtir

Director

Director

Director

Director

February 22, 2013

February 22, 2013

February 22, 2013

February 22, 2013



Exhibit 24.2

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears betmh,(a “Signatory”) constitutes and
appoints Joseph A. Kirk, Jeffrey D. Grube and Frédhklones (each an “Agent,” and collectively, “Agghor any of them, his true and lawful
attorney-in-fact and agent for and in his namegeland stead, in any and all capacities, to sigrCibmpany’s Annual Report on Form KGor
the year ended December 31, 2012 and to file the swith all exhibits thereto, and all amendmemtstber documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comianis€Each Signatory further grants to the Agenitiolver and authority to do and perform
each and every act and thing requisite and neggssahe judgment of such Agent, to be done innamtion with any such signing and filing,
as full to all intents and purposes as he migltiooild do in person, and hereby ratifies and corfiaththat said Agent may lawfully do or ca
to be done by virtue hereof.

This Power of Attorney may be executed simultankonsone or more counterparts, each of which shalleemed an original, but all of
which constitute but one and the same instrument.

Signature Title Date
Director February 22, 2013
Fred J. Morelli, Jr
/s/ Frank J. Palermo, Jr. Director February 22, 2013

Frank J. Palermo, J



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acto 2002

I, Todd D. Brice, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fiS&T Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiortny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoies designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgadiang the reliability of financial reporting atifie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proms] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegidg’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registramthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report), thatrhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tohover financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiimternal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refiwancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 22, 2013

/s/ Todd D. Brice
Todd D. Brice, President and Chief Executive Offi




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acto 2002

I, Mark Kochvar, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fS&T Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atiie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and progesias of the end of the period covered by tientébased on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportiritat occurred during the registramthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report), thatrhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tohover financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refiwancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 22, 2013

/s/ Mark Kochvar
Mark Kochvar, Senior Executive Vice President, €Rieancial Office




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT SECTION 906

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted @uirsol Section 906 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002, in connection with the S&T Bamgy
Inc. (the “Company”) Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe period ending December 31, 2012 as filed thighSecurities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Id@®. Brice, President and Chief Executive Offioethe Company, and I, Mark Kochvar,
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant@mBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to
the best of my knowledge, that:
1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeunit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdétion and results of operations of the
Company for the dates and period covered by thertep
This certificate is being made for the exclusivepmse of compliance by the Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer of the
Company with the requirements of Section 906 of3hehanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and may not be diedodistributed or used by any person
or for any reason other than as specifically resgulyy law.

Date: February 22, 2013

/s/ Todd D. Brice /s/ Mark Kochvar
Todd D. Brice, Mark Kochvar,
President and Chief Executive Offic Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Financidicaf




